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Independent Auditor´s Report to the Shareholders of Spolek
pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
Non-consolidated financial statements
On the basis of our audit, on 30 May 2014 we issued an auditor´s report on the Company´s
financial statements, which are included in this annual report, and our report was as follows:
„We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spolek pro chemickou a hutní
výrobu, akciová společnost, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2013, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes to these financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes. Information about the company is set out in note 1 to these financial statements.
Statutory Body´s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The statutory body of Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for such
internal controls as the statutory body determines are necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor´s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and International Standards
on Auditing and the relevant guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor´s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity´s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity´s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities of
Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost as of 31 December 2013, and of its
expenses, revenues and net result and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the Company reported a
loss from operating activities for the year 2013 and its current liabilities as at 31 December
2013 exceeded current assets. As stated in note 2c to the financial statements, the Company
also has a significant portion of overdue short-term trade payables. Together with the other
facts stated in note 2c, this fact indicates significant uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt on the Company´s ability to continue as a going concern. In the opinion of the
Company´s management, the Company´s ability to continue as a going concern depends
primarily on the successful management of cash flows connected with working capital, which
is managed in the manner stated in note 2c. Further, the Company´s management approved
the budget for 2014, which does not expect the Company´s operations to be terminated or the
Company to be liquidated. The key estimates used to prepare the budget have been assessed
as being realistic as at the date of preparation of these financial statements. Primarily for these
reasons, the Company´s management considers the application of the going-concern principle
in the preparation of the financial statements appropriate.”

Consolidated Financial Statements
On the basis of our audit, on 30 May 2014 we issued an auditor´s report on the Company´s
financial statements, which are included in this annual report, and our report was as follows:
„We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Spolek pro
chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and the notes to these consolidated financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Information about
the Company is set out in note 1 to these consolidated financial statements.
Statutory Body´s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The statutory body of Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost is responsible
for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and for such internal controls as the statutory body determines are necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor´s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and
International Standards on Auditing and the relevant guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of
the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor´s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity´s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity´s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets
and liabilities of Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost as of 31
December 2013, and of its expenses, revenues and net result and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to fact that the Company’s current
liabilities as at 31 December 2013 exceeded the current assets. As stated in note 2c to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company also has a significant portion of overdue
short-term trade payables. Together with the other facts stated in note 2c, this fact indicates
significant uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company´s ability to continue as
a going concern. In the opinion of the Company´s management, the Company´s ability to
continue as a going concern depends primarily on successful management of cash flows
connected with the working capital, which is managed using the manners stated in note 2c.
Further, the Company´s management approved the budget for 2014, which does not expect
the Company´s operations to be terminated or the Company to be liquidated. The key
estimates used to prepare the budget have been assessed as being realistic as at the date of
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. Primarily for these reasons, the
Company´s management considers the application of the going-concern principle in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements appropriate.“

Report on relations between related parties
We have reviewed the factual accuracy of the information disclosed in the report on relations
between related parties of Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost for the
year ended 31 December 2013 prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of Act No.
513/1991 Coll., the Commercial Code. The responsibility for the preparation and factual
accuracy of this report rests with the Company´s statutory body. Our responsibility is to
express our view on the report on relations based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard No. 56 of the Chamber of
Auditors of the Czech Republic. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to

obtain limited assurance as to whether the report on relations is free of material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and analytical
procedures and examination, on a test basis, of the factual accuracy of information, and thus
provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit of the report on
relations and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that would lead us to believe that the
report on relations between related parties of Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová
společnost for the year ended 31 December 2013 contains material factual misstatements.

Consolidated annual report
We have audited the consistency of the consolidated
annual report with the above
mentioned financial statements. This consolidated annual report is the responsibility of the
Company’s statutory body. Our responsibility is to express our opinion on the consistency of
the consolidated annual report with the above mentioned financial statements based on our
audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and International Standards
on Auditing and the relevant guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that
the information disclosed in the consolidated annual report describing matters that are also
presented in the sets of financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the
respective financial statements. We believe that the audit we have conducted provides a
reasonable basis for our audit opinion.
In our opinion, the information disclosed in the consolidated annual report is, in all material
respects consistent with the above mentioned financial statements.
Prague, on 11 July 2014

KPMG Česká republika Audit, s.r.o.
Licence number 71

Karel Charvát
Partner
Licence number 2032

I. Board of Directors‘ report on the Company’s business, the assets for 2013, the
statutory financial statements for 2013, the consolidated financial statements
for 2013 and the proposed distribution of profits for 2013

In 2013 the Group, and especially the parent company (Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu,
akciová společnost, “the Company”), continued to fulfil a long-term Stabilisation Agreement
valid until 30 June 2017 and concluded with three creditors from the banking sector. This
agreement defines long-term and short-term loans and the manner of their repayment. This
agreement was important in stabilising both the Company and the Group in 2013 when the
Company paid up loans totalling CZK 192 million and the Group paid up loan principals
totalling CZK 278 million.
In terms of sales, the Group managed to achieve sales which were higher by CZK 119 million
than in 2012 and totalled CZK 5,574 million despite the continuing recession present in the
market throughout almost all of the fiscal year. The consolidated performance of the Group
showed a loss of CZK 217 million. The Group’s EBITDA was CZK 307 million, which
represents a year-on-year increase of CZK 50 million compared to 2012. The Company’s net
result was negatively affected by adjustments recorded in respect of non-operating assets and
foreign exchange differences arising from the revaluation of foreign currency loans as a result
of the intervention from the side of the Czech National Bank at the end of the year.
The main reasons behind the negative result include the recession in the European and world
markets (which showed a slight recovery only at the year-end) together with high prices of
purchased domestic energy, especially electricity. Expenses for electricity in the domestic
market are significantly higher than those incurred by direct foreign competitors facing the
same effects of recession in the European market, in particular due to unreasonable regulation
and support of renewable resources. In 2013, the Group paid more than CZK 180 million just
for transmission fees and fees for renewable energy resources.
The inorganic chemistry business saw a year-on-year decline in sales of about 7%. The resin
segment, on the other hand, saw a year-on-year increase of about 4%. Sales generated by the
group from the consumer chemistry segment also increased by some per cents. Despite the
difficult situation in the market, the Group and the parent Company did manage to retain their
position in the global market and even acquired some new business partners. Cooperation
with a new partner from the US in the manufacture of polyesters was affected by a technical
accident occurring at the polyester operations, which had a negative effect on the Group’s
performance mainly in the first quarter of 2013. In addition to this, the June floods affected
performance for the second quarter of 2013 as they caused breakdowns at the Střekov sewage
disposal plant and the Labe waterworks which supply technical water for all of the
Company’s operations.
The Company again confirmed the success of its export policy by ranking among the top
companies in the Exporter of the Year 2013 Awards. The Company is the top exporter in the
region and ranked among the TOP 15 in three further nation-wide categories of the Awards.
The Company’s environmental protection activities, together with the continued manufacture
of environmentally friendly products such as epichlorhydrin made from glycerine, or “green
resin”, had a positive impact on its business.
Having passed the relevant audits successfully, the Company now holds certificates for
quality management systems, environmental protection, and an occupational health and safety
system.
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I. Board of Directors‘ report on the Company’s business, the assets for 2013, the
statutory financial statements for 2013, the consolidated financial statements
for 2013 and the proposed distribution of profits for 2013

In 2013, the Company continued to focus on safety improvements and reducing the
environmental impact of its activities. The project to clean the subsoil and groundwater at the
plant premises is essential for the sustainable development of our business.
Old buildings located on the Company´s grounds which had been used for the manufacture of
permanganate were demolished. Similarly as the completion of the first phase of installing a
diaphragm wall as part of the so-called eco-containment, this demolition is connected with the
clean-up and renewal activities, with the preparation of a new investment into the potassium
permanganate manufacturing facility, and last but not least with intensive preparations to
convert the membrane electrolysis plant.
The project to convert the membrane electrolysis plant, which requires the best technology
available, is central to the future development of both the Company and the Group. The
Company has obtained a permit to continue operating its existing amalgam electrolysis plant
until 31 December 2015. Negotiations on financing this investment were completed upon
signing a loan agreement in April 2014. The Company has obtained the promise of a subsidy
from the State Environmental Fund of the Czech Republic for the construction of this
environment-friendly plant.
In 2013, as part of the strategic management process the Company´s Board of Directors
continued applying the organisational structure adopted at the end of 2012. The Company is
still managed by two executive directors – the Executive Director for Operations and Sales,
and the Executive Directors for Group Strategy and Management. The directors of specialised
divisions report to these executive directors – the manufacturing director, the chief financial
officer, the sales director, the human resources director, the supply chain director, and the
project director. Organisational changes were made within the Group during 2013 which
relate to providing infrastructure services. Based on new legislation, at the end of the year the
Company prepared primary information on the exchange of shares which is to be performed
in 1st half of 2014.
As it follows from publicly available information, the Company’s main shareholder as at
31 December 2013 was Via Chem Group, a.s. with a 33.12% share in registered capital and
voting rights of the Company.
The Company’s Board of Directors reviewed the Company’s 2013 financial statements and
the 2013 consolidated financial statements, and proposes that the General Meeting approve
these statements.
The Board of Directors presents to the General Meeting of the Company a proposal to
distribute the 2013 profits as follows: the loss for 2013 amounting to CZK 209,797 thousand
will be added to accumulated losses.

Ústí nad Labem, on 11 July 2014

Ing. Jan Schmidt
Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Šrubař
Chairman of the Board of Directors
7

II. TEXT PART OF THE ANNUAL REPORT OF AN ISSUER OF A LISTED SECURITY

1.

Information on the issuer of a listed security

Basic information on the issuer
Trade name:
Registered office:
Registration number:
Established:
Issuer’s internet address:

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32
00011789
31 December 1990
www.spolchemie.cz

The joint-stock company Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu (hereinafter the „Issuer“ or the
„Company“) was established as a joint-stock company at once according to the incorporation
plan of the Ministry of Industry of the Czech Republic pursuant to Act No. 104/1990 Coll., on
joint-stock companies, and Act No. 111/1990 Coll., on state-owned enterprises.
The Issuer is registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in Ústí nad
Labem, Section B, File 47.
The Issuer has not established any structural component abroad.
The structure of the Issuer’s equity is described in Note 12 to the financial statements.
The Issuer is not a party to any contract that might become effective, changed or terminated upon
a change in the control of the Issuer due to a takeover bid.
The Issuer does not allow any advantage in the acquisition of the Company’s shares to anybody
in any way.
The Issuer has not issued any securities to which special rights are attached.
The Issuer has not concluded any contracts with any members of the Board of Directors or any
employees that would oblige it to provide any performance if their term of office or employment
is terminated in connection with a takeover bid.
The Issuer is under an obligation to have its financial statements audited by an auditor and an
obligation to prepare consolidated financial statements. Based on the requirements of Act No.
563/1991 Coll. on Accounting, as amended, the Issuer has been keeping books and has prepared
its financial statements and consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) since 1 January 2005.

The consolidation group (the “Group”) includes the Issuer and the following companies with
decisive influence:
SYNPO, akciová společnost, with its registered office in Pardubice, Zelené Předměstí, S. K.
Neumanna 1316, postcode 532 07, Reg. No. 46504711, registered in the Commercial Register
kept by the Regional Court in Hradec Králové in section B, file 627.
EPISPOL, a.s., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 86, čp. 1930, postcode
400 01, Reg. No. 25449842, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court
in Ústí nad Labem in section B, file 1426.
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SPOLCHEMIE, a.s., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 86 čp. 1930,
postcode 400 32, Reg. No. 25006223, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the
Regional Court in Ústí nad Labem in section B, file 899.
Spolpharma, s.r.o., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode
400 01, Reg. No. 27287149, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in
Ústí nad Labem in section C, file 22665.
Oleochem, a.s., with its registered office in Prague 2, Vinohrady, Anglická 140/20, postcode
120 00, Reg. No. 28361806, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in
Prague in section B, file 14109.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode
400 32, Reg. No. 27918131, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in
Ústí nad Labem in section C, file 26871.
CHS Resins, a.s., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode
400 32, Reg. No. 28207866, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in
Ústí nad Labem in section B, file 1991.
SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis a.s., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční
1930/86, postcode 400 32, Reg. No. 29200181, registered in the Commercial Register kept by
the Regional Court in Ústí nad Labem in section B, file 2227.
Usti Instrastructure s.r.o., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Žukovova 100,
postcode 400 03, Reg. No. 24843245, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the
Regional Court in Ústí nad Labem in section C, file 30980.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V., with its registered office at Haaksbergweg 71, 1101 BR Amsterdam, the
Netherlands.
CHS Epi, a.s., with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode
400 32, Reg. No. 28207882, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in
Ústí nad Labem in section B, file 2017.
SPOLCHEMIE (M) Sdn. Bhd., with its registered office at C 15-1, level 15, Tower C, Megan
Avenue II, 12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng, 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, Reg. No. 785686-T.
Bakelite Epoxy GmbH, with registered office c/o Nörr Stlefenhofer Lutz, Victorplatz 2, 40477
Düsseldorf, Germany.
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The Issuer´s main line of business is:
-

fire protection – technical and organisational activity
installation, repair, inspection and testing of gas equipment and filling gas containers
manufacture of dangerous chemicals and dangerous chemical products and sale of chemicals
and chemical products classified as highly toxic and toxic
disposal of hazardous waste
manufacture, trade and services not listed in Annexes 1 to 3 to the Trades Licensing Act

The main line of business of SYNPO, akciová společnost is research and development in
chemistry.
The main line of business of EPISPOL, a.s. is the manufacture of chemical substances.
The main line of business of Spolpharma, s.r.o. is the manufacture and import of chemical
substances and preparations.
The main line of business of Oleochem, a.s. is manufacturing, trading and services not listed in
Appendices 1 to 3 to the Trade Act.
The main line of business of INFRASPOL, s.r.o. is manufacturing, trading and services not listed
in Appendices 1 to 3 to the Trade Act, activities in fire protection and in occupational health and
safety.
The main line of business of SPOLCHEMIE, a.s. is the manufacture of chemical substances and
chemical preparations and purchase of goods intended for future resale.
The main line of business of CHS Resins, a.s. is rental of properties.
The main line of business of CHS Epi, a.s. is the manufacture of chemical substances.
The main line of business of SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis, a.s. is design activity in construction,
building construction, manufacturing, trading and services not listed in Appendices 1 to 3 of the
Trade Act.
The main line of business of Usti Infrastructure s.r.o. is the rental of properties, manufacturing,
trading and services not listed in Appendices 1 to 3 to the Trade Act.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V., SPOLCHEMIE (M) Sdn. Bhd. and Bakelite Epoxy GmbH do not yet carry
out any business activities.

Summary description of properties owned by the Issuer
The Issuer owns a large manufacturing site in the cadastral area of Ústí nad Labem to the west of
the city centre and a few plots outside the manufacturing site in the same cadastral area. The total
area of the plots is 549,000 m2, of which the built-up is 199,000 m2. The Company is currently
decontaminating the subsoil of the manufacturing site. The decontamination is financed by the
Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic.
There are a large number of buildings and structures at the site, most of them used by the Issuer
for its main activity (manufacture of chemical substances). A smaller portion of the properties
are rented out by the Issuer to mostly smaller companies residing at the site, whose business
activities are usually related to those of the Issuer.
Major rented parts of the site include an area of 6,000 m2 rented out to the subsidiary EPISPOL,
a.s. and an area of 12,000 m2 rented out to the subsidiary CHS Epi, a.s.
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The Issuer owns plots of land in the cadastral area of Chabařovice (area: 423,000 m2) and a
lesser number of plots in the cadastral area of Tuchomyšl (area: 3,000 m2), on which a former
dumping ground of chemical waste is located. The Company has already finished
decontaminating the dumping ground.
The Issuer is also the owner of plots in the cadastral area of Trmice with a total area of 75,000
m2. The plots are located in an industrial zone and are kept in reserve for further company
development.
The Issuer also owns smaller plots in the cadastral area of Klíše with an area of 79,000 m2.
Underground storage facilities for service water and propylene are located on the plots.
The properties owned by the Issuer are subject to lien under an enterprise lien contract; see Note
16 to the financial statements.
Major properties (area):
-

Polypropylene-to-epichlorohydrin plant (10,000 m2)
Glycerine-to-epichlorohydrin plant (1,800 m2)
Basic polyester manufacturing plant (1,100 m2)
Modified polyester manufacturing plant (1,200 m2)
Flooring manufacturing plant (1,000 m2)
Epoxy flaking plant (1,200 m2)
Two monocrystal manufacturing plants (2,900 m2)
Electrolysis plant (13,200 m2)
Caustic lye manufacturing plant (5,300 m2)
5 distribution warehouses (5,000 m2)
3 raw material warehouses (5,600 m2)
Epichlorohydrin waste water treatment facility (800 m2)
Chemical waste water treatment facility (2,000 m2)
Biological waste water treatment facility (1,000 m2)
Spur track (24,600 m2)
Machine shops (2,800 m2)
Administrative building – office space (1,100 m2)
cafeteria (1,500 m2)

The most important machine equipment necessary for the Issuer’s activities is:
- Technology for the manufacture of epichlorohydrin (from propylene)
- Technology for the manufacture of epichlorohydrin (from glycerine)
- Technology for the manufacture of basic polyesters
- Technology for the manufacture of modified polyesters
- Technology for the manufacture of flooring
- Technology for epoxy flaking
- Electrolysis technology
- Technology for the manufacture of caustic lyes
- Technology for lye solidification
- Technology at the waste water treatment facilities
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With proper maintenance, the useful life of the above-mentioned equipment units exceeds
several decades. The only exception is the electrolysis plant, whose useful life is limited by
an operation permit. The Company plans a comprehensive replacement of the technology with
modern membrane technology.

Summary description of properties owned by the subsidiaries
SYNPO, akciová společnost
This subsidiary owns a site with an area of 18,000 m² in the cadastral area of Pardubice; the
built-up area is 5,834 m² and the remaining area – greenery – is 12,400 m². The site is located on
the periphery of the city and is surrounded by residential areas. This site is used mostly for the
company’s business purposes and only a marginal, unused portion of it is rented out,
predominantly as office space.
Outside the main site, the company owns 4 housing units with a total area of 200 m², also in the
cadastral area of Pardubice.
Major properties (area):
- Packaging warehouse (900 m²)
- Laboratory and administrative building (1,700 m²)
- Chemical warehouse, sales department (500 m²)
- Nano-research centre – labs (500 m²)
- Employee cafeteria (400 m²)
- Inflammables storage (600 m²)
EPISPOL, a. s.
The company is the owner of buildings and structures located at the Issuer’s manufacturing site
with a total built-up area of 6,000 m2. The company rents the land from the parent company.
The company’s assets are pledged to LBBW Bank CZ a.s. (formerly BAWAG Bank CZ a.s.) up
to the amount of CZK 600 million against an investment loan for the construction of a second
manufacturing plant for low molecular weight epoxy resins.
The major properties are
- Manufacturing plants 1 and 2 – two multi-storey steel structures fitted with technology for
- the manufacture of low molecular weight epoxy resins, each with a built-up area of 1,000 m2
- Control room (300 m2)
- Warehouses (2,600 m2)
- Other auxiliary structures (1,000 m2)
The most important machine equipment consists of two technological units fitted in the multistorey steel structures. As they were purchased in 2004 and 2007, respectively, a service life of
more than 50 years can be expected.
Spolpharma, s.r.o.
The company owns properties in the cadastral area of Neředín in Olomouc. This is a site with a
manufacturing plant for the production of cosmetic and dental hygiene products, storage and
handling premises and an administrative building.
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Most of the company´s machinery is on lease. This concerns filling and packing technology for
cosmetic and dental hygiene products.
Oleochem, a.s.
The company does not own any material immovable assets. It carries out business in rented
premises.
An important technology owned by the company is the plant for manufacturing fatty acids.
Usti Infrastructure s.r.o.
The company owns a spur track (siding) in the Ústí nad Labem – Střekov production site.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o., SPOLCHEMIE, a.s., CHS Resins, a.s., Bakelite Epoxy GmbH, Spolchemie
Electrolysis, a.s., SPOLCHEMIE N.V., CHS Epi, a.s. and SPOLCHEMIE (M) Sdn. Bhd. did not
own any immovable assets in the years in question.

Information on registered capital and on securities
The Company has a registered capital of CZK 1,939,408,000, which is fully paid up and divided
into 3,878,816 materialised ordinary bearer shares with a face value of CZK 500 per share.
Since 1 September 2009, the Company’s shares have been traded on the free market of the
Prague Stock Exchange again (ISIN: CZ 0005092858).
The Company’s general meeting decided to convert dematerialized shares into materialized
shares in 2007.
-

On 3 October 2007, the conversion of shares was recorded in the Commercial Register.
On 10 December 2007, the Prague Securities Centre unregistered the issues of the
Company’s dematerialized shares.
On 5 December 2007, trading in the Company’s shares was suspended at the Prague
Stock Exchange.
On 11 December 2007, the shares were excluded from trading at RMS (the last trading
day was 10 December 2007).
On 25 August 2009, the Prague Stock Exchange decided to renew trading in the
Company’s shares as of 1 September 2009.

The exchange of shares started on 3 January 2008 and will continue until the auction of
unclaimed shares. Shares are exchanged by Centrum hospodářských informací, a.s., Reg. No.
63999897, in Prague 10, K Botiči 1453/6.
An ordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7 July 2008 decided to pay a dividend
from the 2007 profit in the amount of CZK 49,831,000, i.e. CZK 14.117 per share. Pursuant to
the Commercial Code, the right to a dividend is barred by the statute of limitation after four
years. The deadline for paying dividends had elapsed on 30 November 2012. After that the
balance of a liability arising from dividends of CZK 3,564,000 was written off against equity in
2012. No dividends were paid for the years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012.
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The method of taxation for returns on securities is stipulated by Act No. 586/1992 Coll., on
income taxes; the Issuer is the taxpayer when dividends are paid out. Entitlement to dividends is
subject to limitation after the statutory period.
The Company has not issued any securities that would entitle the holder to exercise the right to
exchange them for any other participating securities or to preferential subscription of other
participating securities. Neither the Company nor any entity in which the Company has a direct
or indirect interest exceeding 50% of the entity’s registered capital or voting rights hold their
own participating securities that are not listed in a special item in the balance sheet. The
transferability of the Company’s shares is not restricted in any way. The Company has not issued
any shares to which special rights would be attached.
As at 31 December 2013, the Company was not aware of any restriction of voting rights attached
to its shares.
The Company has no information on agreements between shareholders that might result in
impeding the transferability of its shares or voting rights.
The Company is currently not a party to any contract that might become effective, changed or
terminated upon a change in the control of the Issuer due to a takeover bid.

Company´s treasury shares
The Company did not hold any treasury shares as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Number of shares among the public
As the Company has issued materialised bearer shares and as only 46% of shares were
exchanged during the exchange of the Company’s shares for new materialised registered shares
in the period from 2 May 2014 to 30 June 2014, the Company does not know the shareholder
structure as at the date of preparation of the annual report. According to the information
available to the Company, the main shareholder as at 31 December 2013 was Via Chem Group,
a.s. with its 33.12% share in the Company’s registered capital and voting rights. As since
November 2012 no shareholder has asked for a general meeting of shareholders to be convened
and as no takeover bid has been submitted, it may be assumed that the Via Chem Group, a.s. is
the controlling person of the Company.
The management of the Company has decided to extend the period for shares exchange to
31 August 2014.

Changes in the Issuer´s investments during 2012 and 2013
In 2012, the Company sold 88,044 shares of CAMPA AG in insolvency at the net book value of
CZK 0. The purchase price was CZK 1,000.
In 2012, the Company sold 112,800 shares of STZ, a.s. in bankruptcy at the net book value of
CZK 0. The purchase price was CZK 1,000.
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Other information, including an overview of the Issuer’s investments, is provided below in FS
Section VIII (3). For more details, see the Report on Relations.

Subsequent events
Upon decision of the managing director of the Prague Stock Exchange as of 17 Mach 2014, the
Company´s shares were excluded from trading at the Standard Market effective from 24
March 2014.
On 26 March 2014, the Group sold a 50% ownership interest in Usti Infrastructure s.r.o. The
purchase price was CZK 13,736,000.
On 30 April 2014, a loan agreement of CZK 810,000,000 with Poštová banka, a.s. and with
SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis, a.s. to finance the new electrolysis project.

Shareholders´ rights and obligations
Shareholders’ rights and obligations are specified in Article 6 the Company’s Articles of
Association in full compliance with the applicable provisions of the Commercial Code.

Basic scope of powers of the general meeting
A general meeting has power to:
a) Decide on amendments to the Articles of Association unless the amendment results from an
increase in the registered capital by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 210 of the
Commercial Code or from other legal facts
b) Decide on increasing or reducing the registered capital or on authorizing the Board of
Directors pursuant to Section 210 of the Commercial Code or on the possibility of setting off
a pecuniary claim against the Company against a claim for the payment of the rate of issue
c) Decide on issuing exchangeable and priority bonds pursuant to Section 160 of the
Commercial Code
d) Elect and dismiss members of the Supervisory Board other than the members of the
Supervisory Board elected and dismissed pursuant to Section 200 of the Commercial Code
e) Approve regular and extraordinary financial statements and consolidated financial
statements, as well as interim financial statements where stipulated by the law, decide on the
distribution of profits or the coverage of loss and determine the amount of director’s fees
f) Decide on remunerating members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board
g) Decide on the quotation of the Company’s participating securities pursuant to a special legal
regulation and on their withdrawal from trading on the official market
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h) Decide to dissolve and liquidate the Company, appoint and dismiss a liquidator, determine
the liquidator’s fee and approve the proposed distribution of the liquidation balance
i) Decide on a merger, transfer of assets to a sole shareholder or division, or on changing the
legal form, unless the Commercial Code stipulates that the Board of Director’s decision is
sufficient for such a transformation
j) Approve contracts specified in Section 67a of the Commercial Code
k) Approve a control contract pursuant to Article 190b of the Commercial Code, a profit
transfer contract pursuant to Article 190a of the Commercial Code or a silent partnership
contract, as well as any amendments thereto
l) Make decisions on any other issues that the Commercial Code or the Articles of Association
include in the powers of a general meeting
m) Appoint and remove members of the Audit Committee
Decision-making process:
A general meeting is quorate if the present shareholders hold shares with a nominal value
exceeding 40% of the Company’s registered capital. If the general meeting is not quorate, the
Board of Directors shall convene a substitute general meeting. The Board of Directors shall
convene the substitute general meeting by an announcement following the procedure specified in
Article 42 of the Articles of Association, with the period of time specified in Article 10(2) of the
Articles of Association reduced to 15 days. The announcement of the general meeting must be
published no later than 15 days within the date on which the original general meeting was
convened. The substitute general meeting must take place within six weeks of the date on which
the original general meeting was convened. The general meeting may only take a decision on an
issue that was not specified in the notified agenda if all shareholders are present and they
unanimously agree to discuss such matter. Each share with a face value of CZK 500 represents
one vote. The general meeting shall take decisions by a majority vote of the present shareholders
unless the Commercial Code requires a different majority vote. Decision-making at a general
meeting is done by voting. Individual issues are voted on in voting rounds. Voting is performed
using voting papers. A single voting paper (in a single voting round) is used to vote on all issues
presented on the individual lines of the voting paper. Computer technology may be used to
evaluate votes. Before voting is started, the chairperson of the general meeting shall announce
which supplementary proposals they have received concerning the issue in question and what the
proposals are. Proposals presented by the Board of Directors and/or the Supervisory Board are
voted on first. If the proposal of the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board does not pass, other
proposals are voted on in the order in which they were presented until a proposal passes.
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2.

Information on activities

The Issuer is a manufacturing company producing more than 300 inorganic chemicals, synthetic
resins and, in some fields, special chemical products. The products are sold mainly as
intermediary products for various other industries and are used in virtually all branches of
industrial activity, such as the construction industry, mechanical engineering, electrical
engineering, water treatment, food industry, pharmaceutical industry and paper industry.
Range of products by sector
Basic inorganic chemicals:
- Sodium hydroxide (caustic soda) and potassium hydroxide (caustic potash)
- Sodium hypochlorite, hydrochloric acid
- Epichlorohydrin, perchloroethylene, allyl chloride
Resins and organic chemical products:
- Basic and modified low, medium and high molecular weight epoxy resins and non-saturated
polyesters
- Alkyd resins, colophony varnish resins
- Systems for the construction industry (flooring, paint systems, bonding primers, adhesives)
- Resin compositions for use in electrical engineering and consumer industry
Research and development
The Company conducts research and development mainly in synthetic resins used for the
manufacture of composites, electrical insulating materials, adhesives and paints.
Branches
The Issuer has no branch that would make up at least 10% of its total turnover or the production
or services provided by the Issuer and reside outside the Issuer’s registered place of business.
Information about legal disputes
The Group is not involved in any dispute that might result in a significant obligation. Common
obligations resulting from legal disputes are listed in the balance sheet.
Investments made by the Group
Investments are described in detail in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
Information about major future investments other than financial investments
The Group considerably reduced its investment activities in 2009 to 2013 in order to achieve
better financial stability. The reduction will continue for most of 2014, except for minor
necessary investments, while the Group will only proceed with the decontamination of site
subsoil, which started in 2005, and prepare the construction of a new membrane electrolysis
plant and related investments.
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Name of activity
Years of execution
Site subsoil decontamination
(financed by the Czech Ministry of Finance)
2004 – 2018
New membrane electrolysis plant and related activities
2007 – 2015

CZK million
435
1,024

Significant newly introduced products and services
No significant products and services were newly introduced in 2013.

Information about the new product/process research and development policy
The Group conducts research and development activities every year (for the money spent, see
Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements). The Company’s research and development in
the previous year focused mainly on synthetic resins, which the Company considers its main line
of business.
The Issuer is not dependent on any patents or licenses that would be crucial for its activity and
profitability.

Information about sales
See Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Information about environmental activities
For information about environmental activities, see the Board of Directors’ Report on the
Company’s Business Activities and Assets, which is included in this Report, and in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Information about employees and labour relations
The Company is aware that human resources are one of the most important factors available to
the Company. Therefore, it strives to continually improve its incentive scheme to stimulate its
employees’ performance.
The Company also cares about its employees’ health, education and personal development and
satisfaction of social needs resulting from the collective bargaining agreement.
The Company provides its employees with certain benefits such as an extra week of holiday
beyond the statutory minimum required by the Labour Code, contributions to contributory
pension schemes, on-site meals and a retirement bonus.
The Company cares about the professional and personal development of its employees and
creates conditions for the development. Employees attended accredited courses, seminars and
lectures concerning their expertise.
At the beginning of each year the Company prepares a strategy for development of its
employees throughout the year. This strategy is then developed into individual and group
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educational programmes, which are in line with the Company’s strategy and employees‘
requirements.

a) Financing of education
A total amount of TCZK 2,000 was planned for employee education and training in 2013.
TCZK 1,269 was actually drawn at year-end. Total expenses for education and training
amounted to 63.45% of the planned annual budget. Savings were primarily due to the continued
subsidy project „Education for competitiveness in the chemical industry in the Czech Republic“
managed by the Association of the Chemical Industry of the Czech Republic. The project was
terminated at year-end and the Company drew in total TCZK 1,600 for the period April 2011 –
November 2013. In the second half of the year, the manner of financing the language courses
changed. A part of the Company´s employees co-funded these courses.

b) Education through subsidies
Within the „Education for competitiveness in the chemical industry in the Czech Republic“
project, the Company´s employees were trained in the following areas:
•

•

•
•

•

Legislation in chemical industry
- Implementation of Regulation No. 1907/2006 (REACH) and Technical Guidance
- Risk assessment in chemical industry
- New HSE legislation
Sustainable development and corporate social responsibility of companies operating in the
chemical industry
- Instructors and verifiers
- IRCA EMS – integrated control systems
- social responsibility
Other technical training
- Logistics in chemical industry
Interpersonal skills
- Presentation and communication skills
- Motivation and team cooperation
Language skills
- management English, business English, chemical industry and REACH terminology

A proportionate part of the allocated subsidy was used for soft skills training (team work and
cooperation, communication, assertivity, coaching) of employees participating in the internal
educational Talent management programme for the key employees.

c) Language courses
In 2013, the Company continued with the educational incentive scheme involving group and
individual English language courses focusing on employees that need to master English for their
work to pass a Cambridge exam at the level of Preliminary English Test (PET) and First
Certificate in English (FCE). The employees holding a Cambridge certificate could use the
opportunity to attend Conversational English courses held once a week. Language training was
19
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provided in collaboration with the Skřivánek s.r.o. and J-SERVICE s.r.o. language schools. The
group and individual courses were attended by a total of 81 employees.

d) Educational programmes
The Talent management programme, designed for employees with potential for further
personal and professional development, was in process according to the plan for a second year
already. Employees participated in group interactive educational activities focusing on soft skills
– development of personal skills aimed at leadership and effectiveness enhancement, motivation
and team cooperation, communication and presentation skills.
In 2013, employees working as trade representatives were trained within the Sales 2013
programme. The objective of the programme was to enhance their self-confidence, selfassurance and success in selling and to teach them how to better work on their personal
development and their personal attitude in order to be more convincing in the selling process.
The training was also aimed at leading sales conversations and at various situations from the
daily practice of sales representatives. 14 course participants had four training sessions in course
of five months and in February 2014 one more review session will follow.

e) Continuous technical training
Continuous training involves technical training required by law resulting in an exam and a
certificate issued by the educational institution which prepares the course or in an attendance list
if the course is held by an internal lector. In 2013, employees attended courses relating to Decree
No. 50/78 Coll.; small trucks; welding; servicing of lifts, cranes and loads; servicing of pressure
and gas containers; company fire brigade training; training of employees dealing with motor
vehicles; occupational health and safety and fire protection; and other areas required by law.

f) Short-term attachments abroad
In terms of enhancing and extending the employees´ skills and capabilities, the Company has
started providing them with the option to go for a short-term attachment (placement) abroad. In
the second half of 2013, one employee who had successfully passed the Talent management
course went on a two-month attachment to the United Kingdom. This employee first attended a
two-week preparatory language course in the UK and then was placed in the host company for
six weeks. The objective of this short-term attachment was to gain new work opportunities and
mainly to enhance the employee´s language skills.

g) Assessment of educational programmes
The attendants of the languages courses and other trainings can always provide their feedback on
the contents and quality of the relevant training/course. The assessment questionnaires are
always prepared by the relevant supplier of the training/course and after having processed them,
he provides the questionnaires to the HR department for the purpose of keeping relevant records
and for further use. The objective of assessing the educational programmes is primarily to
enhance the level and effectiveness of the follow-up trainings and courses.
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Number and structure of the Issuer´s employees
2013

2012

2011

519
641
54
465
352
167

706
702
128
578
475
231

709
737
126
583
480
229

2013
76
177
232
34

2012
103
268
284
51

2011
96
273
296
44

Inorganics
Resins
Other

2013
92
144
283

2012
181
92
433

2011
315
83
311

Company´s management
Human Resources Department
Project Department
Finance Department
Supply Chain Department
Production Department
Sales Department

2013
4
2
4
1
14
446
48

2012
4
2
1
1
16
635
47

Registered number of employees
as at 31 December
Average registered number of employees
Of which - women
- men
Of which - workers
- engineers
Educational structure (Qualification)
University degree
Secondary school degree/college degree
Vocational training
Primary education

Issuer´s employee structure by manufacturing department

Registered number of employees in other companies of the Group
2013
37
88
127
105
11
79
129
2

EPISPOL, a.s.
CHS Epi, a.s.
SYNPO, akciová společnost
Spolpharma, s.r.o.
Spolchemie, a. s.
Oleochem, a.s.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
Usti Infrastructure s.r.o.
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2012
41
0
124
102
11
99
8
35

2011
43
0
119
141
0
98
52
0
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CHS Resins, a.s., Bakelite Epoxy GmbH, Spolchemie Electrolysis, a.s., SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
and SPOLCHEMIE (M) SdnBhd had no employees in the relevant years.
Due to the form of shares, the Issuer is not aware of the level of employees´ participation in the
Issuer´s capital.
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3.

Information about the Company´s assets and financial position

Expected economic and financial position in 2014
Company´s performance in 2014:
- Sales of CZK 5,442 million
- Depreciation of CZK 159 million
- Profit totalling CZK 25 million
This data is based on the Company’s prepared budget for the year 2014. Management of the
Company as of the date of preparing this annual report evaluates the assumptions used in the
preparation of the budget as realistic and believes that the budget will be maintained.
Consolidated group performance in 2014:
- Sales of CZK 6,616 million
- Depreciation of CZK 265 million
- Profit totalling CZK 95 million
Development strategy:
- Concentrating on preparations for the construction of a membrane electrolysis plant
Sales:
- Further expanding the portfolio of customers for epoxy resins
- Continuing with strategic cooperation with major manufacturers of polyesters, alkyds and
epoxy
Improving environmental and safety parameters:
- Fulfilling the principles of the “Safe Enterprise” programme
- Decontaminating site subsoil
Developing production from renewable sources, especially in the manufacture of epoxy resins on
the basis of epichlorohydrin from glycerine

Description of development in financial situation
See the Board of Directors’ Report

Factors that significantly affected operating profit
See the Board of Directors’ Report

Significant events in the Issuer’s business activities
See the Board of Directors’ Report
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Changes in equity
Included in the statement of changes in equity in the consolidated and non-consolidated financial
statements.

Statement of changes in loans received
See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Information about capital sources and the Issuer’s financing structure
See the statement of changes in equity and Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Information about restriction on the use of capital sources
There are no restrictions on the use of the Issuer’s capital sources.

Information on all state, judicial or arbitration proceedings during the financial year
The Company declares that there were no state, judicial or arbitration proceedings that might
have or recently had a significant effect on the financial situation or profitability of the Company
or the Group in the reporting period.

Significant contracts
On 29 June 2012, the parent company and Epispol, a.s. entered into a stabilisation contract with
three bank creditors with restricted validity until 30 June 2017, which completed the process of
re-financing. This contract determines the due dates and terms and conditions of the loans over
the period of its effectiveness.

Main risk factors in the Company’s financial management
The Group exported 86% of its production in 2013 (2012: 85%). A great risk factor in the
Company’s financial management is the exchange rate risk. The Group utilises a natural way of
protection against exchange rate risk by increasing the share of expenses in foreign currencies.
A description of financial risks is provided below in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Information about entities in which the Issuer has direct or indirect interest of at least 10% of the
Issuer’s equity or 10% of the Issuer’s net profit/loss

EPISPOL, a.s.
with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, Reg. No. 25449842, whose
main line of business is the manufacture and import of chemical substances and preparations.
Equity is CZK 300,000,000; the Issuer’s share is 90%.

SYNPO, akciová společnost
with its registered office in Pardubice, S.K. Neumanna 1316, Reg. No. 46504711, whose main
line of business is research, development and construction in chemistry and chemical
technology, chemical production other than poisons, corrosives, soaps and cosmetics and
analytical assays and evaluations of chemical substances. Equity is CZK 51,071,000; the
Issuer’s share is 100%.

Spolpharma, s.r.o.
with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode 400 01, Reg. No.
27287149; the main line of business is the manufacture and import of chemical substances and
preparations. Equity is CZK 1,000,000, the Issuer’s share is 100%.

SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.
with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930, postcode 400 32, Reg. No.
25006223; the main line of business is the manufacture of chemical substances and preparations.
Equity is CZK 1,000,000, the Issuer’s share is 100%.

Oleochem, a.s.
with its registered office in Prague 2, Vinohrady, Anglická 140/20, postcode 120 00, Reg. No.
28361806; the main line of business is manufacturing, trading and services not listed in
Appendices 1 to 3 to the Trade Act. Equity is CZK 82,000,000; the Issuer’s share is 100%.

INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode 400 32, Reg. No.
27918131; the main line of business is manufacturing, trading and services not listed in
Appendices 1 to 3 to the Trade Act, activities in fire protection and in occupational health and
safety. Equity is CZK 61,927,000; the Issuer’s share is 100%.

CHS Resins, a.s.
with its registered office in Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, postcode 400 32, Reg. No.
28207866; the main line of business is the rental of properties. Equity is CZK 2,000,000; the
Issuer’s share is 100%.
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Other information on the above companies can be found in Note 8 to the non-consolidated
financial statements.

Securities
Information about transferable securities in the form of shares is provided in Note 12 to the nonconsolidated financial statements. In addition to these, the Company owns bonds worth CZK
6,388,000. Those are securities for trading.
The conditions under which all securities owned by the Company can be transferred or
exchanged are not restricted.
Profit/loss from the Issuer’s ordinary activities after tax per share and amount of dividend per
share (in CZK)
Profit/loss from ordinary activities after tax per share
Dividend per share
Consolidated profit/loss from ordinary activities after tax per share

2013
-54.1
0
-56.5

2012
-45.0
0
-50.1

2011
48.0
0
18.9

Remuneration charged in the financial year by the statutory auditor and other economic advisers
(in TCZK):

Issuer
SYNPO, akciová společnost
EPISPOL, a.s.
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.
Spolpharma, s.r.o.
Oleochem, a.s.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o
CHS Resins, a.s.
Bakelite Epoxy GmbH
SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis, a.s.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
SPOLCHEMIE (M) SdnBhd
CHS Epi, a.s.
Usti Infrastructure s.r.o.
Total

Statutory audit
2013
2012
2 441
2 695
150
180
306
272
0
44
260
482
400
550
40
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
154
0
3 751
4 223
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Tax advisory
services
2013
2012
264
813
23
40
0
57
0
209
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
287
1 119

Audit of integrated
management system
ISO 9001, 14001 and 18001
2013
60
80
60
13
0
31
60
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
304

2012
109
102
0
0
0
44
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
255
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4.

Information about the Issuer’s statutory and supervisory bodies

Board of Directors
Ing. Jan Šrubař
Ing. Jan Schmidt
Ing. Mgr. Ivo Hala
Prof. Ing. Bohuslav Doležal, CSc.

chairman
vice-chairman
vice-chairman
member

The current term of office of the following board members will end on the following dates:
Ing. Jan Šrubař - on 5 November 2017
Ing. Jan Schmidt – on 5 November 2017
Ing. Mgr. Ivo Hala – on 5 November 2017
Prof Ing. Bohuslav Doležal, CSc. – on 5 November 2017

The Board of Directors is quorate if an absolute majority of its members are present. A
resolution needs approval by a majority of the members present to be adopted. In case of
urgency, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors may initiate the adoption of a
resolution per rollam by asking all members of the Board of Directors in writing, by telex or by
fax. Such a resolution is valid if all members of the Board of Directors agree with it. Such a per
rollam resolution must be recorded in the minutes at the forthcoming meeting of the Board of
Directors.

Changes in the Board of Directors in 2013
In 2013, no changes were made to the structure of the Company’s Board of Directors.
Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, members of the Board of Directors are
elected by the Company’s General Meeting. The term of office of the Board of Directors is five
years. Re-election of a member of the Board of Directors is allowed. Any member of the Board
of Directors may be dismissed by the General Meeting during their term.
Any member of the Board of Directors may resign from their position on the Board at any time.

Members of the Board of Directors
Ing. Jan Šrubař, born 5 February 1949
Graduated from the University of Agriculture, Faculty of Business and Economics in Prague. He
is a member of the statutory bodies of several financial and investment firms and the owner and
director of Prague Building Investments s.r.o. He currently holds the office of chairman of the
Board of Directors.
Ing. Jan Schmidt, born 26 August 1940
Studied automation of manufacturing processes at the Czech Technical University in Prague. He
was employed in Sklo Union and Spolchemie in 1965-1986 and in the Investment Bank in Ústí
nad Labem from 1986. As a Member of Parliament for the Civic Forum, he was elected mayor of
the city in March 1990 and held the office until 1994. He gathered extensive experience as a
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member of the supervisory bodies of trading companies. He currently holds the office of vicechairman of the Board of Directors.
Ing. Mgr. Ivo Hala, born 30 May 1974
Graduated from the Faculty of Law of the Charles University in Prague and University of
Economics, Prague. He is registered in the list of attorneys kept by the Czech Bar Chamber. He
primarily specialises in corporate law and disputes associated with the Commercial Code. Owing
to his education, he is able to evaluate both legal and economic aspects of transactions. He
currently holds the office of vice-chairman of the Board of Directors.
Prof. Ing. Bohuslav Doležal, CSc., born 28 April 1952
Graduated from the Institute of Chemical Technology, specializing in analytical and physical
chemistry. He held the position of director in the pharmaceutical industry for several years.
Today he is chairman of the Supervisory Board of Via Chem Group, serving also as the
Company’s research and development coordinator. He worked in the Company as Innovation
Centre Manager until 30 April 2009 and today holds the position of a Specialist.
Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors for their services totalled TCZK 1,080 in
2013. No payments in kind were provided to members of the Board of Directors.

Supervisory Board
Ing. Martin Procházka
Ing. Pavel Jiroušek
JUDr. Petr Sisák
Ing. Milan Točina
Ivana Mráčková

chairman
vice-chairman
member
member
member

The current term of office of the following board members will end on the following dates:
Ing. Martin Procházka – on 14 March 2016
Ing. Pavel Jiroušek – on 14 March 2016
JUDr. Petr Sisák – on 5 November 2017
Ing. Milan Točina - on 5 November 2017
Ivana Mráčková – on 31 January 2014

Changes in the Supervisory Board in 2013
On 18 February 2013, Ing. Jaroslav Rýdl and Ivana Mráčková were elected members of the
Supervisory Board. The membership of Ing. Jaroslav Rýdl terminated on 30 November 2013.
The Supervisory Board is quorate if an absolute majority of its members are present at its
meeting. The Supervisory Board takes decisions on the basis of approval by a majority of the
members present. Each member of the Supervisory Board has one vote. In the event of an equal
number of votes, the chairman has a casting vote. In case of urgency, the Chairman or ViceChairman of the Supervisory Board may initiate the adoption of a resolution per rollam by
asking all members of the Supervisory Board in writing, by telex or by fax. Such a resolution is
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valid if all members of the Supervisory Board agree with it. A per rollam resolution must be
recorded in the minutes at the forthcoming meeting of the Supervisory Board.
The term of office of members of the Supervisory Board is five years. Re-election of a member
of the Supervisory Board is allowed. Any member of the Supervisory Board may be dismissed
by the General Meeting during their term. Members of the Supervisory Board elected by the
General Meeting may be dismissed by the General Meeting; members of the Supervisory Board
elected by the Company’s employees may be dismissed by the Company’s employees. Any
member of the Supervisory Board may resign from their position at any time.

Members of the Supervisory Board
Ing. Martin Procházka, born 26 January 1968
Graduated from the Czech Technical University, Faculty of Electrical Engineering in Prague. He
joined the Company after graduation in 1991 and held a number of positions in the finance
department (controller, assistant to the finance director, head of a sub-department, head of a
department, manager, director). Served as CEO from 1 July 2002 to 17 August 2009.
Since 6 November 2012 he has been holding a position of the Company’s Executive Director for
Operation and Sales.
Ing. Pavel Jiroušek, born 10 August 1970
Graduated in system management from the Technical University in Prague. He has worked as a
freelance management and economic adviser since 1991. He serves in the statutory bodies of
several financial firms and he is director of CSS, a.s.
JUDr. Petr Sisák, born 31 August 1967
Graduated from the Faculty of Law of the Charles University in Prague. He held several
management positions in banks, having extensive experience in banking law and acquisitions.
He also worked as attorney for several years. He specialises in law of securities and insolvency.
Since 6 November 2012 he has held the position of the Company’s Executive Director for Group
Strategy and Management.
Ing. Milan Točina, born 21 August 1957
Graduated from the Faculty of Economics and Management of the University of Life Sciences
Prague. He held a number of management positions in banks and insurance companies. He is
currently fully involved in the insurance business. He also holds the position of chairman of the
board of directors of EGIDA a.s.
Ivana Mráčková, born 17 April 1967
Graduated from the High School of Business Administration in Ústí nad Labem. For several
years, she worked as a sales executive. In 1992, she joined the Company as an administrative
employee. Since 1994, she has been working in the Transport department of the Company as
technical/office staff responsible for transportation.
Remuneration to members of the Supervisory Board for their services totalled TCZK 1,400 in
2013. No payments in kind were provided to the members of the Supervisory Board.
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The Company has no special rules concerning the election and dismissal of members of the
statutory body or amendments to the Articles of Association at the moment.
Special powers held by members of the statutory bodies include the power to:
1) Exercise the employer’s rights, in particular to appoint and dismiss the CEO, specify the
CEO’s powers and salary, supervise the CEO’s activities in line with the Articles of
Association and appoint, dismiss and specify the salary of managers specified in Section
27(5) of the Labour Code.
Information about members of management
Members of “Company Management” mean individuals in managerial positions who are
responsible for the individual departments (according to the Company´s organisational structure
shown in Part III of the Auditor´s Report on Audit of Financial Statements and the financial
statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as at
31 December 2013, part VI General information ) rather than individuals with executive powers.
However, a person can be both a member of the Company Management and someone with
executive powers as mentioned above in the Text Part of the Annual Report.
Company Management
JUDr. Petr Sisák
Ing. Martin Procházka
Ing. Petr Hetto
RNDr. Alexej Vítek
Ing. Jaromír Florián
Aksel Gorm Jensen
Ing. Jan Dlouhý, CSc.
PhDr. Paul Yianni

- Executive Director for Group Strategy and Management
- Executive Director for Operations and Sales
- HR Director
- Project Director
- Finance Director
- Supply Chain Director
- Production Director
- Sales Director

JUDr. Petr Sisák, born 31 August 1967 – see “Members of the Supervisory Board”
Ing. Martin Procházka, born 26 January 1968 – see “Members of the Supervisory Board”
PhDr. Paul Antony Yianni, born 16 January 1959
Graduated from the University of Reading. He successfully passed his chemistry and geology
finals at the same university. Before working for the Company, he was employed by Shell
Chemicals in the United Kingdom, Belgium, Hong Kong and the Netherlands, working as a
manager in research, development, resin sales, marketing and as sales director. From 25 October
2004 he was the Company’s Director for Resins and CEO from 1 January 2011 to 5 November
2012. Until June 2013, he held the position of Sales Director.
Ing. Jan Dlouhý, CSc., born 17 March 1965
Graduated in Machinery and Equipment for the Construction and Ore Dressing Industries at the
Czech Technical University in Prague in 1988. In 1994, he received the “candidate of technical
sciences” degree in Construction Transportation, Machinery and Equipment from the Czech
Technical University in Prague. He joined the Company in March 1993. As early as in January
1994, he was appointed Manager of Logistics. During his career in the Company, he held several
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positions in senior management, from Sales Director to Director of Infrastructure. After a short
break, he returned to the Company as Director of Infrastructure in September 2011. He currently
holds a position of Production Director.
Ing. Petr Hetto, born 5 April 1960
Graduated from the University of Economics in Prague. After graduation in 1983, he joined the
Company as an independent sales officer. He also worked as an investment construction officer,
held a number of positions in the finance department (chief specialist controller, head of the
production planning sub-department, head of the planning department, head of the department of
economic information, head of the accounts department, deputy director, finance director,
manager). He was Director of Administration from 1 July 2002. From 1 March 2008, he was
head of the Finance department and designated deputy to the CEO. He has served as Director of
Human Resources since January 2011.
Ing. Jaromír Florián, born 16 June 1975
Graduated from the Faculty of Economics of the Jan Evangelista Purkyne University,
specialisation economics and management. He also studied at the University of Leicester in
Great Britain. He began his professional career in Deloitte & Touche. Since then he has always
worked in the field of economics and finance. He is a Chartered Certified Accountant. He
currently holds the position of Finance Director.
Aksel Gorm Jensen, born 22 October 1962
Graduated from Aalborg Handelsskole, Denmark with a BA in International Marketing. Before
joining the Company, he worked in many leading worldwide companies engaged in the sales and
manufacture of chemicals. He has many years of experience in international trade, especially in
Brazil, India, the Middle East and China. He was appointed Director of Commodities in May
2011. Currently he holds the position of Supply Chain Director.
RNDr. Alexej Vítek, born 20 November 1952
Graduated in analytical chemistry at the Faculty of Science of the Charles University in Prague.
He started his professional career working for uranium mines. In 1982, he joined Spolek pro
chemickou a hutní výrobu in Ústí nad Labem for the first time. Similarly as in his later
employments in the Czech Republic and abroad, he held a number of expert positions of a
technologist or process engineer. He also held several managerial positions. Currently he holds
the position of the Project Director responsible for projects realised by Spolek pro chemickou a
hutní výrobu, akciová společnost.
The monetary income (payroll cost) of the Company Management was TCZK 13,554 in 2013.
Payments in kind for the Company Management were TCZK 0 in 2013.
The Issuer is obliged by management contracts to provide performance to two of the above
members of the Company Management in the event of employment termination, amounting to 6
times their monthly salary. These obligations arise from the agreed non-compete clause.

Basic principles of remuneration for members of the Board and Company Management
An ordinary general meeting held on 29 April 2005 approved a fixed monthly component of
remuneration for members of the Company’s Supervisory Board and Board of Directors and a
variable component of remuneration for members of the Board of Directors depending on the
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Company’s performance. The variable component is an optional component of remuneration for
the Board of Directors.
The indicator is the Company’s operating profit/loss:
Failure ……………………........…. 0% of planned remuneration
Fulfilment ……………………….. 50% of planned remuneration
Exceeding by 20% ………....….. 100% of planned remuneration
For a specific fiscal year, the Board of Directors monitors the achievement of individual
departments’ goals quantified in the annual plan. Based on the achievement of the goals and after
approval of the annual financial statements by an auditor, the Board of Directors approves the
final amount of annual remuneration for specific members of Company Management. The goal
set for the members of Company Management is a level of profit of the department or the
Company.

Group´s work contracts with members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
As at 31 December 2013, the Company had concluded work contracts with three members of the
Supervisory Board and one member of the Board of Directors of the Issuer. The contracts do not
include any benefits in the event of employment termination.
Statement of the monetary income of and payments in kind to members of company bodies and
management
The members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and Company Management did not
receive any payments in kind in 2013.
Monetary income
Group of individuals
from the Issuer
in TCZK
Members of the Supervisory Board
1 400
Members of the Board of Directors
1 080
Management *
13 554

Monetaryincome from entities
controlled by the Issuer
in TCZK
0
731
141

* This amount does not include income after employment termination arising from non-compete clauses in
management contracts.

Information about the number of the Issuer´s shares held by the Company´s bodies and
management
No members of the statutory body and supervisory body and other entities with executive powers
or persons related to them hold any of the Company’s shares and options or any other investment
instruments with value linked to the Issuer’s shares.
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Loans, credits, acquisition of shares in relation to members of statutory bodies
No loans or credits were granted to any members of the Company’s statutory and supervisory
bodies or any other members of the Company Management.
In compliance with Section 158 of the Commercial Code, the Issuer’s Articles of Association do
not specify that employees may acquire the Company’s shares under preferential conditions.

Description of dividend policy
Because of the stabilisation processes that are underway, especially in the parent company, the
Group has not defined any dividend policy. No dividend was paid in the parent company for
2010, 2011, and 2012 and no proposal for distribution of dividend for 2013 will be submitted to
the General Meeting.

Description of measures taken to prevent the main shareholder´s abuse of control
Ownership interests (shares) held in the registered capital entitle all shareholders to exercise their
voting rights at general meetings. As at 31 December 2013, the Company was controlled by Via
Chem Group, a.s. The main shareholder exercises its rights only at the Company´s general
meetings, to the extent corresponding to the ownership interest (share) it holds. Therefore, it was
not necessary to take any measures beyond the scope of applicable legislation to prevent the
main shareholder´s abuse of control.

Significant activities of individuals with executive powers outside the Issuer
Individuals with executive powers do not engage in any activities outside the Issuer that would
be significant to the Issuer.

Ing. Martin Procházka
Name of entity:
CHS Resins, a.s.

Novoveská 1580/82, Střekov, 400 03 Ústí nad Labem
File reference
Reg. No.: Engagement
B 1991 kept by the Regional
28207866 Statutory body - member of the
Court in Ústí nad Labem
board of directors

CHS Epi, a.s.

B 2017 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207882 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

Via Chem Slovakia, a.s. B 2002 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28361881 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

ENERGOCHEMICA SE

24198099 Supervisory board- member of
the supervisory board

H 502 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

Spolek pro chemickou B 47 kept by the Regional Court
a hutní výrobu, akciová in Ústí nad Labem
společnost
SYNPO, akciová
společnost

00011789 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

B 627 kept by the Regional Court 46504711 Statutory body – vice-chairman
in Hradec Králové
of the board of directors
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Trio leasing, spol. s r.o. C 10968 kept by the Regional
v likvidaci
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25005677 Shareholder

SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.

B 899 kept by the Regional Court 25006223 Statutory body - chairman of the
in Ústí nad Labem
board of directors

STZ a.s. v konkursu

B 1686 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

27294099 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

EPISPOL, a.s.

B 1426 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25449842 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

SPOLCHEMIE
Electrolysis a.s.

B 2227 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

29200181 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

Ing. Pavel Jiroušek
Name of entity:
METRENIA, a.s.

Brandýsek, K Třebusicům 389, post code 273 41
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 13109 kept by the Municipal
28206096 Statutory body - member of the
Court in Prague
board of directors

METRENIA, a.s.

B 13109 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

28206096 Sole shareholder

CHS Resins, a.s.

B 1991 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207866 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

Oleochem, a.s.

B 14109 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

28361806 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

Via Chem Slovakia, a.s. B 2002 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28361881 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

CSS, a.s.

28963661 Statutory body – vice-chairman
of the board of directors

B 2123 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

Spolek pro chemickou B 47 kept by the Regional Court
a hutní výrobu, akciová in Ústí nad Labem
společnost

00011789 Supervisory board - vicechairman of the supervisory
board

ZB holding, a.s.

B 1926 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

47116862 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.

B 899 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25006223 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

ROGER - service, a.s.

B 1657 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

27284999 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

EPISPOL, a.s.

B 1426 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25449842 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

SWBC - úklid, a.s.

B 7833 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26716461 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

ROGER - security, a.s.

B 1505 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25473476 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

SPOLCHEMIE
Electrolysis a.s.

B 2227 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

29200181 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board

SWBC - service, a.s.

B 9763 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

27213455 Supervisory board - chairman of
the supervisory board
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JUDr. Petr Sisák
Name of entity:
Společenství vlastníků
jednotek ul.
Náprstkova čp. 215/9
Praha 1
ENERGOCHEMICA SE

3040 San Giljan, Paceville, Triq il-Knisja 1721, Malta
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
S 6486 kept by the Municipal
27429075 Statutory body – committee
Court in Prague
member

H 502 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

24198099 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

Spolek pro chemickou B 47 kept by the Regional Court
a hutní výrobu, akciová in Ústí nad Labem
společnost

00011789 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

MONTE BRAVIA, a.s.

B 13123 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

28206878 Sole shareholder

Ing. Milan Točina
Name of entity:
STZ Development, a.s.

Libochovice, Fügnerova 674, post code 411 17
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 1801 kept by the Regional
27904202 Supervisory board - chairman of
Court in Ústí nad Labem
the supervisory board

CHS Epi, a.s.

B 2017 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207882 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

Via Chem Slovakia, a.s. B 2002 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28361881 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

Spolek pro chemickou B 47 kept by the Regional Court
a hutní výrobu, akciová in Ústí nad Labem
společnost

00011789 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

EGIDA, a.s.

B 12573 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

64259625 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

Žernosecké vinařství
s.r.o.

C 8813 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

62741861 Statutory body - jednatel

Žernosecké vinařství
s.r.o.

C 8813 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

62741861 Shareholder

CCL TOUR AND
TRADE,spol.s r.o.

C 9587 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

45276412 Statutory body – statutory
representative

TOKUS spol. s r.o.

C 83809 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26461501 Statutory body – statutory
representative

TOKUS spol. s r.o.

C 83809 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26461501 Shareholder
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Ing. Jan Šrubař
Name of entity:
B-Efekt a.s.

Na Dolíček 46, Všešímy, 251 64 Kunice
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 9960 kept by the Municipal
27245888 Statutory body - chairman of the
Court in Prague
board of directors

INFRASPOL, s.r.o.

C 26871 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

27918131 Statutory body – statutory
representative

CHS Epi, a.s.

B 2017 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207882 Statutory body - chairman of the
supervisory board

D-Efekt, a.s.

B 13065 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

28204883 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

Usti Infrastructure
s.r.o.

C 30980 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

24843245 Statutory body - statutory
representative

Spolek pro chemickou a B 47 kept by the Regional Court
hutní výrobu, akciová
in Ústí nad Labem
společnost

00011789 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

UT INVEST a.s.

B 563 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

60281073 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

M-Best, a.s.

B 3975 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

61673358 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

Q - Efekt a.s.

B 3017 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

63078040 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

CCL TOUR AND
TRADE,spol.s r.o.

C 9587 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

45276412 Statutory body - statutory
representative

ČESKÝ OLEJ, a.s.

B 5697 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

25720546 Statutory body – vice-chairman
of the board of directors

ENERGO SOURCE
ALLIANCE a.s. "v
likvidaci"

B 8281 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26256509 Supervisory board- member of
the supervisory board

EURO CAPITAL
ALLIANCE a.s.

B 7374 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26484919 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

Prague Building
Investments s.r.o.

C 89353 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26718391 Statutory body - statutory
representative

Prague Building
Investments s.r.o.

C 89353 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

26718391 Shareholder

SPOLCHEMIE
Electrolysis a.s.

B 2227 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

29200181 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

PhDr. Paul Antony Yianni
Name of entity:
EPISPOL, a.s.

Ústí nad Labem, Krajní 5, post code 400 00
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 1426 kept by the Regional
25449842 Statutory body - member of
Court in Ústí nad Labem
the board of directors
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Ing. Jan Schmidt
Name of entity:
STZ Development, a.s.

Ústí nad Labem, Dukelských hrdinů 544/27, post code 400 01
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 1801 kept by the Regional
27904202 Supervisory board - member of
Court in Ústí nad Labem
the supervisory board

CHS Resins, a.s.

B 1991 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207866 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

CHS Epi, a.s.

B 2017 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207882 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

Spolek pro chemickou B 47 kept by the Regional Court 00011789 Statutory body – vice-chairman
a hutní výrobu, akciová in Ústí nad Labem
of the board of directors
společnost
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.

B 899 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25006223 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

STZ a.s. v konkursu

B 1686 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

27294099 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

EPISPOL, a.s.

B 1426 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25449842 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

SPOLCHEMIE
Electrolysis a.s.

B 2227 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

29200181 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

Prof. Ing. Bohuslav
Doležal, CSc.
Name of entity:
CHemProtect, a.s.

Praha 4, Kropáčkova 563/14,
post code 149 00
File reference:
B 13841 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

Reg. no.: Engagement:
28225341 Statutory body – vice-chairman
of the board of directors

CSC Medical s.r.o.

C 165289 kept by the Municipal 24676021 Statutory body – statutory
Court in Prague
representative

Spolek pro chemickou a B 47 kept by the Regional Court 00011789 Statutory body - member of the
hutní výrobu, akciová
in Ústí nad Labem
board of directors
společnost
VAKOS XT a.s.

B 5291 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

25656180 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors

VAKOS XT a.s.

B 5291 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

25656180 Sole shareholder

AG SCALA a.s.

B 5867 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

25751093 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

TAXCOM, spol. s r.o.

C 21182 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

49615467 Shareholder

Via Chem Group, a.s.
insolvency proceedings
have been initiated

B 2180 kept by the Regional
Court in České Budějovice

26694590 Supervisory board- chairman of
the supervisory board

RE-play CZ, a.s.

B 2634 kept by the Regional
Court in Hradec Králové

27523349 Statutory body - chairman of the
board of directors
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Mgr. Ing. Ivo Hala

Praha 2, Anglická 140/20, post code 120 00

Name of entity:
VESEGIUS, a.s.

File reference:
B 16855 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

Reg. no.: Engagement:
24795003 Sole shareholder

Spolek pro chemickou a B 47 kept by the Regional Court 00011789 Statutory body – vice-chairman
hutní výrobu, akciová
in Ústí nad Labem
of the board of directors
společnost
ČERPADLA NEPTUN
spol. s r.o.

C 1177 kept by the Regional
Court in České Budějovice

HS legal, s.r.o.

C 222023 kept by the Municipal 02669498 Shareholder
Court in Prague

HS legal, s.r.o.

C 222023 kept by the Municipal 02669498 Statutory body – statutory
Court in Prague
representative

Ing. Petr Hetto
Name of entity:
SYNPO, akciová
společnost

Dolní Zálezly, Jahodová 184, post code 403 01
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 627 kept by the Regional
46504711 Supervisory board - member of
Court in Hradec Králové
the supervisory board

EPISPOL, a.s.

B 1426 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

Ing. Jan Dlouhý, CSc.
Name of entity:
INFRASPOL, s.r.o.

Prackovice nad Labem, Prackovice nad Labem 14, post code 411 33
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
C 26871 kept by the Regional
27918131 Proctor
Court in Ústí nad Labem

Usti Infrastructure
s.r.o.

C 30980 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

Ing. Jaromír Florián
Name of entity:
MAXIMA pojišťovna,
a.s.

Stojická 827/5, Vinoř, 190 17 Praha 9
File reference:
Reg. no.: Engagement:
B 3314 kept by the Municipal
61328464 Supervisory board - chairman of
Court in Prague
the supervisory board

FAUCARIA, s.r.o.

C 175753 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

24803952 Statutory body – statutory
representative

FAUCARIA, s.r.o.

C 175753 kept by the Municipal
Court in Prague

24803952 Shareholder

SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.

B 899 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

25006223 Statutory body - member of the
board of directors

SPOLCHEMIE
Electrolysis a.s.

B 2227 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

29200181 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board

CHS Resins, a.s.

B 1991 kept by the Regional
Court in Ústí nad Labem

28207866 Supervisory board - member of
the supervisory board
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5.

Information pursuant to Section 118 (4) (b), (c), (e), (j) and (5) of Act No. 256/2004
Coll., on Capital Market Undertakings, as amended

Policies and procedures for internal control and rules governing the approach taken by the Issuer
and its consolidation group to risks facing the Issuer and its consolidation group in relation to the
financial reporting process
Accounting policies are governed by internal guidelines, which are regularly reviewed and
updated. All employees are obliged to follow the guidelines in their work. Control functions are
performed by the individual heads of departments, who are obliged to review each document and
are responsible for the economy, assets and liabilities of their departments. Other checks are
performed during monthly closures of accounts by the relevant departments.
The correctness of financial and economic reporting is verified by an auditor in compliance with
applicable legislation. The Group changed its auditor in 2005, 2010 and 2011.

Decision-making procedure and structure of the statutory body, supervisory body or other
executive body
For a description of the decision-making procedures and structure of the statutory body, refer to
p. 27 of the Text Part of the Annual Report.
For a description of the decision-making procedures and structure of the Supervisory Board,
refer to p. 28 and 29 in the Text Part of the Annual Report.

Information on the Issuer’s control body
In 2010, a general meeting appointed members of the audit committee:
Ing. Martin Procházka
Ing. Pavel Jiroušek
Ing. Radka Podpěrová
Description of the audit committee’s decision making:
-

The audit committee takes decisions on the basis of approval by a majority of all its
members. Each member of the audit committee has one vote.
In case of urgency, any member of the audit committee may initiate the adoption of a
resolution per rollam by asking all other members of the audit committee in writing, by telex
or by fax. Such a resolution is valid if all members of the audit committee agree with it. Such
a per rollam resolution must be recorded in the minutes at the forthcoming meeting of the
audit committee.

Description of the decision-making procedures and basic scope of powers of the Issuer’s general
meeting
For a description of the decision-making procedures and basic scope of powers of the Issuer’s
general meeting, refer to p. 16 in the Text Part of the Annual Report.
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Structure of the Issuer’s equity
For information on the structure of the Issuer’s equity, refer the statement of changes in equity of
the non-consolidated financial statements.

Restriction of the transferability of securities
For information on restriction of the transferability of securities, refer to p. 14 of the Text Part of
the Annual Report.

Significant direct and indirect shares in the Issuer’s voting rights
For information on significant direct and indirect shares in the Issuer’s voting rights, refer to Part
V of the Annual Report (Report on Relations).

Holders of securities with special rights, including a description of the rights
For information on the holders of securities with special rights, refer to p. 15 of the Text Part of
the Annual Report.

Restriction of voting rights
For information on restriction of voting rights, refer to p. 14 of the Text Part of the Annual
Report.

Agreements between shareholders or similar holders of securities representing an ownership
interest (share) in the Issuer that may result in impeding the transferability of the shares or
similar securities representing a share in the Issuer or voting rights
For information on agreements between shareholders or similar holders of securities representing
a share in the Issuer that may result in impeding the transferability of the shares or similar
securities representing a share in the Issuer or voting rights, refer to p. 14 of the Text Part of the
Annual Report.

Special rules governing the election and dismissal of members of the statutory body and
amendments to the Articles of Association
The Company has no special rules governing the election and dismissal of members of the
statutory body and amendments to the Articles of Association. The rules for electing and
dismissing statutory body members are defined in the Articles of Association.
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Special powers held by members of the statutory body, especially on authorisation pursuant to
Section 161a and Section 210 of the Commercial Code
For information on special powers held by members of the statutory body, refer to p. 27 of the
Text Part of the Annual Report.

Significant contracts that the Issuer is a party to and that will become effective, changed or
terminated upon a change in the control of the Issuer due to a takeover bid and on consequences
arising therefrom
The Company is not a party to any contract that would become effective, changed or terminated
upon a change in the control of the Issuer due to a takeover bid.

Contracts between the Issuer and members of its statutory body or employees that oblige the
Issuer to provide performance if their term of office or employment is terminated in connection
with a takeover bid
The Company has not concluded any contract with any member of the statutory body or any
employee in which it would undertake to provide performance if their term of office or
employment is terminated in connection with a takeover bid.

Programmes that allow employees and members of the Company’s statutory body to acquire
participating company securities, options on such securities or other rights to them under
preferential conditions and on how the rights arising from such securities are exercised
The Company does not have any programme that allows employees and members of the
Company’s statutory body to acquire participating company securities, options on such securities
or other rights to them under preferential conditions.

Information about payments to the state for mineral rights if the Issuer’s crucial business lies in
the mining industry
The Company’s business does not lie in the mining industry.
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6.

Issuer´s declaration

The Issuer hereby declares that, to the best of its knowledge, the Annual Report and the
Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013 give a true and fair view of the financial position,
business activities and performance of the Issuer and its consolidation group for the past
financial year and of the outlook for the future development of the financial position, business
activities and performance.
The Issuer declares that it is not aware that any of the members of the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Board and Company Management, as at 31 December 2013,
-

was convicted of fraudulent crimes in the past five years;

-

was publicly charged or penalized by statutory or regulatory bodies or was judicially
deprived of legal capacity to serve as a member of the administrative, managing or
supervisory bodies of any issuer, serve in a managerial position or conduct the activities of
any issuer in the past five years;

-

acted in any position in the administrative, managing or supervisory body of a company that
was declared bankrupt in the past five years or that a company in which such members of the
statutory and supervisory bodies or management participated was put into liquidation in the
past five years, except for the individuals and their participation identified in this Report.

The Issuer also declares that it is not aware of any conflict of interest existing between the
obligations of any of the members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and Company
Management towards the Issuer and their private interests or other obligations.

7.

Information on persons responsible for the Annual Report

Ing. Jan Šrubař, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ústí nad Labem, on 11 July 2014

Ing. Jan Šrubař
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Schmidt
Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors
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Non-consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU
for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013
of

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu,
akciová společnost
Translated from the Czech original
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

2 065 837
261 119
22 570
317 599
596 985
678

2 314 681
58 014
24 600
317 599
542 925
0

3 264 788

3 257 819

343 024
722 609
213 254
71 516
42 463
8 154

389 909
570 176
291 217
73 874
82 342
30 212

Total current assets

1 401 020

1 437 730

Total assets

4 665 808

4 695 549

ASSETS

Tangible assets
Investment property
Intangible assets
Long-term financial investments
Long-term receivables
Deferred tax asset

5
6
7
8
10
23

Total non-current assets

Inventories
Trade receivables
Other short-term receivables
Tax receivables
Cash and deposits
Advances paid

9
10
10
11

The notes on pages 8 to 61 are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.
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Note

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

1 939 408
77 500
-50 614
-874 289

1 939 408
77 500
0
- 664 492

1 092 005

1 352 416

612 748
0
200 000
4 504
4 641

759 443
50 426
200 000
6 318
0

821 893

1 016 187

1 402 605
25 473
1 023 764
293 945
6 123

1 123 599
11 259
976 916
208 596
6 576

Total current liabilities

2 751 910

2 326 946

Total liabilities

3 573 803

3 343 133

Total equity and liabilities

4 665 808

4 695 549

EQUITY
Share capital
Statutory reserve fund
Gains/losses from hedging instruments
Accumulated losses

12

Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long-term bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities
Other loans
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities

16
23
24
15

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other loans
Short-term bank loans
Advances received
Provisions

13
24
16
14
15

The notes on pages 8 to 61 are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Note

Revenue
Change in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress
Capitalisation of own production
Cost of sales
Services

17

18

Year ended
31 December 2013
TCZK

Year ended
31 December 2012
TCZK

4 419 528

4 392 700

-34 484
15 156
-3 590 770
-420 614

79 346
4 935
- 3 626 865
- 470 993

388 816

379 123

-267 093
-161 008
86 471
-68 954

- 312 477
- 170 021
130 052
- 79 013

-21 768

- 52 336

-346 940
119 679

-279 774
154 606

-249 029

- 177 504

39 232

2 944

-209 797

- 174 560

-50 614

0

-50 614

0

-260 411

- 174 560

Gross profit
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating income
Other operating expenses

19
5,6,7
20
20

Operating profit/loss
Finance costs
Finance income

21
21

Profit/loss before income tax
Income tax

23

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE
PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/losses from hedging
instruments
Total other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Earnings per share attributable to shareholders (in CZK per share)
Basic earnings per share
25

-54.09

The notes on pages 8 to 61 are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory
reserve fund

Accumulated
losses

Gains/losses
from hedging
instruments

Total

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

Balance at 1 January 2012

1 939 408

68 105

-484 101

0

1 523 412

Loss for the year
Transfer to statutory reserve
fund
Write-off of liability relating
to dividend payment
Balance at 31 December
2012

0

0

-174 560

0

-174 560

0

9 395

-9 395

0

0

0

0

3 564

0

3 564

1 939 408

77 500

-664 492

0

1 352 416

0

0

-209 797

0

-209 797

0

0

0

-50 614

-50 614

1 939 408

77 500

-874 289

-50 614

1 092 005

Loss for the year
Remeasurement of hedging
instruments
Balance at 31 December
2013

The notes on pages 8 to 61 are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.

47

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
III. NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Note

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

-209 797

-174 560

181 675

195 779

161 008
55 920
-32 515
0
-8 927
86 494
-39 232
-41 073

170 021
-39 729
- 6 963
-2
0
78 221
-5 769
0

308 186

242 944

-106 706
367 670
47 222

91 564
263 858
-112 478

280 064

264 163

-72 823
2
0

-79 944
896
-2 825

207 243

182 290

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/loss for the period
Adjustments for non-cash transactions:
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Change in adjustments and provisions
Loss /(gain) on sale of non-current assets
Loss /(gain) on sale of financial investments
Income from dividends and share of profit
Interest income and expenses
Income tax
Other non-cash transactions

5,6,7
5,7,9,10,15
20
21
21
23
10, 23

Changes in non-cash components of working capital
Change in receivables and deferrals
Change in short-term payables and accruals
Change in inventories

10
13
9

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest paid
Interest received
Income tax paid

21
21
23

Net cash from operating activities
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Note

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

5,6,7

-65 682
0
151
0
8 927

-9 463
0
165
2 565
0

-56 604

-6 733

-192 772

-151 274

-192 772

-151 274

-42 133

24 283

82 342

58 730

2 254

-671

42 463

82 342

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of non-current assets
Acquisition of financial investments
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets
Proceeds from sale of long-term financial investments
Dividends and share of profit received

20
21

Net cash from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Change in non-current liabilities and loans

16

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
11

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

11

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 8 to 61 are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost (“the Company”) was
incorporated on 31 December 1990. The address of its registered office is Ústí nad Labem,
Revoluční 1930/86, ID# 00011789. The Company is recorded in the Commercial Register
kept by the Regional Court in Ústí nad Labem, Section B, Insert 47.
The Company’s principal activity is the research, development, manufacture and processing
of chemicals and chemical products.
The Company’s principal shareholder as at 31 December 2013 was Via Chem Group, a.s.
holding a 33.12% share in the Company’s registered capital and voting rights. Via Chem
Group, a.s. exercises control over the Company.
Members of the Board of Directors as at 31 December 2013:
Name

Position

Jan Šrubař
Jan Schmidt
Ivo Hala
Bohuslav Doležal

Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Member

Members of the Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2013:
Name

Position

Martin Procházka
Pavel Jiroušek
Milan Točina
Petr Sisák
Ivana Mráčková

Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Changes in the Board of Directors in 2013
There were no changes made to the Board of Directors in 2013.

Changes in the Supervisory Board in 2013
Based on the outcome of employees’ voting regarding Supervisory Board members held
from 11 February 2013 to 15 February 2013, Mrs. Ivana Mráčková and Mr. Jaroslav Rýdl
were elected the new members of the Board representing the Company’s employees. The
membership of Mr. Jaroslav Rýdl terminated on 30 November 2013 as a result of the
termination of his employment with the Company. These changes were not recorded in the
Commercial Register as at the date of preparing these financial statements.
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Organisational structure as at 31 December 2013

General Meeting

Supervisory Board

Board of Directors

Group Management
and Strategy
Executive Director

Operations and Sales
Executive Director

Sales Director

Human Resources
Director

Supply Chain Director

Projects Director

Finance Director

Production Director
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

a) Statement of compliance
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and in
accordance with the Accounting Act and other regulations effective in the Czech Republic
as at 31 December 2013.
These financial statements are non-consolidated and have been prepared in compliance with
the requirements of Czech legislation. The Company’s consolidated financial statements will
be prepared once the non-consolidated financial statements have been approved.
b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for hedging
instruments.
These financial statements are presented in Czech Koruna (CZK), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in CZK has been rounded to the
nearest thousand (TCZK) (unless stated otherwise).
c) Going concern and significant events
In 2009, as a result of the global crisis, the Company experienced a decline in sales and
subsequent problems with liquidity management. The Company’s management believes that
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is primarily dependent on its
successful management of cash flows related to its credit exposure and working capital.
Refinancing and extension of bank loans
The 2010 agreement on the temporary modification of relationships with bank creditors
enabled the Company to defer payments on the loans existing at that time. Under this
contractual arrangement, the Company’s assets were pledged in favour of ČSOB, KB,
Citibank Europe, LBBW and Raiffeisenbank to secure the banks’ loan receivables. The
agreement was repeatedly extended via amendments. The last extension, until 30 April
2012, occurred in 2012.
On 30 April 2012 the Company concluded a new agreement on the temporary modification
of relationships with bank creditors when, concurrently, the receivables of three of the five
bank creditors were acquired by a new bank creditor. This agreement merely extended the
existing relationship with the banks until 29 June 2012.
On 29 June 2012 the Company and Epispol, a.s. concluded a stabilisation agreement with
their banks, thus successfully finalising the refinancing process and stabilising the
relationship with the bank creditors. This agreement defines the maturities of individual
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loans and the respective debt covenants for the duration of its validity – until 2017. The
reclassification of a significant portion of bank loans to long-term loans was a positive
stabilising measure. As late as the end of 2011, short-term bank loans totalled
CZK 1 888 million. At the end of 2012, after the loan restructuring process, the Company
reported short-term bank loans of CZK 976 million and long-term bank loans of
CZK 759 million. In 2012 the Company paid off loans of approximately CZK 151 million.
In 2013 the Company continued to pay its debt defined in the stabilisation agreement in due
manner. It paid the principal totalling CZK 192 million and bank interest of CZK 73 million.
In 2013 total bank loans decreased only by TCZK 99 847 due to the intervention of the
Czech National Bank in November 2013, substantially affecting the rate for the Czech
Koruna and resulting in the revaluation of bank loans denominated in EUR.
Management of working capital and insolvency risks
In 2013 the Company generated an operating loss of TCZK 21 768 (2012: a loss of
TCZK 52 336). This positive development is primarily associated with a slightly higher
profitability of key selling segments (Epoxy Resins) and stable results of the Inorganics
production segment.
Despite the above, the Company generated a loss of TCZK 209 797 in 2013. As at
31 December 2013 the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
TCZK 1 350 890 (2012: TCZK 889 216), which was primarily due to the inclusion of
current bank loans of TCZK 1 023 764 in current liabilities. These current bank loans
represent operating bank loans that are renewed every year in accordance with the
stabilisation agreement. Current trade payables past due remained at the same level as in
2012, amounting to TCZK 546 326 (2012: TCZK 545 905). In 2013 the Company partly
managed to improve the ageing structure of trade payables past due which are now mostly in
the category past due up to 60 days.
The total amount of trade payables past due comprises:
-

TCZK 143 237 in respect of Epispol a.s., a subsidiary. In addition to these payables,
the Company has a receivable of TCZK 113 500 from Epispol arising from the sale
of a manufacturing facility.

-

TCZK 71 497 in respect of VA Intertrading Aktiengesellshaft. In 2013 the Company
concluded an informal payment schedule with respect to this payable, with which it
has been complying.

-

TCZK 29 007 in respect of AOC, LLC. An agreement on the purchase and
processing of raw materials has been concluded with this firm. The Company has
receivables of TCZK 22 070 from AOC, LLC.
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The remaining payables past due of TCZK 302 585 are the subject of ongoing negotiations
between the Company and its suppliers. The method of managing these payables is
described below.
The Company’s management uses the following standard methods to manage the negative
working capital reported as at 31 December 2013:
i.

Cooperation with tolling partners in the production of inorganics, epoxy resins and
polyesters. Tolling partners provide operating funds for raw materials and the
Company charges a toll-fee for the processing of these raw materials into finished
products;

ii.

Concluding agreements with suppliers in respect of which the Company has payables
past due on the manner of repaying the liability over a period of time as permitted by
the Company’s operating cash flows (payment schedule agreements);

iii.

Optimising inventories of raw materials and products (which decreased by approx.
CZK 47 million compared to 2012);

iv.

Drawing operating funds via the approved factoring facility of Transfinance a.s.; and

v.

Selling non-essential non-current assets, where appropriate.

Most of the measures discussed above is being sucessfuly taken by the Company’s
management in 2014 despite that the Company is exposed to risks indicating uncertainty that
may potentially cast doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
However, the Company’s management believes that, after having implemented the above
measures, it will be able to secure sufficient operating funds for the Company. The financial
statements as at 31 December 2013 have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.
In addition, the Company’s management approved the budget for 2014 on a going concern
basis. At the date of preparation of these financial statements the Company considers the
assumptions used in preparing the budget, especially those regarding the prices of input raw
materials/energy and exchange rates, to be reasonable, based on, among other things, the
preliminary unaudited results for the period ended 31 March 2014. The Company’s
management believes that the budget for 2014 will be adhered to.
d) Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses at the reporting date. These estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are considered to be reasonable under the
circumstances that form the basis for estimating the carrying values of assets and liabilities
and that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

54

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
III. NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The estimates mainly relate to the remaining useful lives of non-current assets, impairment
losses on non-financial and financial assets, adjustments to inventories, and provisions.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Operating segments
An operating segment is a component of an entity engaged in the provision of products or
services that are subject to risks and revenues that are separate from assets and services in
other segments. Each segment’s operating results and performance are separately reviewed
by management on a regular basis. In addition, the Company classifies operating segments
by geographical location so as to separate risks and revenues of segments operating in
different economic environments.

b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Intangible assets produced internally are measured at the lower of direct costs and
production overheads, or replacement cost. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
bases over their estimated useful lives, usually for up to five years.
Amortisation begins when the intangible asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, over its estimated useful life. The appropriateness of amortisation periods and
rates is reviewed on a regular basis (at least at each reporting date), with any changes in
amortisation applied in subsequent periods.

c) Tangible assets
Tangible assets are initially recorded at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost of tangible assets includes all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing
the assets to a working condition for their intended use. Self-constructed assets are measured
at internal production cost.
The depreciation of items of plant and equipment begins when they are available for use, i.e.
from the month that they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation is recognised over a
period that reflects their estimated useful lives, taking into account their residual value. The
appropriateness of depreciation rates is reviewed annually, with the respective changes
applied in subsequent periods. Significant components of items of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated separately in accordance with their useful lives.
Depreciation is recognised in order to depreciate the cost of assets, except for land, to their
residual value on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Estimated useful lives:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Fixtures and fittings
Vehicles

10-50 years
4-20 years
4-25 years
4-25 years

The cost of significant repairs and regular maintenance is recognised as a tangible asset and
is depreciated in accordance with their useful lives. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
The gain or loss on disposal of an asset is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
Residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually.

d) Investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, and is not occupied by the Company. Investment property is measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation.
Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, i.e.
10-50 years, from the date of acquisition.
Income from investment property is recognised when the rental service is rendered, and is
classified as revenue.

e) Impairment of assets
Non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews each asset individually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment, i.e. the carrying amount of the asset exceeding its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its value in use and its net selling price less costs to sell.
Financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews each asset individually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment, i.e. the carrying amount of the asset exceeding the
estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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f) Leases
Leases under which all the substantial risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
If an operating lease is terminated early, all penalty payments required by the lessor for early
termination are charged to expenses for the period in which the operating lease was
terminated.
Leases of tangible assets in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased
asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is apportioned between liabilities and
operating expenses at a constant rate. The outstanding lease liability net of the finance
expense is included in other non-current liabilities (depending on maturity). The interest
element of the finance expense is charged to the income statement over the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Tangible assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their useful
lives and the term of the lease.

g) Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control means that the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.
Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies.
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are measured at cost less any impairment losses.

h) Other securities and investments
The Company classifies securities and investments other than ownership interests into the
following categories: trading securities, available-for-sale securities and securities held to
maturity. These securities, except for securities held to maturity, are measured at either
current market value or the current value of the share of the entities’ assets.
Securities held to maturity are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s accounts as of the settlement date.

i) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in first-out method. The cost of materials and goods for resale includes
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expenditure associated with acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present
location and condition, e.g. freight costs, customs duties and insurance costs. The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct materials, direct labour, other direct
production costs and related overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses.

j) Receivables
Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or pre-determined payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Receivables are initially recognised and
subsequently carried at cost net of any impairment loss, which represents the difference
between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal of impairment losses is recognised in profit or loss.

k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash,
bank deposits and money market instruments with original maturities of less than three
months.

l) Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Czech crown, which is the Company’s
functional currency, at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from transactions involving monetary
assets and liabilities executed in foreign currencies are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income. This does not apply to cash flow hedging instances in which the
effective portion of FX differences arising from hedging instruments is reported in “Other
comprehensive income”. At the end of the year monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the Czech National Bank official rate at the reporting
date.
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m) Loans and non-current liabilities
At the date of acquisition, loans and non-current liabilities are recognised at an amount equal
to the consideration received net of transaction costs.
Loans and non-current liabilities are classified as current liabilities when due within 12
months of the reporting date.
Loans and non-current liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

n) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and legal provisions that are expected to be
enacted or substantively enacted when the asset is realised or liability settled.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

o) Revenue
Revenue from sales is recognised when it is probable that that the economic benefits of a
sale will be transferred to the Company and can be measured reliably. Revenue from sales is
recognised when the significant risks of ownership have been transferred to the customer,
and the income and costs arising in connection with the transaction can be estimated
reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of all discounts and value added tax (VAT).
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.
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p) Provisions
A provision is recognised when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
If the Company expects reimbursement from another entity for all or some of the costs of
establishing a provision, such reimbursement is recorded as a separate asset, but only to the
extent that the realisation of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The reimbursement
amount shall not exceed the amount of the provision. In profit or loss, the expense relating
to the provision is recognised together with revenue from reimbursements.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are recognised at the
present value of the estimated costs of meeting the respective obligation.

q) Employee benefits
Pension costs
The Government of the Czech Republic is responsible for the provision of pensions. The
Company makes regular contributions to the state budget to finance the state pension
scheme.
The additional monthly contributions that the Company provides to its employees via
schemes operated by pension funds are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
the respective employee’s entitlement arose.
Long-term benefits
A provision is established for retirement benefits. The provision is calculated annually using
reasonable statistical estimates.
Other short-term benefits
Employee benefits are governed by a collective agreement. Short-term employee benefits
include supplementary pension insurance contributions, annual incentive bonuses, an extra
week of vacation, contributions towards in-house catering, preferential phone and internet
packages, training and retraining, recreational packages for employees and their children,
and social loans. A provision is established for incentive bonuses based on the probability of
their payment.

r) Grants
A grant related to the acquisition of an asset is recognised by subtracting the amount of the
grant from the cost of the asset. Grants related to revenue are recognised as a positive
balance in the statement of comprehensive income under other operating income.
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s) Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is recognised in profit or loss, except for
expenditure on development projects accounted for as intangible assets where future
measurable benefits are expected and the related costs are measurable. Development
expenditure previously recognised in profit or loss shall not be considered non-current assets
in any subsequent period.
Development expenditure that is recognised as an intangible asset is amortised from the start
of production of the product to which it relates, on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the intangible asset, which shall not exceed five years.

t) Hedge accounting
Within the overall currency risk management strategy the Company is required to manage
its exposure to changes in cash flows from business activities resulting from the fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates. In accordance with these requirements the Company enters into
hedging transactions (foreign currency financing) aimed to reduce the risk of changes in the
amount of future cash flows from foreign currency collection (translated to Czech crowns).
The Company applies hedge accounting based on a decision to define a hedge relationship
and upon the fulfilment of hedge accounting criteria. Hedge relationships are properly
documented from the date they are established and their effectiveness is assessed regularly.
For cash flow hedging, the effective portion of gains or losses from hedging instruments is
reported in “Other comprehensive income”. The ineffective portion of these gains or losses
is recognised in profit or loss.
The balance reported in “Other comprehensive income” is charged to expenses or revenues
at the moment the hedged cash flows affect the result of operations, using the “Finance
costs” and “Finance income” accounts.
If a hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for the application of hedge accounting,
i.e. the hedging instrument is terminated, sold, utilised or its validity has expired or the
Company has decided to terminate the hedge relationship, hedge accounting is terminated.
The balance reported in “Other comprehensive income” is charged to expenses or revenues
at the moment the hedged cash flows affect the result of operations.
If it is expected that a hedged future transaction will not take place, hedge accounting is
terminated and the balance reported in other comprehensive income is immediately charged
to expenses or revenues.
The Company determines the proportionate parts of the principals relating to received loans
denominated in EUR as hedging instruments.
The hedged items are always the adequate parts of expected collections from the sale of
services and products to customers denominated in EUR and applicable to the individual
periods (quarters) of the financial plan according to planned revenues.
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u) Subsequent events
The impact of events that occur between the reporting date and the date of signing the
financial statements is recognised in the financial statements if the events provide further
evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date.
If any significant events indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date occur
between the reporting date and the date of signing the financial statements, the effects of
such events are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised in the financial statements.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS (ONLY STANDARDS AND
RELEVANT TO THE COMPANY ARE INCLUDED)

STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

In preparing the financial statements, the Company applied new or amended standards and
interpretations effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2013.
Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for the Company, but which the Company has not early
adopted. The Company intends to adopt amendments to IFRS that are published but not
effective as at 31 December 2013, in accordance with their effective dates.
New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have not yet become effective
The Company is currently considering the possible impact of new standards and
interpretations that will become effective after the year ending 31 December 2013 and that
were not used in the preparation of these financial statements.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014). IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, supersedes and replaces IAS 31, Interest in Joint
Ventures. IFRS 11 does not introduce substantive changes to the overall definition of an
arrangement subject to joint control, although the definition of control, and therefore
indirectly of joint control, has changed due to IFRS 10. Under the new standard, joint
arrangements are divided into two types, each having its own accounting model defined as
follows:
a) a joint operation is one whereby the jointly controlling parties, known as the joint
operators, have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement;
b) a joint venture is one whereby the jointly controlling parties, known as joint
venturers, have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014). IFRS 12 requires additional disclosures relating to significant
judgements and assumptions made in determining the nature of interests in an entity or
arrangement, interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates and unconsolidated
structured entities.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
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IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014). IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and
disclosure requirements of IAS 27 (2008) for separate financial statements, with some minor
clarifications. Also, the existing requirements of IAS 28 (2008) and IAS 31 for separate
financial statements have been incorporated into IAS 27 (2011). The standard no longer
addresses the principle of control and requirements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements; these have been incorporated into IFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associated and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014). Limited amendments are made to IAS 28 (2008):
• Associates and joint ventures held for sale. IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations, applies to an investment, or a portion of an
investment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale. For any retained portion of the investment that has not been classified
as held for sale, the equity method is applied until disposal of the portion held for
sale. After disposal, any retained interest is accounted for using the equity method if
the retained interest continues to be an associate or a joint venture.
• Changes in interests held in associates and joint ventures. Previously, IAS 28 (2008)
and IAS 31 specified that the cessation of significant influence or joint control
triggered re-measurement of any retained stake in all cases, even if significant
influence was succeeded by joint control. IAS 28 (2011) now requires that in such
scenarios the retained interest in the investment not be re-measured.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendments do not introduce
new rules for offsetting financial assets and liabilities; rather they clarify the offsetting
criteria to address inconsistencies in their application.
The amendments clarify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off if
that right is:

•
•

not contingent on a future event; and

enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendments clarify
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that recoverable amount should be disclosed only for individual assets (including goodwill)
or cash-generated units for which an impairment loss was recognised or reversed during the
period.
The amendments also require the following additional disclosures when an impairment for
individual assets (including goodwill) or cash-generated units has been recognised or
reversed in the period and recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal:

•

the level of IFRS 13 ‘Fair value hierarchy’ within which the fair value
measurement of the asset or cash-generating unit is categorised;

•

for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy, a description of the valuation techniques used and any changes
in that valuation technique together with the reason for making it;

•

for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3, each key
assumption (i.e. assumptions to which recoverable amount is most sensitive)
used in determining fair value less costs of disposal. If fair value less costs of
disposal is measured using a present value technique, discount rate(s) used both
in current and previous measurement should be disclosed.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendments allow
hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as
a hedging instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of
laws and regulations, when the following criteria are met:

•
•

the novation is made as a consequence of laws or regulations;
a clearing counterparty becomes a new counterparty to each of the original
counterparties of the derivative instrument;

•

changes to the terms of the derivative are limited to those necessary to replace
the counterparty.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Acquisition cost

Balance at 1 January 2013

Property,
plant and
structures
2 596 791

Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2013

55 300
-1 466
-311 391
2 339 234

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles
3 063 092
30 216

Other
196
0

Under
construction
325 992
27 610

Total
5 986 071
113 126

-16 135
3 713
3 080 886

0
0
196

0
-6 881
346 721

-17 601
-314 559
5 767 037

Other
0
0
0
0
0

Under
construction
and advances
0
0
0
0
0

Total
-3 592 693
-147 749
16 814
103 054
-3 620 574

Total
-78 697

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2013

Property,
plant and
structures
-1 182 353
-41 169
1 465
103 054
-1 119 003

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles
-2 410 340
-106 580
15 349
0
-2 501 571

Property,
plant and
structures
-41 010

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles
-19 730

Other
0

Under
construction
and advances
-17 957

-2 050
0
-43 060

0
121
-19 609

0
0
0

0
0
-17 957

-2 050
121
-80 626

1 373 428
1 177 171

633 022
559 706

196
196

308 035
328 764

2 314 681
2 065 837

Adjustments

Balance at 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2013

Carrying amount
At 1 January 2013
At 31 December 2013

The Company’s assets are pledged pursuant to the Contract to pledge a company in favour
of bank creditors.
Transfers include in particular a transfer of real estate relating to the lease of part of the
chlorine chemistry of CHS Epi, a.s., a subsidiary into investment property.
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In 2013 and 2012, the Company did not capitalise any loan interests. In accordance with the
Company’s accounting policy, the carrying amount of assets disposed of is charged to
depreciation.
Acquisition cost

Balance at 1 January 2012

Property,
plant and
structures
2 612 200

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles
3 075 496

Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2012

0
-18 872
3 463
2 596 791

177
-22 541
9 960
3 063 092

Other
196

Under
construction
324 919

Total
6 012 811

0
0
0
196

14 496
0
-13 423
325 992

14 673
-41 413
0
5 986 071

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2012

Property,
plant and
structures
-1 147 312
-48 042
13 001
0
-1 182 353

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles
-2 322 146
-97 995
9 801
0
-2 410 340

Other
0
0
0
0
0

Under
construction
and advances
0
0
0
0
0

Total
-3 469 458
-146 037
22 802
0
-3 592 693

Property,
plant and
structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

Other

Under
construction
and advances

Total

-47 009
-86
6 085
-41 010

-20 478
0
748
-19 730

0
0
0
0

-16 045
-1 912
0
-17 957

-83 532
-1 998
6 833
-78 697

1 417 879
1 373 428

732 872
633 022

196
196

308 874
308 035

2 459 821
2 314 681

Adjustments

Balance at 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2012
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2012
At 31 December 2012

Under construction primarily includes expenditures related to the project of a new plant in
Asia of TCZK 110 000. The Company management announced its intention to use the
licence for the ECH-G production in India and China instead of the original location because
there is currently no ECH-G producer in India and the Indian market is currently
experiencing a rapid boom in the field of epoxy resins. The Company received a patent for
ECH-G production on the Indian territory. Another major item comprises project
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expenditures incurred in relation with the upcoming membrane electrolysis investment of
TCZK 123 000.
In 2013, the following most important investments were completed and put into use
(depreciation also started):

Total expenses
TCZK

Project
Former Reichhold warehouse including equipment
Renovation of a field burner

62 100
8 000

The warehouse including the equipment was purchased from Reichhold and the liability
relating to the purchase was off-set based on the settlement agreement signed with this
company concerning a unilateral termination of a long-term manufacturing contract in 2012.

In 2013, the following expenses were spent on the most important assets under construction:
Expenses in 2013
TCZK

Project
PCPa pilot unit

7 700

Finance lease
In 2012, the Company did not enter into any lease agreements. In late 2013, it signed several
lease agreements on the acquisition of non-current assets (fork-lift trucks), the total
acquisition cost of which amounted to TCZK 5 919 (excluding financing costs). Apart from
that, the Company uses assets acquired from terminated lease agreements.
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6.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying amount

-63 458

58 014

0
315 459
436 931

-9 300
-103 054

-9 300
212 405

-175 812

261 119

Acquisition cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying amount

124 047

-63 336

60 711

0
-2 575
0
121 472

-1 525
1 403
0
-63 458

-1 525
-1 172
0
58 014

Acquisition cost
Balance at 1 January
2013
Additions
Transfers
At 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January
2012
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2012

121 472

The Company leases assets to certain companies within the Group. As at 31 December
2013, the acquisition cost of these assets was TCZK 367 598 (TCZK 14 386 as at 31
December 2012), and the carrying amount was TCZK 231 177 (TCZK 13 495 as at 31
December 2012). A major lease agreement is an agreement with Epispol, a.s., under which
land of TCZK 11 073 is leased to that company, and since 2013, an agreement with CHS
Epi, a.s., under which real estate property in the carrying amount of TCZK 210 021 is
leased.
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquisition cost
Licences and
patents
Balance at 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 31 December
2013

Software

Under
construction

Total

144 662

29 019

22 609

196 290

2 438

680

-4 018

-900

96
-6 058

0
-39

14 460
-16 041

14 556
-22 138

141 138

29 660

17 010

187 808

Accumulated amortisation / adjustments

Balance at 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 December
2013

Licences and
patents

Software

Under
construction

Total

-137 879
-3 091
4 712

-29 019
0
39

-4 792
0
4 792

-171 690
-3 091
9 543

-136 258

-28 980

0

-165 238

6 783
4 880

0
680

17 817
17 010

24 600
22 570

Carrying amount
At 1 January 2013
At 31 December 2013

In 2013, the Company sold non-current intangible assets under construction to CSS, a.s. for
the acquisition cost (of a new information system).
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Acquisition cost
Licences and
patents
Balance at 1 January 2012
Transfers

Software

Under
construction

Total

144 662

29 033

20 678

194 373

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
-14

1 931
0

1 931
-14

144 662

29 019

22 609

196 290

Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 December
2012

Accumulated amortisation / adjustments

Balance as at 1 January
2012
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 December
2012

Licences and
patents

Software

Under
construction

Total

-134 994
-2 885
0

-28 997
-28
6

-2 054
-2 738
0

-166 045
-5 651
6

-137 879

-29 019

-4 792

-171 690

9 669
6 783

36
0

18 624
17 817

28 329
24 600

Carrying amount
At 1 January 2012
At 31 December 2012
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8. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries and associates comprise investments in ordinary shares and
ownership interests.
As at 31 December 2013:
Acquisition
cost
TCZK

Equity
TCZK

Share in
equity
%

Carrying
amount
TCZK

Impairment
TCZK

EPISPOL, a.s.
SYNPO, akciová společnost
Oleochem, a.s.
Spolpharma, s.r.o.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
Spolchemie Electrolysis, a.s.
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.
CHS Resins, a.s.

270 086
43 921
280 000
6 000
61 728
1 185
2 000
1 000
2 500

476 259
62 761
-174 266
-9 521
-25 949
-11 550
1 839
-4 427
-846

90
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

270 086
43 921
0
0
0
1 185
2 000
407
0

0
0
-280 000
-6 000
-61 728
0
0
-593
-2 500

Total

668 420

317 599

-350 821

Impairment loss of ownership interests:

Balance as at 1 January
Additions
Release
Balance as at 31 December

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

350 821
0
0
350 821

551 665
0
-200 844
350 821

Changes in 2013
In 2013, there were no changes made to ownership interest.
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Headquarters of the companies included in ownership interests:
EPISPOL, a.s.

Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 86, čp. 1930, post code 400 01

SYNPO, akciová společnost

Pardubice, Zelené Předměstí, S. K. Neumanna 1316, post code
532 07

Oleochem, a.s.

Praha 2, Vinohrady, Anglická 140/20, post code 120 00

Spolpharma, s.r.o.

Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 01

INFRASPOL, s.r.o.

Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.

Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 86 čp. 1930, post code 400 32

SPOLCHEMIE N.V.

Haaksbergweg 71, 1101 BR Amsterdam, the Netherlands

SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis a.s.

Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

CHS Resins, a.s.

Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

As at 31 December 2012:
Acquisition
cost
TCZK

Equity
TCZK

Share in
equity
%

Carrying
amount
TCZK

Impairment
TCZK

EPISPOL, a.s.
SYNPO, akciová společnost
Oleochem, a.s.
Spolpharma, s.r.o.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
Spolchemie Electrolysis, a.s.
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.
CHS Resins, a.s.

270 086
43 921
280 000
6 000
61 728
1 185
2 000
1 000
2 500

456 279
71 605
-119 701
-23 881
-21 636
-18 534
1 843
951
-274

90
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

270 086
43 921
0
0
0
1 185
2 000
407
0

0
0
-280 000
-6 000
-61 728
0
0
-593
-2 500

Total

668 420

317 599

-350 821
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9. INVENTORIES
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Raw materials
Finished goods
Goods for resale

131 010
212 014
0

144 209
245 700
0

Carrying amount

343 024

389 909

In 2013, inventories were written down by TCZK 13 120 (2012: TCZK 13 457).

10. RECEIVABLES
Long-term receivables

STZ Development, a.s.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
EPISPOL, a.s.
Impairment loss
Total

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

486 144
107 727
113 500
-110 386

496 631
0
113 500
-67 206

596 985

542 925

In 2008, the receivable from STZ Development was acquired by assignment in nominal
value of TCZK 400 000. The receivable bears an interest at PRIBOR plus 2.5% p.a. The
principal amount (TCZK 400 000) is recorded in its discounted value (TCZK 376 333), the
interest amounts to TCZK 109 811. STZ Development is a subsidiary of Via Chem Group,
a.s. In 2013, an impairment loss of TCZK 110 386 (2012: TCZK 67 206) was recognised
considering an analysis of credit risk associated with the receivable.
The Company recognised a receivable from EPISPOL, a.s. for the sale of a production
facility in 2004. The receivable had been repaid according to repayment schedule until
30 June 2009. Upon agreement with financing banks, the repayment of the receivable has
been currently suspended and is conditional upon repayment of bank liabilities by EPISPOL,
a.s. Accordingly, the Company classified the receivable as long-term. As at 31 December
2013, the net value of the receivable was TCZK 113 500.
A receivable from Spolchemie N.V. arose in 2013 under the licence agreement to grant the
right to use the manufacturing know-how in the following plants: Chlorine Chemistry,
Tetraper, and Epichlorohydrin, whose production was transferred to CHS Epi, a.s., which is
under 100% control by this subsidiary. The receivable will be due in regular instalments in
the 2020-2024 period. The receivable bears an annual interest rate of 3M PRIBOR + 2.5%.
The Company has no other receivables due in more than 5 years.
Trade receivables
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31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Gross value of trade receivables
Impairment loss

804 701
-82 092

635 794
-65 618

Total

722 609

570 176

Other short-term receivables
31 December
2013
TCZK

31 December
2012
TCZK

CHS Resins, a.s.
Estimated receivables
SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
Other

13 723
322
198 940
269

27 445
72 882
190 550
340

Total

213 254

291 217

Other short-term receivables are reduced with an impairment loss of TCZK 30 672 (2012:
TCZK 8 073).
The year-on-year difference in the value of the receivable from CHS Resins, a.s. arose
because an adjustment was established due to temporary impairment.
Based on the contractual agreement with SPOLCHEMIE N.V. in the Netherlands, the
Company registers a receivable from sale of licenses. The Company continues negotiations
about the next possible sale of the licence. The year-on-year difference in the value of the
receivable arose as a result of the exchange rate translation as at the reporting date.

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Cash on hand and bank balances
Short-term securities

36 075
6 388

75 954
6 388

Total

42 463

82 342
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12. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised and issued shares

Ordinary shares with a
nominal value of CZK
500, fully paid

Number
pieces

31 December
2013
TCZK

Number
pieces

31 December 2012
TCZK

3 878 816

1 939 408

3 878 816

1 939 408

Change in the form of shares from 1 January 2014
As at 31 December 2013, the Company had issued 3 878 816 ordinary certificated bearer
shares at the nominal value of CZK 500 per share.
As at 1 January 2014, certificated bearer shares that are not immobilised, i.e. including those
issued by the Company, are automatically transformed into certificated registered shares
pursuant to Act no. 134/2013 Coll. some measures to increase the transparency of jointstock companies and on amendment of other laws. This transformation is not conditioned by
being approved by the general meeting or recorded into the Commercial Register. As at the
same date, the Company’s by-laws are changed accordingly (also pursuant to the act).
The Company proceeds in line with valid legal regulations. In March 2014, the board of
directors of the Company called upon the shareholders to exchange their shares in a manner
required for the summoning of the general meeting.
The board of directors will amend the Company’s by-laws and deliver them to the collection
of deeds. At the same time, the board of directors will file an application by 30 June 2014 to
record the change in the form of the Company shares to the Commercial Register.
The shareholders are required to submit their certificated shares to the Company by 30 June
2014; the Company will indicate the new form on the shares or replace them. If the
shareholders fail to do so, they will not be allowed to exercise their rights associated with
the shares after 30 June 2014 and will not be entitled to a dividend payment.
The shareholders are required to submit their shares for replacement by 30 June 2014 and
provide information that need to be recorded in the list of shareholders.
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Major shareholders
Since the Company issued certificated bearer shares and since the replacement of the
Company shares by new certificated registered shares will start on 1 May 2014 the earliest,
the current list of shareholders was unknown as at the date of preparation of the financial
statements.
In 2013, no general meeting took place.
Via Chem Group, a.s., holding a 33.12% share in the registered capital and in the voting
rights in the Company, is its major shareholder as at 31 December 2013. Since no
shareholder has requested to summon a general meeting of the Company since November
2012, and since no take-over bid has been submitted, Via Chem Group, a.s. may be assumed
to be the controlling person of the Company.
The statutory reserve fund is created in accordance with Czech legislation by contributions
from the period net profit up to a minimum of 20% of the registered capital.

13. CURRENT LIABILITIES – TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued revenues
Estimated payables
Total trade
Other
Payables to employees
Payables to social security
Payables to health insurance
Other payables
Total other
Sundry liabilities
Tax liabilities
Total sundry
Total

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

1 259 427
8 685
76 380
23 768
1 368 260

1 072 516
5 880
0
16 532
1 094 928

11 573
8 561
4 115
4 331
28 580

15 790
5 150
2 574
395
23 909

5 765
5 765

4 762
4 762

1 402 605

1 123 599

At 31 December 2013, liabilities overdue total TCZK 546 326 (2012: TCZK 545 905).
The major part of tax liabilities in 2013 is personal income tax of TCZK 3 058 (2012: TCZK
1 866) and value added tax in Germany and Sweden of TCZK 2 380 (2012: TCZK 2 018).
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14. ADVANCES RECEIVED
As at 31 December 2013, the Company has advances received of TCZK 293 945 (2012:
TCZK 208 596), of which TCZK 282 803 (2012: TCZK 205 730) is advances received
based on regression factoring.

15. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Balance as at 1 January 2013

Litigations and
other
disputes
4 564

Short-term
employment
benefits
1 962

0
0
0

4 564

Additions
Utilisation
Release
Balance as at 31 December
2013

Other

Total

50

6 576

1 509
-1 962
0

0
0
0

1 509
-1 962
0

1 509

50

6 123

16. BANK LOANS
As part of consolidation of credit relationships with banks, a Stabilisation Contract due on
30 June 2017 was concluded with bank creditors (note 2c). The below classification of loans
corresponds to existing contracts, as amended.
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

28 764
778 053
216 947

27 474
741 282
208 160

Total

1 023 764

976 916

Non-current
Non-current loans due within two years
Non-current loans due in three to five years
Non-current loan instalments due within one year

102 703
726 992
- 216 947

71 459
896 144
- 208 160

612 748

759 443

Current
Overdrafts
Other loans due within one year
Non-current loan instalments due within one year

Total
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Summary of loans as at 31 December 2013
Type of loan

Nominal interest rate

Currency

Maturity

TCZK

Poštová banka

Short-term

1M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2014

30 934

Poštová banka

Revolving

1M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2014

410 398

LBBW Bank

Overdraft

1M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

28 764

LBBW Bank

Revolving

1M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

111 721

Raiffeisenbank

Revolving

1M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

225 000

LBBW Bank

Long-term

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2017

136 178

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

19 223

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2015

40 861

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2015

61 842

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

142 038

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

16 756

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

4 549

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

28 059

Poštová banka

Investment

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

102 341

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

277 848

Total

1 636 512

In 2009 a lien on the Company’s assets was established in favour of bank creditors as
collateral for loans provided to the Company. As at the date of concluding a Stabilisation
Contract in 2012, the lien was transferred to the banks having concluded the Contract (see
note 2c).
An analysis of currency and interest rate risks is described in note Financial instruments.
Meeting conditions of bank loans (covenants)
In accordance with the Stabilisation Contract, the Company should meet, on quarterly and
yearly basis, selected financial ratios (EBITDA, Equity ratio and DSCR). If any of these
ratios is not met, it was agreed that the interest rate on the bank loans should be increased by
1% p.a. until the Company proves that it has met the terms of the bank covenants as
required. As at the date of preparation of the non-consolidated financial statements, the bank
creditors were informed on the levels of the ratios as at 31 December 2013, and did not,
subsequently, request an increase of the interest rate.
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17. SEGMENT REPORTING

The financial statements at 31 December 2013 can be divided in some parts into the following segments:

Inorganics
TCZK

Epoxy resins
TCZK

Services
TCZK

Investment
property
TCZK

0

0

22 570

0

22 570

575 869

743 257

746 711

261 119

2 326 956

92 053

240 493

10 478

0

343 024

198 518

402 626

96 333

25 132

722 609
1 250 649
4 665 808

1 371 599

2 956 650

54 589

36 690

4 419 528

189 525

107 774

-341 543

22 476

-21 768

Interest expenses

0

15 113

90 188

0

105 301

Interest income

0

0

18 807

0

18 807

68 993

56 639

26 076

9 300

161 008

Profit/loss before tax

189 523

107 769

-568 797

22 476

-249 029

EBITDA

258 518

164 413

-315 467

31 776

139 240

Statement of financial position
Intangible non-current assets
Tangible non-current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other assets
Total assets

Total
TCZK

Statement of comprehensive income
Revenues
Operating profit or loss

Depreciation/amortisation

The EBITDA ratio is defined as the sum of operating profit or loss and depreciation/amortisation.
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The financial statements at 31 December 2012 can be divided in some parts into the following segments:

Inorganics
TCZK

Epoxy resins
TCZK

Services
TCZK

Investment
property
TCZK

Total
TCZK

0

0

24 600

0

24 600

835 953

774 961

703 767

58 014

2 372 695

87 696

291 285

10 928

0

389 909

133 058

361 309

73 614

2 195

570 176
1 338 169
4 695 549

1 473 898

2 831 931

60 533

26 338

4 392 700

259 747

149 716

-476 559

14 760

-52 336

5 795

8 161

83 113

0

97 069

0

0

17 081

0

17 081

75 134

56 533

36 852

1 502

170 021

Profit/loss before tax

253 953

141 555

-587 772

14 760

-177 504

EBITDA

334 881

206 249

-439 707

16 262

117 685

Statement of financial position
Intangible non-current assets
Tangible non-current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other assets
Total assets
Statement of comprehensive income
Revenues
Operating profit or loss
Interest expenses
Interest income
Depreciation/amortisation

The EBITDA ratio is defined as the sum of operating profit or loss and depreciation/amortisation.
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The Company presents two production segments (business units) – Inorganics and Epoxy
resins. The inorganic segment comprises mainly inorganic products, such as: sodium and
potassium hydroxide, epichlorohydrin, allylchloride, and perchlorethylene.
The Epoxy resins segment comprises mainly low-molecular weight solid resins, alkyd
resins, and also special epoxies for use in construction and electrical engineering and
production of polyesters.
The Services segment includes all non-production and non-selling units such as the power
supply unit, infrastructure, non-current assets management, maintenance, environment,
analytical services, quality control, investment, research, transportation, warehouse
management and customer support. Expenses relating to the management of the Company
and financial costs are also included in this segment. However, only expenses that cannot be
allocated to the production segments are included.
Revenues from ordinary activities in 2013 were generated as follows:
Domestic
TCZK

Foreign
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Inorganics
Epoxy resins
Services
Investment property

223 101
256 736
54 411
36 690

1 148 498
2 699 914
178
0

1 371 599
2 956 650
54 589
36 690

Total revenues

570 938

3 848 590

4 419 528

Revenues from ordinary activities in 2012 were generated as follows:
Domestic
TCZK

Foreign
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Inorganics
Epoxy resins
Services
Investment property

207 740
227 457
55 016
26 338

1 266 158
2 604 474
5 517
0

1 473 898
2 831 931
60 533
26 338

Total revenues

516 551

3 876 149

4 392 700
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Revenue analysis – export in 2013
Country

Revenues – export in %

Germany
Poland
France
Italy
Spain
Slovakia
Russia
Netherlands
Belgium
United Kingdom
Austria
Turkey
Sweeden
Serbia
Finland
Switzerland
Other

36.5
8.5
7.1
6.0
3.7
3.7
3.7
3.1
3.0
2.7
2.6
2.5
2.3
1.6
1.2
1.1
10.7

Revenues foreign
TCZK
1 405 024
324 831
271 080
231 445
143 428
142 815
140 307
120 359
117 081
104 381
101 010
96 992
87 280
61 860
47 230
44 208
409 259

Total

100

3 848 590

Revenues – export in %

Revenue analysis – export in 2012
Country

Germany
Italy
France
Netherlands
Poland
Sweden
Spain
United Kingdom
Russia
Austria
Belgium
Switzerland
USA
Turkey
Slovakia
Serbia
Other

29.0
7.2
7.0
5.3
5.3
4.9
4.3
4.2
4.0
3.7
3.6
3.4
3.1
2.0
1.6
1.4
10.0

Revenues foreign
TCZK
1 124 082
278 447
269 587
207 149
206 663
189 954
168 415
162 411
152 052
141 690
139 781
133 149
120 629
77 315
61 657
55 717
387 451

Total

100

3 876 149
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18. COST OF SALES
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Raw materials
Energy
Raw material processing using Epispol and
CHS-Epi

2 662 594
647 391

2 806 448
609 499

280 785

210 918

Total

3 590 770

3 626 865

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of statutory and supervisory
bodies
Social security and health insurance expenses
Other social expenses

194 090
2 480

230 931
2 140

65 058
5 465

73 138
6 268

Total

267 093

312 477

2013

2012

644
8

702
9

267 093
16 234

312 477
30 118

19. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

Average number of employees, personnel expenses

Total average number of employees
- of which managers
Total personnel expenses (TCZK)
- of which managers (TCZK)

The item “Managers” comprises the average number of employees in the positions of CEO
and directors of various departments according to the organisational structures listed in note
1.
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The Company does not provide any additional monetary or in-kind benefits except for the
liability insurance of members of management and supervisory bodies, including former
members.

Pension insurance
Since 2000, the Company has contributed to employees’ supplementary pension plans with
the state insurance contribution. Since July 2011, the monthly individual contribution is
TCZK 0.75 (2010 – TCZK 0.5).
The contributions in 2013 totalled TCZK 3 841 (2012: TCZK 4 184).
The Company does not record any incurred or contracted pension liabilities to former
members of statutory and supervisory bodies.

Employee compensation
The Company expenses severance payments to employees, whose employment was
terminated for organisational reasons. In 2013, the Company paid and expensed severance
payments amounting to TCZK 712 (2012: TCZK 1 188).

20. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND INCOME

Other operating expenses
31 December 2013

31 December 2012

TCZK

TCZK

33 168

27 949

198

12 991

Taxes and fees

8 401

8 419

Contributions and gifts

2 553

2 329

Additions to provisions and adjustments

12 740

0

Other operating expenses

11 894

27 325

Total

68 954

79 013

Insurance
Fines and penalties

86

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
III.

NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Other operating income
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Compensation for damage
Write off of payables
Proceeds from the right to use know-how
Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets
Change in adjustments and provisions
Profit from inventories disposals
Operating grants received
Inventory surplus
Other operating income

33 899
3 001
31 740
775
0
1 706
431
787
14 132

64 544
26 352
0
6 963
3 991
3 348
2 595
1 080
21 179

Total

86 471

130 052

Compensation for damage recognised in 2013 mostly (TCZK 32 862) comprises
compensation received from insurance companies in relation to the floods in the first half of
2013. Compensation for damage recognised in 2012 mostly (TCZK 61 338) comprises
estimated compensation due to unauthorised preliminary termination of a contract by one of
the business partners of the Company.
The proceeds from the right to use know-how of TCZK 31 740 recognised in 2013
comprises proceeds of Spolchemie N.V. from the licence agreement on the right to use
manufacturing know-how, manufacturing methodology, expertise and chemical engineering
processes related to the production of epichlorohydrin and other products granted to CHS
Epi, a.s., to which manufacturing facilities have been leased and with which a contract was
signed; based on the contract, CHS Epi, a.s. will continue to manufacture the products for
the Company in a toll-fee regime. The transactions are aimed to boost the production of
epichlorohydrin. An independent expert appraisal institute set the value of the know-how at
TCZK 107 727. The proceeds from the right to use the know-how are accounted for on an
accrual basis between 2013 and 2015 (see note 13).
Write off of payables in 2012 comprises assignment and subsequent offset of payables
related to the interest on the loan from Via Chem Group, a.s.
Operating grants received in 2012 relate to expenditures for research of certain special
chemical substances. These grants were provided under the TIP programme launched by the
Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic. In 2013, the Company only received
grants from the Employment Office.
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21. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS
2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

Interest income
- bank accounts
- other interest

2
18 805

8
17 073

Exchange gains on foreign currency transactions

90 210

91 320

8 927

0

0

41 993

Other finance income

1 735

4 212

Total finance income

119 679

154 606

Interest expense
- bank loans
- other interest
Change in discounted long-term receivables

-72 823
-32 478
-23 667

-88 654
-7 685
-730

Additions to adjustments

-43 180

-67 206

-149 713

-87 459

Other finance costs

-25 079

-28 040

Total finance costs

-346 940

-279 774

Dividends received
Income from sale of receivables

Exchange losses on foreign currency transactions

Other interest income primarily comprises interest from STZ Development, a.s. of TCZK 13
000 (2012: TCZK 16 000) relating to a long-term receivable (see note 10) and interests from
a long-term receivable from Epispol of TCZK 5 108 (2012: TCZK 0).
Dividends received in 2013 were paid out by Synpo, a.s.
Other interest expense comprises primarily interest on a loan from Via Chem Group, a.s. of
TCZK 14 194 (2012: TCZK 14 233) and regular default interest of TCZK 18 272 (2012:
TCZK 0).
The change in the discounted long-term receivables of TCZK 23 667 arose as a result of the
change in the estimate of the discounted long-term receivable from STZ Development, a.s.
at the rate of 6.5%.
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors
The overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company's financial performance. In its activities, the Company faces the following
financial risks:
a) Market risk
a. Currency risk
b. Commodity risk
b) Interest rate risk
c) Credit risk
d) Liquidity risk
e) Operating risk
(a) Market risk
Market risk for the Company is derived primarily from changes in market prices, exchange
rates, interest rates, share prices or commodity prices and their impact on the Company’s
profits. The total exposure to market risk depends on the structure of profit and loss and the
sensitivity of individual assets and liabilities to any changes in market prices.
a. Currency risk
Currency risk is the type of risk generated by the changing value of one currency against
another currency. Because the Company exports and imports most of its production and
material, it is exposed to currency risk, primarily with respect to the euro.
The Company does not use hedging instruments offered by banks because the long-term
hedging is not effective and also not possible. Therefore, the Company seeks to use natural
hedging of exchange rate risks, for example by the full negotiation of contracts with local
suppliers of raw materials in euro. Supply of electrical energy and gas is also invoiced in euro,
which increases the risk of natural coverage from exchange rate changes. The volume of
purchases in EUR for 2013 represented 65.8% of the volume of sales in EUR (2012: 76%).
The Company applies hedge accounting to record hedging against currency risks in relation to
expected future proceeds denominated in EUR. The hedge accounting started to be applied on
1 October 2013. As its hedging instrument, the Company selected foreign currency financing,
namely loans totalling TEUR 38 424 as at the end of 2013; the effective hedging portion
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amounted to TEUR 36 975 at the end of 2013. The hedged cash flows are expected in the
period between 2014 and 2017.
In relation to the application of hedge accounting in 2013 and as a result of the hedging cash
flows from the amount reported in Other comprehensive income, a loss of TCZK 3 748 was
transferred to expenses. The transfer is reported in Finance costs in the Statement of
comprehensive income

Receivable classification by currency and region
As at 31 December 2013

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

825 215
107 774
0

88 604
337 530
27 590

1 501
198 940
17 210

0
0
0

915 320
644 244
44 800

Total

932 989

453 724

217 651

0

1 604 364

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

828 777
344
0

34 029
295 922
114 392

0
190 550
14 178

0
0
0

862 806
486 816
128 570

Total

829 121

444 343

204 728

0

1 478 192

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

1 609 588
0
0

1 675 136
255 609
14 077

10 919
4 917
2 564

0
993
0

3 295 643
261 519
16 641

Total

1 609 588

1 944 822

18 400

993

3 573 803

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

1 355 303
13 168
0

529 929
1 303 661
137 681

551
129
2 711

0
0
0

1 885 783
1 316 958
140 392

Total

1 368 471

1 971 271

3 391

0

3 343 133

As at 31 December 2012

Payable classification by currency and region
As at 31 December
2013

As at 31 December
2012
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As mentioned above, the Company’s management seeks natural hedging of currency risk
including the actual settlement of receivables and payables.

Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments in foreign currency to changes in foreign
exchange rates
Appreciation (depreciation) of the Czech crown of CZK 0.25 against EUR and USD, as
described below, would result in an increase / a decrease of the profit/loss as follows:
31 December 2013

31 December 2012

TCZK

TCZK

Appreciation of EUR – impact on income statement

-4 349

-24 442

Appreciation of EUR – impact on equity

-9 244

0

Appreciation of USD

2 504

2 642

Depreciation of EUR – impact on income statement

4 349

Depreciation of EUR – impact on equity

9 244

24 442
0

-2 504

-2 642

In TCZK

Depreciation of USD

b. Commodity risk
The Company is exposed to commodity risk arising from changes in prices of raw materials
and energy. The Company manages commodity risk in a way that includes contractual
agreements with customers to adjust the selling price if a change in the purchase price of raw
materials and energy occurs.

(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from movements in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to
changes in interest rates, particularly in the credit area, depending on the development of the
announced interest rates. At 31 December 2013, the Company had no loans with fixed interest
rates.
As at 31 December 2013, the Company reports the following interest-bearing financial
instruments:
Financial instruments with fixed interest rate

Long-term receivables
Non-bank loans
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Financial instruments with variable interest rate

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

483 485
582 728
1 053 784
334

429 425
673 679
1 062 680
314

Long-term receivables
Loans in CZK
Loans in EUR
Non-bank loans

Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments with fixed interest rate
The Company does not account for any financial instruments with fixed interest rates in fair
value; therefore the change in the interest rate would have no impact on profit/loss.
Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments with variable interest rate

A change of 100 basis points in the interest rate would increase or decrease profit as follows:
Financial instruments with variable interest rate

31 December 2013
TCZK
- 11 534
11 534

Sensitivity to cash flow – increase of interest rate
Sensitivity to cash flow – decrease of interest rate

31 December 2012
TCZK
-13 072
13 072

Effective interest rate and evaluation analysis
The table shows the effective interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they are revalued.
31 December 2013

Effective interest Receivable/liability
rate
amount
%
TCZK

Future change
in interest rate

Total interest-bearing receivables

3.51

596 985

*

Total loans in CZK
Total loans in EUR
Total non-bank loans

4.41
4.34
7.23

582 728
1 053 784
200 334

*
*
*

Total interest-bearing liabilities

1 836 846
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31 December 2012

Effective interest Receivable/liability
rate
amount
%
TCZK

Future change
in interest rate

Total interest-bearing receivables

3.49

542 925

*

Total loans in CZK
Total loans in EUR
Total non-bank loans

4.50
4.24
7.00

673 679
1 062 680
200 314

*
*
*

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Due date

2017
2017
2017

1 936 673

* No change is expected in contractual interest rates. The current interest rate depends only on changes in the
rates announced by central banks according to individual bank loan agreements.
If the indicators pre-set in stabilisation contracts are not met, bank creditors are entitled to increase their
interest rates by 1%.
In TCZK

Carrying
value
2013
TCZK

Fair value
2013
TCZK

Carrying
value
2012
TCZK

Fair value
2012
TCZK

Trade receivables and other receivables and
advances paid
Long-term receivables
Tax receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Purchased bonds
Non-bank loans
Unpaid interest on non-bank loans
Loans in CZK
Loans in EUR
Unpaid interest on loans
Trade, tax and other liabilities

944 017
596 985
71 516
36 075
6 388
-200 334
-25 139
-582 728
-1 053 784
0
-1 701 191

944 017
596 985
71 516
36 075
6 388
-200 334
-25 139
-582 728
-1 053 784
0
-1 701 191

891 605
542 925
73 874
75 954
6 388
-200 314
-10 945
-673 679
-1 062 680
0
-1 332 195

891 605
542 925
73 874
75 954
6 388
-200 314
-10 945
-673 679
-1 062 680
0
-1 332 195

Total

-1 908 195

-1 908 195

-1 689 067

-1 689 067
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(c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk arising from the inability or unwillingness of counterparties to honour
their commitments. Counterparty (customer) solvency is the most important criterion that
must be reviewed and evaluated periodically.
The Company has within its internal credit policy a defined strategy (internal rules and
regulations) which ensures that products and services are sold to customers under appropriate
terms and conditions. Before offering customer standard payment and delivery terms, the
credit status of each individual customer is assessed. This evaluation takes into account
external credit ratings and references from specialised firms. Customer credit limits are set
corresponding to the score results. Evaluation and implementation of customer credit limits is
carried out by the finance department (credit manager). The credit policy also includes rules
against exceeding the credit limit or deterioration of payment discipline.
The Company also uses services of a credit insurance firm, and insures some of its receivables
against risks arising from potentially high-risk territories. This insurance also minimises the
negative impact of any expected credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date was as follows:

Carrying value

Long-term receivables
Trade receivables and other receivables
Other receivables
Cash
Total

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December
2012
TCZK

596 985
722 609
213 254
42 463

542 925
570 176
0
82 342

1 575 311

1 195 443

The Company does not have any customer having a more than 10% share in the total
balance of trade receivables.

94

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
III.

NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Analysis of maturity of short-term trade receivables
31 December 2013
TCZK

Impairment
losses
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Impairment
losses
TCZK

Due
0 - 90 overdue
90 - 180 overdue
180 - 360 overdue
360 and over

546 702
139 241
7 094
7 707
88 208

0
0
-163
-1 771
-64 409

453 956
90 925
12 858
23 646
54 409

0
-2 878
-9 129
-867
-52 744

Total

788 952

-66 343

635 794

-65 618

Fair value

722 609

95
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Changes in impairment losses
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December
2012
TCZK

Balance at 1 January
Change

-65 618
-725

-77 614
11 996

Balance at 31 December

-66 343

-65 618

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity is the ability to meet due financial obligations at any time. Liquidity risk is the risk
that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations at their maturity dates.
Prudent liquidity management requires maintaining sufficient cash on hand and cash
equivalents and the availability of funding through an adequate number of committed credit
facilities.
To control the cost of their own products and services, the Company uses a method of cost
allocation by activity, which allows monitoring of cash flow requirements and optimises
return on investment.
To ensure sufficient liquidity to cover operating expenses, the Company uses a standardised
system of working capital management, especially management of receivables and inventory
optimisation. Funds tied in inventory are minimised, however inventory level does not affect
the normal course of business. The Company also uses services of factoring companies for
portfolios of receivables with longer maturities to minimise tied funds.
Recently the Company has reported significant overdue liabilities. The Company concludes
formal as well as informal instalment calendars with suppliers to whom it owes payments
more than 60 overdue. The settlement of those liabilities is the Company’s priority. Other
payables overdue for more than 60 days for which no instalment calendars have been
concluded are paid according to the actual operating cash flows.
The payment of the Company’s liabilities according to their maturity including estimated
interest payments is stated below:
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As at 31 December
2013
Contractual cash flows
Due or
up to
2 months

2-6
months

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

25 473

7 685 248 315

0

281 473

836 162

131 373

259 179 483 120

1 214 046

149 837

38 722

1 337 086

985 999

195 568

Due or up to
2 months

2 - 6 months

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

0

0

123 040

Other liabilities
Total

Loans
Bank loans

6 – 12
months 1 - 2 years
TCZK

1 184

0 1 832 874

3 457

0 1 407 246

268 048 734 892

0 3 521 593

As at 31 December
2012
Contractual cash flows
Due or up to
2 months

2 - 6 months

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

0

0

11 259

0

Loans
Bank loans

Due or up
to
2 months

2-6
months

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

200 000

0

211 259

6 – 12
months 1 - 2 years

0

95 600

881 653

Other liabilities

1 123 583

16

0

Total

1 123 583

95 616

892 912

191 200 585 203
0

0 1 753 656

0

0 1 123 599

191 200 785 203

0 3 088 514

(e) Operational risk
Operational risk is generally defined as the possibility of loss due to operational deficiencies
and errors. In the narrower definition, operational risk is a risk arising from operating
business activities. In broader sense, operational risk includes all the risks that are not
attributed to credit risk, market risk or liquidity risk.
The Company manages its operational and production risks to avoid financial losses and
damage. These risks primarily relate to gradual depreciation (wear and tear) of the
Company’s machinery and equipment, potential shutdowns and insurance.
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The effects of everyday use of equipment and machinery continually increase over time.
Every year the Company prepares plans to carry out preventive maintenance and shutdowns
to eliminate the risk of unplanned shutdowns.
Having said that, the Company is still involved in a major new electrolysis construction
project, which the Company finds crucial for several reasons. The main reason is the
conversion of a technologically obsolete mercury-based electrolysis, which the Company
can operate on the basis of an Integrated pollution prevention and control licence only until
2015. The new electrolysis will be using membrane technology, which will decrease the
negative impacts on the environment, increase the production efficiency and the competitive
advantage of the vertically integrated epoxy resin producer.
The project aims to implement advanced and state-of-the-art technology, which is becoming
a worldwide standard. The project will also allow for the intensification of epoxy resin
production thanks to the increase of internal chlorine production. Other expected benefits
include the increase of the production efficiency thanks to lower energy consumption. The
modern design of the new electrolysis.
The Company has insurance coverage for most of its important assets (e.g. insurance for
property and equipment, and liability insurance) to cover most of the risks and major claims.
(f)

Equity management

The Company manages the value of equity to secure the confidence of creditors, business
partners and financial markets, as well as to secure future growth. The equity structure is set
out in Note 12.
The Company regularly monitors and evaluates return on equity, along with the average cost
of debt in order to ensure the expected return to shareholders while using the Company‘s
capital strength in negotiations with creditors.

23. INCOME TAX

Current tax
Current year
Adjustment of tax relating to prior periods
Deferred tax
Impact of changes in temporary differences

98
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2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

0
0

0
2 825

-39 232

-5 769
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Total income tax

-39 232

-2 944

31 December
2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

-249 029
19%

-177 504
19%

-47 316

-33 726

20 647
-5 436
-7 127

30 911
-2 954
2 825

Total calculated income tax

-39 232

-2 944

Effective income tax rate

15.75%

1.65%

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax
Income tax rate
Income tax calculated
Impact of tax non-deductible expenses
Impact of tax-exempt income
Tax relating to prior periods

The Company does not report any tax arrears with the local tax authority.
Deferred tax
Assets
2012
2013

Liabilities
2013
2012

Difference
2013/2012
2012/2011

Non-current assets
Inventories
Provisions
Hedge accounting
Tax losses carried forward

11 907
2 493
856
11 872
70 400

11 541
2 557
1 200
0
33 353

-96 850
0
0
0
0

-99 077
0
0
0
0

2 593
-64
-344
11 872
37 047

-7 234
461
-4 901
0
17 443

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Recorded deferred tax liability

97 528

48 651

-96 850
678

-99 077
-50 426

51 104

5 769

As at 31 December 2013, the Company reports a tax loss of TCZK 370 529 (2012: TCZK
175 542) which can be used to decrease the tax base in future. A tax loss of TCZK 115 570
(2012: TCZK 78 000) can be used until 2014; the remaining tax loss expires in 2017 and
2018.
The deferred tax asset recorded in Hedge accounting was calculated based on foreign
exchange differences of TCZK 62 486 arising from a hedging instrument (credit financing
of TEUR 38 424), which were recorded in equity. The change in the deferred tax assets was
also recorded in equity.
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24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The Company is involved in the following transactions with related parties:
Receivables and payables with related parties

EPISPOL, a. s.
SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
SYNPO, akciová společnost
Oleochem, a.s.
INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
CHS Resins, a.s.
CHS Epi, a.s.
STZ a.s. v konkurzu
Spolpharma, s.r.o.
Spolchemie Electrolysis, a.s.
Usti Infrastructure s.r.o.
CSS, a.s.
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.
Ivo Hala & Partneři, advokátní kancelář
(attorneys-at-law)
STZ Development, a.s.
Total

Receivables at 31
December
2013
2012
128 565
113 500
307 385
190 965
0
6
16 496
11 443
10 261
1 156
13 738
27 445
52 692
0
0
0
2 635
1 967
1 018
16
2 096
1 425
21 370
2 462
12 649
287

Payables at 31 December
2013
201 735
0
17 136
0
0
0
55 279
41
6
0
0
529
3 084

2012
133 002
0
4 354
0
52
0
0
41
0
0
0
4 387
5 579
860
138

18
375 758

17
429 425

587
49

944 681

780 114

278 446

148 413

Liabilities from other loans
As at 31 December 2013, the Company reported non-banking loans of TCZK 225 473
(2012: TCZK 211 259) received from the following companies:
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Via Chem Group, a.s.
Bakelite Epoxy GmbH

225 139
334

210 945
314

Total

225 473

211 259

In frame of a contractual arrangement of the Contract on a temporary adjustment of legal
relations with banks, on 5 October 2009 the Company entered into a Loan Agreement with
Via Chem Group, a.s. as the debtor. Under this agreement, it received a loan of TCZK
200 000 which was due within one year since the date of conclusion of the agreement. The
concluded interest rate is 7% p.a. In 2013 and 2012, the principal of this loan was reported
as a long-term principal as under the Stabilisation Agreement it is a liability subordinated to

100

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
III.

NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

the liability to banking creditors. The related charges of this loan have been reported as
short-term charges.
In 2005, the Company entered into a General Loan Agreement as the debtor with SYNPO,
akciová společnost for drawing a loan up to the maximum amount of TCZK 30 000 with an
interest rate of 1M PRIBOR + 0.5% and with a maturity of maximum 10 days since the
creditor´s request or with no fixed maturity date. As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, the general loan agreement was not drawn.
In 2009, the Company entered into a General Loan Agreement as the debtor with
INFRASPOL, s.r.o. for drawing a loan up to the maximum amount of TCZK 1 000 with an
interest rate of 1M PRIBOR +2.3% and with a maturity of maximum 10 days since the
creditor´s request or with no fixed maturity date. As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, the general loan agreement was not drawn.
In 2009, the Company entered into a General Loan Agreement as the debtor with Bakelite
Epoxy GmbH for drawing a loan up to the maximum amount of TEUR 23 with an interest
rate of 1M PRIBOR +3.5% and with a maturity of maximum 10 days since the creditor´s
request or with no fixed maturity date. As at 31 December 2013, the balance of the loan was
TCZK 334 (2012: TCZK 314).

Purchase and sales volumes with related parties

SYNPO, akciová společnost
EPISPOL, a.s.
SPOLPHARMA, s.r.o
Oleochem, a.s.
CSS, a.s.
Spolchemie, a.s.
CHS Resins, a.s.
STZ Development, a.s.
Spolchemie Electrolysis, a.s.
Spolchemie N.V.
CHS Epi, a.s.
Ivo Hala & Partneři, advokátní kancelář
(attorneys-at-law)
Infraspol, s.r.o.
Total

Purchases
2013
18 555
229 631
13 459
0
35 838
77 991
0
558
0
0
54 852

2012
14 828
210 740
17 928
5 012
32 639
28 043
0
662
0
0
0

Sales
2013
1 127
49 881
618
4 858
22 004
33 872
2
747
2
107 727
38 054

2012
959
41 618
370
22 134
4 937
649
4
501
14
0
75

6 790
11 456

4 840
293

96
2 805

262
2 366

449 130

314 985

261 793

73 889

The most significant purchases and sales volume is with EPISPOL, a.s. This subsidiary
produces low molecular weight epoxy resins for the Company under a toll fee production
agreement. The Company provides all necessary infrastructure and administrative services
to the subsidiary.
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Shareholders, members of statutory and supervisory bodies, and members of management
In addition to bonuses, the Company also covers the liability insurance of members of
statutory and supervisory bodies and management. In 2013, the Company paid TCZK 1 102
in liability insurance (2012: TCZK 161).
In 2013 and 2012, members of the Company´s management did not receive any nonmonetary benefits.
Dividends
The annual General Meeting of the Company held on 7 July 2008 decided to pay out
dividends from the profit for 2007 in the amount of TCZK 49 831. The unpaid balance of
TCZK 3 564 was added to retained profits in 2012.

25. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The indicator of comprehensive earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or
loss attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued
for the year.

Net profit / loss (in TCZK)
Number of ordinary shares issued
Basic earnings/loss per share indicator in CZK

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

-209 797

-174 560

3 878 816
-54.09

3 878 816
-45.00

Diluted earnings per share are consistent with the Basic earnings per share.

26. RESEARCH AD DVELOPMENT
In 2013, the Company spent TCZK 34 480 (2012: TCZK 31 774) on research and
development. In-house expenses on research and development activities amounted to TCZK
16 270 (2012: TCZK 14 974).
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27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at the reporting date, the Company did not conclude any significant contracts from which
future potential liabilities could arise.

Planned future costs
The Company uses amalgam electrolysis in the production process under the integrated
licence valid until 31 December 2015. Therefore, the Company was planning to build a new
membrane electrolysis facility in compliance with the conditions for integrated prevention
and using state-of-the-art BAT technology for production of chlorine and alkaline
hydroxides. The Company´s management estimates the total investment expenses connected
with implementation of this investment to be TCZK 1 209 000. Next to this amount, TCZK
136 284 was already invested in the previous period before 31 December 2013 and TCZK
122 994 is part of assets under construction. Further works on the electrolysis will be carried
out by Spolchemie Elektrolysis; prior to 31 December 2013, TCZK 19 460 000 had already
been invested.

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Environmental liabilities
The Company has a contract with the National Property Fund (since 2006 the Ministry of
Finance of the Czech Republic, referred to as „MF“), in which MF has undertaken to cover
the cost of removing old environmental burdens identified at the date of privatisation of up
to TCZK 2 900 000.
So far, a total of TCZK 2 684 003 was spent for these purposes of which TCZK 1 021 203
was spent to complete the landfill remediation in Chabařovice. Currently, there is a soil
remediation of the manufacturing facility of the Company being carried out. Estimated
future costs for this remediation are planned for the years 2014 – 2018 and amounts to
TCZK 226 532.
The estimated expenditure of the Ministry of Finance on the removal of old environmental
burdens does not exceed the adjusted contract between the Company and the Ministry of
Finance. Since during the cleaning process of the area there is no withdrawal or acceptance
of funds of the Company, the estimated costs are not reported as a provision.
Other contingent liabilities
Liability for any future commitments SETUZA, a.s., ID 46708707 and/or commitments of
ČESKÝ OLEJ, a.s., ID 25720546, which could arise in the future from alleged illegal public
support provided by the Government of the Czech Republic, to which the Company obliged
itself currently persists.
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As the European Commission or another competent authority has not yet initiated the
proceedings for an assessment of the compatibility of the alleged public support provided to
SETUZA a.s. and/or to ČESKÝ OLEJ, a.s. by the Czech Republic with the common market,
the situation regarding this liability remains unchanged. Taking into consideration all
available information, management believes the probability that the company will be forced
to meet this commitment is zero. The estimated financial effect of a possible decision of the
Government of the Czech Republic to provide illegal public support to the companies above
cannot be objectively assessed.
In 2006, the Company provided guarantees to its subsidiary, EPISPOL, a.s. for an
investment loan in the amount of TCZK 600 000 from Bawag Bank CZ (currently LBBW
Bank CZ). As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding balance amounted to TCZK 278 184.
The Company´s management is not aware of any other contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2013.

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Upon the decision of the CEO of the Prague Stock Exchange from 17 March 2014, the
Company shares were excluded from the Standard Market trading with the effect from
24 March 2014.
No other events except for those mentioned above in the previous notes have occurred since
the reporting date that would have any material impact on the financial statements as at
31 December 2013.

Ústí nad Labem, on 30 May 2014

Ing. Jan Schmidt
Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Ing. Jan Šrubař
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU
for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013
of

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu,
akciová společnost
Translated from the Czech original
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

3 220 901
34 485
264 068
20
378 423
678
14 912

3 329 969
44 488
243 289
20
430 231
0
12 601

3 913 487

4 060 598

516 666
819 827
66 134
110 620
75 329
14 937

552 865
675 280
131 782
82 047
120 187
31 920

Total current assets

1 603 513

1 594 081

TOTAL ASSETS

5 517 000

5 654 679

ASSETS

Tangible assets
Investment property
Intangible assets
Long-term financial investments
Long-term receivables
Deferred tax asset
Investments in equity accounted investees

5
6
7
8
10
27
13

Total non-current assets

Inventories
Trade receivables
Other short-term receivables
Tax receivables
Cash and deposits
Advances paid

9
10
10
11

The notes on pages 8 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

1 939 408
77 500
-50 689
-927 338

1 939 408
77 500
-64
-709 122

1 038 881

1 307 722

48 917

46 927

1 087 798

1 354 649

323 304
830 932
48 155
7 184

304 043
1 068 516
81 882
7 299

1 209 575

1 461 740

1 693 395
58 136
1 112 653
7 620
347 823

1 463 331
69 604
1 060 916
6 947
237 492

Total current liabilities

3 219 627

2 838 290

Total liabilities

4 429 202

4 300 030

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

5 517 000

5 654 679

EQUITY
Share capital
Statutory reserve fund
Other comprehensive income
Accumulated losses

12

Equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests
TOTAL EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Other non-current liabilities
Long-term loans
Deferred tax liabilities
Other provisions

14
20
27
19

Total non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other loans and borrowings
Short-term bank loans
Other provisions
Advances received

15
17
20
19
18

The notes on pages 8 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended
31 December 2013
TCZK

Year ended
31 December 2012
TCZK

5 574 203

5 455 155

-39 788

86 207

15 311
-4 260 807
-603 442
-450 130
-281 447
147 827
-75 845

5 719
-4 230 031
-646 290
-468 284
-314 936
161 662
-105 714

25 882

-56 512

-427 387
162 413

-340 132
199 311

Net finance costs

-264 974

-140 821

Share of profit of equity accounted investees
Profit/loss before income tax

1 058
-238 034

-218
-197 551

20 696

9 878

-217 338

-187 673

Note

Revenues
Change in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress
Capitalisation of own production
Cost of sales
Services
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating income
Other operating expenses

21

22
24
5,6,7
23
23

Operating profit / loss
Finance costs
Finance income

Income tax expense

25
25

27

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
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Year ended
31 December 2013
TCZK

Year ended
31 December 2012
TCZK

-75
-50 614
-50 689

-3 311
0
-3 311

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

-268 027

-190 984

Profit/loss attributable to shareholders
Profit/loss attributable to non-controlling
interests
Total profit/loss

-219 328

-191 049

1 990
-217 338

3 376
-187 673

-270 017

-194 360

1 990
-268 027

3 376
-190 984

-56,5

-49,3

Note

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange differences on foreign
investments
Gains/losses from hedging instruments
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders
Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per share in CZK

30

The notes on pages 8 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
capital

Balance at 1 January 2012
Profit/loss for 2012
Transfer to statutory reserve fund
Other comprehensive income
Changes in subsidiaries
Transactions with owners recorded directly in
equity
Write-off of liability relating to dividend payment
Balance at 31 December 2012
Profit/loss for 2013
Other comprehensive income
Changes in subsidiaries
Gains/losses from hedging instruments
Balance at 31 December 2013

Statutory
Other
reserve comprehensiv
fund
e income

Retained
earnings

Total

Noncontrolling
interests

Total
equity

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

1 939 408

68 105

3 247

-511 255

1 499 505

43 651

1 543 156

0
0
0
0

0
9 395
0
0

0
0
-3 311
0

-191 049
-9 395
0
-987

-191 049
0
-3 311
-987

3 376
0
0
-100

-187 673
0
- 3 311
-1 087

0

0

0

3 564

3 564

0

3 564

1 939 408

77 500

-64

-709 122

1 307 722

46 927

1 354 649

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
-11
0
-50 614

-219 328
0
1 112
0

-219 328
-11
1 112
-50 614

1 990
0
0
0

-217 338
-11
1 112
-50 614

1 939 408

77 500

-50 689

-927 338

1 038 881

48 917

1 087 798

The notes on pages 8 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Note

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

-217 338

-187 673

333 703

389 055

281 447
54 566
-50 387
0
112 266
-20 696
-43 493

314 936
-15 222
908
-28
101 689
-13 228
0

265 647

172 880

-165 841
394 996
36 492

92 094
214 268
-133 482

382 012

374 262

255
-88 982
0

16
-107 659
- 3 350

293 285

263 269

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/loss for the period
Adjustments for non-cash transactions:
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets
Change in adjustments and provisions
Loss /(gain) on sale of fixed assets
Loss /(gain) on sale of financial investments
Interest income and expenses
Income tax
Other non-cash transactions

5,6,7
5,7,9,10,19
23
25
27
10,27

Changes in non-cash components of working capital:
Change in trade and other receivables
Change in trade and other short-term payables
Change in inventories

10
15
9

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

25
25
27

Net cash from operating activities

The notes on pages 8 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

5,6,7

-113 872
0
49 827

-36 588
0
22 501

-64 045

-14 087

-278 772

-212 988

-278 772

-212 988

-49 532

36 194

120 187

84 709

4 674

-716

75 329

120 187

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets
Acquisition of financial investments
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

23

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Change in non-current liabilities and loans

14,16,17

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
11

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

11

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 8 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost (“the Company”) was
incorporated on 31 December 1990. The address of its registered office is Ústí nad Labem,
Revoluční 1930/86, postcode 400 32, Czech Republic, ID# 00011789. The Company is
recorded in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in Ústí nad Labem,
Section B, Insert 47.
The companies included in the consolidation (“the Group”) are: SYNPO, akciová
společnost (100% stake), EPISPOL, a.s. (90% stake), Oleochem, a.s. (100% stake),
Spolpharma, s.r.o. (100% stake), INFRASPOL, s.r.o. (100% stake), CHS Resins, a.s.
(100% stake), Spolchemie, a.s (100% stake), Bakelite Epoxy GmbH (100% stake),
Spolchemie N.V. (100% stake acquired in 2011), CHS Epi, a.s. (100% stake acquired in
2011), Spolchemie (M) SdnBhd (100% stake acquired in 2011), SPOLCHEMIE
Electrolysis, a.s. (100% stake acquired in 2011), and Usti Infrastructure s.r.o. (50% stake
acquired in 2011).
Due to an insignificant stake of 0.019% and the inability to influence the company,
Chemapol Group, a.s. is not part of the Group.
The Group’s principal activity is the research, development, manufacture and processing of
chemicals and chemical products.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and in
accordance with the Accounting Act and other regulations effective in the Czech Republic
as at 31 December 2012.
b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Czech Koruna (CZK), which is
the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in CZK has been
rounded to the nearest thousand (TCZK) (unless stated otherwise).
c) Going concern and significant events
The Group’s activity is contingent upon the financial situation of the Company. In 2009, as
a result of the global crisis, the Company experienced a decline in sales and subsequent
problems with liquidity management. The Company’s management believes that the ability
of the Company to continue as a going concern is primarily dependent on its successful
management of cash flows related to its credit exposure and working capital.
Refinancing and extension of bank loans
The 2010 agreement on the temporary modification of relationships with bank creditors
enabled the Company to defer payments on the loans existing at that time. Under this
contractual arrangement, the Company’s assets were pledged in favour of ČSOB, KB,
Citibank Europe, LBBW and Raiffeisenbank to secure the banks’ loan receivables. The
agreement was repeatedly extended via amendments. The last extension, until 30 April
2012, occurred in 2012.
On 30 April 2012 the Company concluded a new agreement on the temporary modification
of relationships with bank creditors when, concurrently, the receivables of three of the five
bank creditors were acquired by a new bank creditor. This agreement merely extended the
existing relationship with the banks until 29 June 2012.
On 29 June 2012 the Company and Epispol, a.s. concluded a stabilisation agreement with
their banks, thus successfully finalising the refinancing process and stabilising the
relationship with the bank creditors. This agreement defines the maturities of individual
loans and the respective debt covenants for the duration of its validity – until 2017. The
reclassification of a significant portion of bank loans to long-term loans was a positive
stabilising measure. As late as the end of 2011, short-term bank loans totalled
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CZK 2 342 million. At the end of 2012, after the loan restructuring process, the Group
reported short-term bank loans of CZK 1 061 million and long-term bank loans of
CZK 1 069 million.
In 2012 the Group reduced its bank loans by CZK 213 million.
In 2013 the Company continued to pay its debt in due manner. It paid the principal totalling
CZK 278 million. However, total bank loans decreased only by TCZK 99 847 in 2013 due
to the intervention of the Czech National Bank in November 2013, substantially affecting
the rate for the Czech Koruna and resulting in the revaluation of bank loans denominated in
EUR.
Management of working capital
In 2013 the Group generated a loss of TCZK 217 338. As at 31 December 2013 the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by TCZK 1 616 114, which was
primarily due to the inclusion of current bank loans of TCZK 1 112 653 in current
liabilities. These current bank loans represent operating bank loans that are renewed every
year in accordance with the stabilisation agreement. Current trade payables past due
remained totalled TCZK 634 742.
The total amount of trade payables past due comprises:

-

TCZK 71 497 in respect of VA Intertrading Aktiengesellshaft. In 2013 the
Company concluded an informal payment schedule with respect to this payable,
with which it has been complying.

-

TCZK 29 007 in respect of AOC, LLC. An agreement on the purchase and
processing of raw materials has been concluded with this firm. The Company has
receivables of TCZK 22 070 from AOC, LLC.

-

TCZK 64 498 in respect of STZ Development, a.s. The Group reports receivables
from STZ Development, a.s. exceeding the amount of payables to this company.

The remaining payables past due of TCZK 469 740 are the subject of ongoing negotiations
between the Company and its suppliers. The method of managing these payables is
described below.
The Group’s management uses the following standard methods to manage the negative
working capital reported as at 31 December 2013:
i.

Cooperation with tolling partners in the production of inorganics, epoxy resins and
polyesters. Tolling partners provide operating funds for raw materials and the
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Group charges a toll-fee for the processing of these raw materials into finished
products;
ii.

Concluding agreements with suppliers in respect of which the Group has payables
past due on the manner of repaying the liability over a period of time as permitted
by the Group’s operating cash flows (payment schedule agreements);

iii.

Optimising inventories of raw materials and products (which decreased by approx.
CZK 36 million compared to 2012);

iv.

Drawing operating funds via the approved factoring facility of Transfinance a.s.;
and

v.

Selling non-essential fixed assets, where appropriate.

Most of the measures discussed above is being successfully taken by the Company’s
management in 2014 despite that the Company is exposed to risks indicating uncertainty
that may potentially cast doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
However, the Company’s management believes that, after having implemented the above
measures, it will be able to secure sufficient operating funds for the Company. The
financial statements as at 31 December 2013 have therefore been prepared on a going
concern basis.
In addition, the Company’s management approved the budget for 2014 on a going concern
basis. At the date of preparation of these financial statements, the Company considers the
assumptions used in preparing the budget, especially those regarding the prices of input
raw materials/energy and exchange rates, to be reasonable, based on, among other things,
the preliminary unaudited results for the period ended 31 March 2014. The Company’s
management believes that the budget for 2014 will be adhered to.

d) Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses at the reporting date. These estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are considered to be reasonable under
the circumstances that form the basis for estimating the carrying values of assets and
liabilities and that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
The estimates mainly relate to the remaining useful lives of fixed assets, impairment losses
on non-financial and financial assets, adjustments to inventories, and provisions.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.
e) Group entities
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group, i.e. the Company holds, directly or
indirectly, more than 50 percent of the voting rights or otherwise exercises control over
their operations. Control means that the Group has the power to directly or indirectly
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date that control by the Company commences until
the date that control ceases, using the full consolidation method.
Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist
when the Company holds, directly or indirectly, between 20 and 50 percent of the voting
rights.
Associates are consolidated from the date that significant influence by the Company
commences until the date that significant influence ceases, using the equity method.
All intra-group transactions and balances, and any unrealised gains and losses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated if a
transferred asset is impaired, but only to the extent that the recoverable amount of the asset
is not exceeded. Where necessary, the accounting procedures used by group entities have
been changed to ensure consistency with the procedures used by the Group.
A list of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates is provided in Note 29.
f) Consolidation methods
The consolidated financial statements include not only the shares of profit or loss resulting
from the Company’s ownership interests, but also the overall results of entities in which
control is exercised, including an overview of the structure of the entities’ assets and
liabilities. The individual components of assets and profit or loss are included in full
irrespective of the ownership interest by separately presenting non-controlling interests,
which represent other shareholders’ share of the equity in the consolidated financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill is the difference between the acquisition cost of interests in group entities and the
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.
As at that date, the Group tests goodwill for impairment. If any, impairment is recognised
in profit or loss. If the difference is negative, it is recognised immediately in the statement
of comprehensive income.

(b)

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of an entity engaged in the provision of products or
services that are subject to risks and revenues that are separate from assets and services in
other segments. Each segment’s operating results and performance are separately reviewed
by management on a regular basis. In addition, the Group classifies operating segments by
geographical location so as to separate risks and revenues of segments operating in
different economic environments.

(c) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Intangible assets produced internally are measured at the lower of direct costs and
production overheads, or replacement cost. Intangible assets are amortised on a straightline bases over their estimated useful lives, usually for up to five years.
Amortisation begins when the intangible asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, over its estimated useful life. The appropriateness of amortisation periods
and rates is reviewed on a regular basis (at least at each reporting date), with any changes in
amortisation applied in subsequent periods.

(d) Tangible assets
Tangible assets are initially recorded at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost of tangible assets includes all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing
the assets to a working condition for their intended use. Self-constructed assets are
measured at internal production cost.
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The depreciation of items of plant and equipment begins when they are available for use,
i.e. from the month that they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation is recognised
over a period that reflects their estimated useful lives, taking into account their residual
value. The appropriateness of depreciation rates is reviewed annually, with the respective
changes applied in subsequent periods. Significant components of items of property, plant
and equipment are depreciated separately in accordance with their useful lives.
Depreciation is recognised in order to depreciate the cost of assets, except for land, to their
residual value on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Estimated useful lives:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Fixtures and fittings
Vehicles

10-50 years
4-20 years
4-25 years
4-25 years

The cost of significant repairs and regular maintenance is recognised as a tangible asset and
is depreciated in accordance with their useful lives. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
The gain or loss on disposal of an asset is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
Residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually.

(e) Investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, and is not occupied by the Group. Investment property is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation.
Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, i.e.
10-50 years, from the date of acquisition.
Income from investment property is recognised when the rental service is rendered, and is
classified as revenue.
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(f) Impairment of assets
Non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews each asset individually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment, i.e. the carrying amount of the asset exceeding its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its value in use and its net selling price less costs to sell.
Financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews each asset individually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment, i.e. the carrying amount of the asset exceeding the
estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.

(g) Leases
Leases under which all the substantial risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
If an operating leases is terminated early, all penalty payments required by the lessor for
early termination are charged to expenses for the period in which the operating lease was
terminated.
Leases of tangible assets in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the
leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is apportioned between
liabilities and operating expenses at a constant rate. The outstanding lease liability net of
the finance expense is included in other non-current liabilities (depending on maturity).
The interest element of the finance expense is charged to the income statement over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Tangible assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of their useful lives and the term of the lease.
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(h) Other securities and investments
The Group classifies securities and investments other than ownership interests into the
following categories: trading securities, available-for-sale securities and securities held to
maturity. These securities, except for securities held to maturity, are measured at either
current market value or the current value of the share of the entities’ assets.
Securities held to maturity are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets are recognised in the Group’s accounts as of the settlement date.

(i) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in first-out method. The cost of materials and goods for resale includes
expenditure associated with acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present
location and condition, e.g. freight costs, customs duties and insurance costs. The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct materials, direct labour, other direct
production costs and related overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses.

(j) Receivables
Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or pre-determined
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Receivables are initially recognised and
subsequently carried at cost net of any adjustments, which represent the difference between
the carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Adjustments are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal of impairment losses is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash,
bank deposits and money market instruments with original maturities of less than three
months.

(l) Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from transactions involving monetary assets
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and liabilities executed in foreign currencies are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date.

(m) Loans and non-current liabilities
At the date of acquisition, loans and non-current liabilities are recognised at an amount
equal to the consideration received net of transaction costs.
Loans and non-current liabilities are classified as current liabilities when due within 12
months of the reporting date.
Loans and non-current liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(n) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and legal provisions that are expected to be
enacted or substantively enacted when the asset is realised or liability settled.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

(o) Revenue
Revenue from sales is recognised when it is probable that that the economic benefits of a
sale will be transferred to the Company and can be measured reliably. Revenue from sales
is recognised when the significant risks of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, and the income and costs arising in connection with the transaction can be
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estimated reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of all discounts and value added tax (VAT).
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

(p) Provisions
A provision is recognised when, as a result of a past event, the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
If the Group expects reimbursement from another entity for all or some of the costs of
establishing a provision, such reimbursement is recorded as a separate asset, but only to the
extent that the realisation of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The reimbursement
amount shall not exceed the amount of the provision. In profit or loss, the expense relating
to the provision is recognised together with revenue from reimbursements.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are recognised at the
present value of the estimated costs of meeting the respective obligation.

(q) Employee benefits
Pension costs
The Government of the Czech Republic is responsible for the provision of pensions. The
Group makes regular contributions to the state budget to finance the state pension scheme.
The additional monthly contributions that the Group provides to its employees via schemes
operated by pension funds are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which the
respective employee’s entitlement arose.
Long-term benefits
A provision is established for retirement benefits. The provision is calculated annually
using reasonable statistical estimates.

Other short-term benefits
Employee benefits are governed by a collective agreement. Short-term employee benefits
include supplementary pension insurance contributions, annual incentive bonuses, an extra
week of vacation, contributions towards in-house catering, preferential phone and internet
packages, training and retraining, recreational packages for employees and their children,
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and social loans. A provision is established for incentive bonuses based on the probability
of their payment.

(r) Grants
A grant related to the acquisition of an asset is recognised by subtracting the amount of the
grant from the cost of the asset. Grants related to revenue are recognised as a positive
balance in the statement of comprehensive income under other operating income.

(s) Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is recognised in profit or loss, except for
expenditure on development projects accounted for as intangible assets where future
measurable benefits are expected and the related costs are measurable. Development
expenditure previously recognised in profit or loss shall not be considered fixed assets in
any subsequent period.
Development expenditure that is recognised as an intangible asset is amortised from the
start of production of the product to which it relates, on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the intangible asset, which shall not exceed five years.

(t) Hedge accounting
Within the overall currency risk management strategy the Company is required to manage
its exposure to changes in cash flows from business activities resulting from the
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. In accordance with these requirements the Company
enters into hedging transactions (foreign currency financing) aimed to reduce the risk of
changes in the amount of future cash flows from foreign currency collection (translated to
Czech crowns).
The Company applies hedge accounting based on a decision to define a hedge relationship
and upon the fulfilment of hedge accounting criteria. Hedge relationships are properly
documented from the date they are established and their effectiveness is assessed regularly.
For cash flow hedging, the effective portion of gains or losses from hedging instruments is
reported in “Other comprehensive income”. The ineffective portion of these gains or losses
is recognised in profit or loss.
The balance reported in “Other comprehensive income” is charged to expenses or revenues
at the moment the hedged cash flows affect the result of operations, using the “Finance
costs” and “Finance income” accounts.
If a hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for the application of hedge accounting,
i.e. the hedging instrument is terminated, sold, utilised or its validity has expired or the
Company has decided to terminate the hedge relationship, hedge accounting is terminated.
The balance reported in “Other comprehensive income” is charged to expenses or revenues
at the moment the hedged cash flows affect the result of operations.
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If it is expected that a hedged future transaction will not take place, hedge accounting is
terminated and the balance reported in other comprehensive income is immediately
charged to expenses or revenues.
The Company determines the proportionate parts of the principals relating to received loans
denominated in EUR as hedging instruments.
The hedged items are always the adequate parts of expected collections from the sale of
services and products to customers denominated in EUR and applicable to the individual
periods (quarters) of the financial plan according to planned revenues.

(u) Subsequent events
The impact of events that occur between the reporting date and the date of signing the
financial statements is recognised in the financial statements if the events provide further
evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date.
If any significant events indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date occur
between the reporting date and the date of signing the financial statements, the effects of
such events are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised in the financial statements.

(v) Business combinations under common control
Business combinations arising from the acquisition of interests in entities that were under
the control of the Group’s parent before the acquisition are accounted for as if the
acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the current period. Comparatives are not
restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised previously in the acquiree’s financial statements. The components of equity of
the acquired entities are added to the same components of the Group’s equity and any
gain/loss arising is also recognised in equity. Differences arising from the elimination of
previous relationships are included directly in profit or loss.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED IFRS STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS (ONLY STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
RELEVANT TO THE GROUP ARE INCLUDED)
New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have not yet become effective
In preparing the financial statements, the Group applied new or amended standards and
interpretations effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2013.
Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for the Group, but which the Group has not early adopted.
The Group intends to adopt amendments to IFRS that are published but not effective as at
31 December 2013, in accordance with their effective dates.
New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have not yet become effective
The Group is currently considering the possible impact of new standards and
interpretations that will become effective after the year ending 31 December 2013 and that
were not used in the preparation of these financial statements.
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial
Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). IFRS 10
provides a single model to be applied in the control analysis for all investees, including
entities that currently are SPEs in the scope of SIC-12. IFRS 10 introduces new
requirements to assess control that are different from the existing requirements in IAS 27
(2008). Under the new single control model, an investor controls an investee when:
a)
it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvements with the
investee;
b)
it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that investee;
and
c)
there is a link between power and returns.
The new Standard also includes the disclosure requirements and the requirements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements. These requirements are carried
forward from IAS 27 (2008).
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014). IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, supersedes and replaces IAS 31, Interest in Joint
Ventures. IFRS 11 does not introduce substantive changes to the overall definition of an
arrangement subject to joint control, although the definition of control, and therefore
indirectly of joint control, has changed due to IFRS 10. Under the new standard, joint
arrangements are divided into two types, each having its own accounting model defined as
follows:
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a) a joint operation is one whereby the jointly controlling parties, known as the joint
operators, have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement;
b) a joint venture is one whereby the jointly controlling parties, known as joint
venturers, have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014). IFRS 12 requires additional disclosures relating to significant
judgements and assumptions made in determining the nature of interests in an entity or
arrangement, interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates and
unconsolidated structured entities.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014). IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and
disclosure requirements of IAS 27 (2008) for separate financial statements, with some
minor clarifications. Also, the existing requirements of IAS 28 (2008) and IAS 31 for
separate financial statements have been incorporated into IAS 27 (2011). The standard no
longer addresses the principle of control and requirements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements; these have been incorporated into IFRS 10,
Consolidated Financial Statements.
The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associated and Joint Ventures (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). Limited amendments are made to IAS 28
(2008):
• Associates and joint ventures held for sale. IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, applies to an investment, or a portion of an
investment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified
as held for sale. For any retained portion of the investment that has not been
classified as held for sale, the equity method is applied until disposal of the portion
held for sale. After disposal, any retained interest is accounted for using the equity
method if the retained interest continues to be an associate or a joint venture.
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•

Changes in interests held in associates and joint ventures. Previously, IAS 28
(2008) and IAS 31 specified that the cessation of significant influence or joint
control triggered re-measurement of any retained stake in all cases, even if
significant influence was succeeded by joint control. IAS 28 (2011) now requires
that in such scenarios the retained interest in the investment not be re-measured.

The impacts of the initial adoption will depend on the specific circumstances existing in
entities in which the Company holds interests as at the date of the initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the new standard to have any significant impact on the financial
statements.
Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendments do not
introduce new rules for offsetting financial assets and liabilities; rather they clarify the
offsetting criteria to address inconsistencies in their application.
The amendments clarify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off if
that right is:

•
•

not contingent on a future event; and

enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendments
clarify that recoverable amount should be disclosed only for individual assets (including
goodwill) or cash-generated units for which an impairment loss was recognised or reversed
during the period.
The amendments also require the following additional disclosures when an impairment for
individual assets (including goodwill) or cash-generated units has been recognised or
reversed in the period and recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal:

•

the level of IFRS 13 ‘Fair value hierarchy’ within which the fair value measurement
of the asset or cash-generating unit is categorised;

•

for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, a description of the valuation techniques used and any changes in that
valuation technique together with the reason for making it;

•

for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3, each key
assumption (i.e. assumptions to which recoverable amount is most sensitive)
used in determining fair value less costs of disposal. If fair value less costs of
disposal is measured using a present value technique, discount rate(s) used both
in current and previous measurement should be disclosed.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The
amendments allow hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which
has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a central
counterparty as a result of laws and regulations, when the following criteria are met:

•
•

the novation is made as a consequence of laws or regulations;
a clearing counterparty becomes a new counterparty to each of the original
counterparties of the derivative instrument;

•

changes to the terms of the derivative are limited to those necessary to replace the
counterparty.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Acquisition cost

Balance at 1
January 2013

Property, plant
and structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

3 136 243

Other

Under
construction

Total

4 399 031

8 727

333 737

7 877 738

55 384
-1 466
34 599

41 454
-77 407
4 659

0
-943
0

50 891
-2 546
-7 895

147 729
-82 362
31 363

3 224 760

4 367 737

7 784

374 187

7 974 468

Property, plant
and structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

Other

Under
construction

Total

-1 319 101

-3 141 440

-8 531

0

-4 469 072

-67 968
1 465
-21 812

-180 113
63 616
0

0
943
0

0
0
0

-248 081
66 024
-21 812

-1 407 416

-3 257 937

-7 588

0

-4 672 941

Property, plant
and structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

Other

Under
construction

Total

-41 010

-19 730

0

-17 957

-78 697

-2 050
0

0
121

0
0

0
0

-2 050
121

-43 060

-19 609

0

-17 957

-80 626

Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 31
December 2013

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1
January 2013
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 31
December 2013

Adjustments

Balance at 1
January 2013
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31
December 2013

130

Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost
IV. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Carrying
amount
At 1 January 2013
At 31 December
2013

1 776 132

1 237 861

196

315 780

3 329 969

1 774 284

1 090 191

196

356 230

3 220 901

In 2013 and 2012, the Group did not capitalise any loan interests.
In accordance with the Group’s policy, the carrying amount of assets disposed of is charged
to depreciation.
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Acquisition cost

Balance at 1
January 2012

Property, plant
and structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

3 135 667

Other

Under
construction

Total

4 531 365

8 935

329 379

8 005 346

214
-18 872
19 234

18 113
-160 985
10 538

0
-208
0

23 660
-3 915
-15 387

41 987
-183 980
14 385

3 136 243

4 399 031

8 727

333 737

7 877 738

Property, plant
and structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

Other

Under
construction

Total

-1 264 414

-3 060 807

-8 645

0

-4 333 866

-66 829
13 001
-859

-183 038
102 405
0

-34
148
0

0
0
0

-249 901
115 554
-859

-1 319 101

-3 141 440

-8 531

0

-4 469 072

Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 31
December 2012

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1
January 2012
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 31
December 2012
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Adjustments

Property, plant
and structures

Machinery,
equipment and
motor vehicles

Other

Under
construction

Total

-47 009

-20 478

0

-16 045

-83 532

-86
6 085

0
748

0
0

-1 912
0

-1 998
6 833

-41 010

-19 730

0

-17 957

-78 697

1 824 244

1 450 080

290

313 334

3 587 948

1 776 132

1 237 861

196

315 780

3 329 969

Balance at 1
January 2012
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31
December 2012

Carrying
amount
At 1 January 2012
At 31 December
2012

In 2013, the following most important investments were completed and put into use
(depreciation also started):
Total expenses
TCZK
62 100
7 900

Project
Purchase of warehouse premises
Renovation of a field burner

In 2013, the following expenses were spent on the most important assets under
construction:
Expenses in 2013
TCZK
19 500
7 700

Project
Electrolysis conversion
PCPa pilot unit

Most significant assets under construction primarily include expenditures related to the
project of a new plant in Asia of TCZK 110 000. The Group management announced its
intention to use the licence for the ECH-G production in India and China instead of the
original location because there is currently no ECH-G producer in India and the Indian
market is currently experiencing a rapid boom in the field of epoxy resins. The Group
received a patent for ECH-G production on the Indian territory. Another major item
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comprises project expenditures incurred in relation with the upcoming membrane
electrolysis investment of TCZK 143 000.

Finance leases
The Group recognises machinery and equipment under finance lease agreements in tangible
fixed assets. At the end of the lease, the Group has the option to purchase the leased assets
at a pre-determined price. For the time of the lease, the lessor holds the ownership title.
At 31 December 2013 the net carrying amount of the assets was TCZK 15 948 (31
December 2012: TCZK 18 052).
In 2013, the Group signed 12 agreements on the lease of fork-lift trucks. At 31 December
2013 the net carrying amount of the assets was TCZK 5 919.
6.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Balance at 1 January
2013
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January
2012
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December 2012

Acquisition cost

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying amount

107 087

-62 599

44 488

0
0
-30 463
76 624

-1 352
0
21 812
-42 139

-1 352
0
-8 651
34 485

Acquisition cost

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying amount

-63 336

60 711

-1 525

-1 525

1 403
859
-62 599

-1 172
-13 526
44 488

124 047
0
-2 575
-14 385
107 087
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquisition cost
Licences and
patents

Software

Under
construction

Total

478 916

40 012

23 019

541 947

Additions

2 579

680

-4 159

-900

Disposals
Transfers

37 965
-6 058

62
-47

14 461
-16 047

52 488
-22 152

513 402

40 707

17 274

571 383

Licences and
patents

Software

Under
construction

Total

-253 869

-39 997

-4 792

-298 658

-18 184
4 712

-24
47

0
4 792

-18 208
9 551

-267 341

-39 974

0

-307 315

225 047
246 061

15
733

18 227
17 274

243 289
264 068

Balance at 1 January 2013

Balance at 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation / adjustments

Balance at 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 December
2013

Carrying amount
At 1 January 2013
At 31 December 2013
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Acquisition cost
Licences and
patents
482 928

Balance at 1 January 2012

Software

Under
construction

Total

40 026

21 458

544 412

Additions

570

0

-570

0

Disposals
Transfers

0
-4 582

0
-14

2 131
0

2 131
-4 596

478 916

40 012

23 019

541 947

Licences and
patents

Software

Under
construction

Total

-232 432

-39 959

-2 054

-274 445

-21 437
0

-44
6

-2 738
0

-24 219
6

-253 869

-39 997

-4 792

-298 658

250 496
225 047

67
15

19 404
18 227

269 967
243 289

Balance at 31 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation / adjustments

Balance at 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 December
2012

Carrying amount
At 1 January 2012
At 31 December 2012

8. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Long-term financial investments of TCZK 20 represent a 1% investment in Klastr
povrchové úpravy a.s. based in Pardubice.
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9. INVENTORIES
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods
Goods for resale

269 005
20 704
223 192
3 765

259 445
22 927
260 044
10 449

Carrying amount

516 666

552 865

In 2013, inventories were written down by TCZK 21 336 (2012: TCZK 21 630).

10. RECEIVABLES
Long-term receivables
Long-term receivables mostly comprise a receivable from STZ Development, a.s. In 2008,
the receivable from STZ Development was acquired by assignment in nominal value of
TCZK 400 000. The receivable bears an interest at PRIBOR plus 2.5% p.a. The principal
amount (TCZK 400 000) is recorded in its discounted value (TCZK 376 333), the interest
amounts to TCZK 109 811. STZ Development is a subsidiary of Via Chem Group, a.s. In
2013, an impairment loss of TCZK 110 386 (2012: TCZK 67 206) was recognised
considering an analysis of credit risk associated with the receivable.

The Group has no other receivables due in more than 5 years.

Trade receivables

Gross value of short-term trade receivables
Impairment loss
Total

137

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

949 050
-125 223

794 282
-119 002

819 827

675 280
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Other short-term receivables
31 December
2013
TCZK

31 December
2012
TCZK

Estimated receivables
Other short-term receivables

6 817
59 317

76 385
55 397

Total

66 134

131 782

Other short-term receivables are reduced with an impairment loss of TCZK 17 650 (2012:
TCZK 0).

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Cash on hand and bank balances
Short-term securities

68 941
6 388

106 877
13 310

Total

75 329

120 187

12. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised and issued shares:

Ordinary shares with a
nominal value of
CZK 500, fully paid

Number
pcs

31 December 2013
TCZK

Number
pcs

31 December 2012
TCZK

3 878 816

1 939 408

3 878 816

1 939 408

Change in the form of shares from 1 January 2014
As at 31 December 2013, the Company had issued 3 878 816 ordinary certificated bearer
shares at the nominal value of CZK 500 per share.
As at 1 January 2014, certificated bearer shares that are not immobilised, i.e. including
those issued by the Company, are automatically transformed into certificated registered
shares pursuant to Act no. 134/2013 Coll. some measures to increase the transparency of
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joint-stock companies and on amendment of other laws. This transformation is not
conditioned by being approved by the general meeting or recorded into the Commercial
Register. As at the same date, the Company’s by-laws are changed accordingly (also
pursuant to the act).
The Company proceeds in line with valid legal regulations. In March 2014, the board of
directors of the Company called upon the shareholders to exchange their shares in a manner
required for the summoning of the general meeting.
The board of directors will amend the Company’s by-laws and deliver them to the
collection of deeds. At the same time, the board of directors will file an application by 30
June 2014 to record the change in the form of the Company shares to the Commercial
Register.
The shareholders are required to submit their certificated shares to the Company by 30 June
2014; the Company will indicate the new form on the shares or replace them. If the
shareholders fail to do so, they will not be allowed to exercise their rights associated with
the shares after 30 June 2014 and will not be entitled to a dividend payment.
The shareholders are required to submit their shares for replacement by 30 June 2014 and
provide information that need to be recorded in the list of shareholders.
Major shareholders
Since the Company issued certificated bearer shares and since the replacement of the
Company shares by new certificated registered shares will start on 1 May 2014 the earliest,
the current list of shareholders was unknown as at the date of preparation of the financial
statements.
In 2013, no general meeting took place.
Via Chem Group, a.s., holding a 33.12% share in the registered capital and in the voting
rights in the Company, is its major shareholder as at 31 December 2013. Since no
shareholder has requested to summon a general meeting of the Company since November
2012, and since no take-over bid has been submitted, Via Chem Group, a.s. may be
assumed to be the controlling person of the Company.
The statutory reserve fund is created in accordance with Czech legislation by contributions
from the period net profit up to a minimum of 20% of the registered capital.
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13. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
Investments in equity accounted investees include Usti Infrastructure s.r.o. Information on
the ownership interest is disclosed note 29. Summary financial information from the
unaudited financial statements is as follows:
2013
TCZK
48 694
40 839
7 855
21 412
1 410
20 002
38 144
2 116

Total assets
Non-current assets
Current assets and deferrals/accruals
Total liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities and deferrals/accruals
Income
Profit / loss

2012
TCZK
69 832
46 589
23 243
44 630
11 010
33 620
53 199
-436

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loan from Via Chem Group, a.s.
Lease liabilities
Loans from entities other than banks
Other

31 December 2013
TCZK
200 000
7 098
116 206
0

31 December 2012
TCZK
200 000
12 427
91 279
337

323 304

304 043

Carrying amount

The loan from Via Chem Group, a.s. is subordinated to receivables pertaining to banks and
bears a nominal interest rate of 7% p.a. Loans from entities other than banks bear interest
ranging from 4% to 9% p.a.
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15. CURRENT LIABILITIES – TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Estimated payables
Total trade
Other
Payables to employees
Payables to social security
Payables to health insurance
Interest expense - Via Chem Group guarantee
Finance lease liabilities
Other payables
Total other
Sundry liabilities
Tax liabilities
Total sundry
Total

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

1 555 666
18 434
46 438
1 620 538

1 311 039
15 411
44 787
1 371 237

23 437
14 508
6 923
2 695
10 590

23 864
8 422
3 090
2 518
9 942

1 762
59 915

22 428
70 264

12 942
12 942

21 830
21 830

1 693 395

1 463 331

Overdue liabilities as at 31 December 2013 total TCZK 634 742 (2012: TCZK 676 635).
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16. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
The Group terminated one finance lease agreement through cession, but still uses these
assets under operating lease.
At 31 December 2013

Due date

Less than 1 year
2 to 5 years
More than 5 years
Total

At 31 December 2012

Interest

Net future
instalments

Total
future
instalments

Interest

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

11 267

677

10 590

9 942

1 918

8 024

7 678

580

7 098

12 428

2 398

10 030

0

0

0

0

0

0

18 945

1 257

17 688

22 370

4 316

18 053

Total future
instalments

Net future
instalments

17. OTHER LOANS AND BORROWINGS
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Interest on loan from Via Chem Group, a.s.
Short-term overdrafts – non-bank loans

25 139
32 997

10 945
58 659

Total

58 136

69 604

The loan provided by Via Chem Group, a.s. has been recognised as a long-term loan
since 2012 due to a change in the contract with bank creditors (see note 14).
Short-term overdrafts were provided by companies in both the Czech Republic and abroad.

18. ADVANCES RECEIVED
As at 31 December 2013, the Group has advances received of TCZK 347 823 (2012:
TCZK 237 492), of which TCZK 324 446 (2012: TCZK 231 370) is advances received
based on regression factoring.
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19. PROVISIONS
Litigations and
other
disputes

Short-term
employment
benefits

Other

Total

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

Balance as at 1 January 2013

4 564

1 962

7 720

14 246

Additions

0

2 368

1 408

3 776

Utilisation

0

-1 962

-1 141

-3 103

Release

0

0

-115

-115

Balance as at 31 December 2013

4 564

2 368

7 872

14 804

Long-term
Short-term

0
4 564

0
2 368

7 184
688

7 184
7 620

20. BANK LOANS
As part of consolidation of credit relationships with banks, a Stabilisation Contract due on
30 June 2017 was concluded with bank creditors (note 2c). The below classification of
loans corresponds to existing contracts, as amended.
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

1 112 653

1 060 916

Long-term loans due within two years

260 925

162 348

Long-term loans due in two to five years

570 007

906 168

0

0

1 943 585

2 129 432

Loans due within one year

Long-term loans due in more than five years
Total
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Summary of loans as at 31 December 2013

Poštová banka

Type of loan
Short-term

Nominal interest rate
1M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

Currency
EUR

Maturity
2014

TCZK
30 934

Poštová banka

Revolving

1M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2014

410 398

LBBW Bank

Overdraft

1M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

28 764

LBBW Bank

Revolving

1M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

111 721

Raiffeisenbank

Revolving

1M PRIBOR+4% p.a

CZK

2014

225 000

LBBW Bank

Long-term

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a

CZK

2017

136 178

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2014

19 223

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2015

40 861

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

CZK

2015

61 842

Raiffeisenbank

Investment

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

142 038

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

16 756

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

4 549

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

28 059

Poštová banka

Investment

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

102 341

Poštová banka

Long-term

3M EURIBOR+4% p.a.

EUR

2017

277 848

LBBW Bank
Raiffeisenbank

Long-term
Operating

3M PRIBOR+4% p.a
1W PRIBOR + 1,5% p.a.

CZK
CZK

2017
2014

278 184
28 889

Total

1 943 585

In 2009 a lien on the Company’s assets was established in favour of bank creditors as
collateral for loans provided to the Company. As at the date of concluding a Stabilisation
Contract in 2012, the lien was transferred to the banks having concluded the Contract. The
lien values are those reported in the balance sheet of the stand-alone financial statements of
the Company.
An analysis of currency and interest rate risks is described in note Financial instruments.
Meeting conditions of bank loans (covenants)
In accordance with the Stabilisation Contract, the Company should meet, on quarterly and
yearly basis, selected financial ratios (EBITDA, Equity ratio and DSCR). If any of these
ratios is not met, it was agreed that the interest rate on the bank loans should be increased
by 1% p.a. until the Company proves that it has met the terms of the bank covenants as
required. As at the date of preparation of the non-consolidated financial statements, the
bank creditors were informed on the levels of the ratios as at 31 December 2013, and did
not, subsequently, request an increase of the interest rate.
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21. SEGMENT REPORTING
Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2013 can be divided in some parts into the following segments:
Investment
property

Inorganics
TCZK

Epoxy resins
TCZK

Oleochemicals
TCZK

0

213 991

4 153

23 301

22 623

0

264 068

812 798

1 472 048

87 234

52 371

796 170

34 765

3 255 386

91 184

235 551

135 899

28 132

25 900

0

516 666

125 791

395 576

149 077

23 232

114 070

12 081

819 827
661 053
5 517 000

1 391 144

3 038 759

636 252

344 765

139 644

23 639

5 574 203

157 377

164 683

-44 940

59 698

-334 779

23 843

25 882

0

34 519

7 063

2 924

91 223

0

135 729

19

27

6 700

15

14 083

0

20 844

68 993

132 703

23 546

13 100

33 805

9 300

281 447

Profit before tax

157 374

152 809

-58 122

56 576

-569 147

22 476

-238 034

EBITDA

226 370

297 386

-21 394

72 798

-300 974

33 143

307 329

Statement of financial position
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Inventories
Receivables and deferrals

Consumer
chemicals
TCZK

Services
TCZK

TCZK

Total
TCZK

Other assets
Total assets
Statement of comprehensive income
External revenues
Operating profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expenses
Depreciation/amortisation
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The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2012 can be divided in some parts into the following segments:

Statement of financial position
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Inventories
Receivables and deferrals

Investment
property

Inorganics
TCZK

Epoxy resins
TCZK

Oleochemicals
TCZK

Consumer
chemicals
TCZK

Services
TCZK

TCZK

Total
TCZK

0

204 219

12 460

1 995

24 615

0

243 289

842 175

1 569 256

101 265

64 662

752 611

44 488

3 374 457

87 696

291 285

120 648

34 074

19 162

0

552 865

131 091

368 455

63 879

1 753

107 907

2 195

675 280
808 788
5 654 679

Other assets
Total assets
Statement of comprehensive income
External revenues

1 473 873

2 831 070

652 389

317 083

154 402

26 338

5 455 155

259 659

189 078

-47 874

13 610

-485 745

14 760

-56 512

0

0

2

1

15 292

0

15 295

5 795

17 893

7 830

4 319

83 540

0

119 377

75 134

136 287

42 182

14 191

45 640

1 502

314 936

Profit before tax

253 851

171 156

-51 295

12 457

-598 262

14 760

-197 333

EBITDA

334 793

325 365

-5 692

27 801

-440 105

16 262

258 424

Operating profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expenses
Depreciation/amortisation

The EBITDA ratio is defined as the sum of operating profit or loss and depreciation/amortisation.
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The Inorganics segment comprises mainly inorganic products, such as: sodium and potassium
hydroxide, epichlorohydrin, allylchloride, and perchlorethylene.
The Epoxy resins segment comprises mainly low-molecular weight solid resins, alkyd resins,
and also special epoxies for use in construction and electrical engineering and production of
polyesters.
The Services segment includes all non-production and non-selling units such as the power
supply unit, infrastructure, fixed assets management, maintenance, environment, analytical
services, quality control, investment, research, transportation, warehouse management and
customer support. Expenses relating to the management of the Group and financial costs are
also included in this segment. However, only expenses that cannot be allocated to the
production segments are included. This segment also includes Infraspol, s.r.o. providing
infrastructure services and Synpo, a.s., which focuses mainly on providing services in the
research field.
The Oleochemicals segment comprises production of glycerine (pharmaceutical and food
industries), fatty acids (petrochemical, wood industry, plastics), stearate (plaster mixture,
adhesives) and stearin (cosmetics, plastics, rubbers).
The Consumer chemicals segment consists of products falling into the category of toothpastes,
mouthwashes and other cosmetics (creams, emulsions, sun tan milk).

Revenues from ordinary activities in 2013 were generated as follows:
Domestic
TCZK

Foreign
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Inorganics

192 219

1 198 925

1 391 144

Epoxy resins

249 806

2 788 953

3 038 759

Oleochemicals

111 480

524 772

636 252

90 755

254 010

344 765

124 999

14 645

139 644

23 639

0

23 639

792 898

4 781 305

5 574 203

Consumer chemicals
Services
Investment property

Total revenues
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Revenues from ordinary activities in 2012 were generated as follows:
Domestic
TCZK

Foreign
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Inorganics

207 740

1 266 158

1 473 898

Epoxy resins

226 571

2 604 474

2 831 045

Oleochemicals

119 719

532 670

652 389

Consumer chemicals

132 497

184 586

317 083

Services

133 810

20 592

154 402

26 338

0

26 338

846 675

4 608 480

5 455 155

Investment property

Total revenues

Revenue analysis – export in 2013:
Revenues – export in %

Revenues in TCZK

34.4

1 645 306

Poland

8.7

415 868

France

6.8

326 087

Italy

6.4

303 565

Slovakia

5.0

237 805

Spain

3.9

186 795

Great Britain

3.7

175 460

Austria

3.2

151 729

Russia

2.9

140 307

Belgium

2.8

133 404

Sweden

2.7

130 892

Netherlands

2.6

123 292

Hungary

2.6

122 926

Turkey

2.0

96 992

Serbia

1.4

65 199

Finland

1.0

47 230

Switzerland
Other

0.9
9.0

44 735
433 713

Total

100

4 781 305

Germany
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Revenue analysis – export in 2012:
Revenues – export in %

Revenues in TCZK

27.3

1 259 969

Italy

7.6

351 054

France

7.0

323 368

Poland

6.8

315 617

Netherlands

4.5

208 828

Spain

4.5

207 542

Great Britain

4.4

201 717

Sweden

4.1

189 954

Austria

3.7

172 702

Belgium

3.6

165 882

Russia

3.5

160 871

Switzerland

2.9

134 797

Slovakia

2.9

132 178

Hungary

2.9

131 890

USA

2.6

120 629

Turkey

1.7

77 315

Serbia

1.3

59 030

Other

8.6

395 137

Total

100.0

4 608 480

Germany

22. COST OF SALES

Raw materials
Energy
Total

149

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

3 519 192

3 519 655

741 615

710 376

4 260 807

4 230 031
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23. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND INCOME
Other operating expenses

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

Insurance

43 918

36 921

Fines and penalties

3 161

14 752

Taxes and fees

8 401

9 351

Contributions and gifts

2 553

2 731

12 740

12 442

0

908

5 072

28 609

Total

75 845

105 714

Other operating income

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

Gains on sale of fixed assets

50 387

0

0

1 371

34 531

31 979

1 274

1 085

735

62 918

3 001

26 352

Other operating income

24 219

36 291

Received indemnity

33 680

1 666

147 827

161 662

Additions to provisions and adjustments
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Other operating expenses

Profit from inventories disposals
Received operating grants
Inventory surplus
Compensation for damage
Write off of payables

Total

Gains on the sale of fixed assets recognised in 2013 primarily include gains from the sale of
tank cars.
Received operating grants relate to expenditures for research of certain special chemical
substances, primarily nanotechnologies and synthetic polymers. carried out mostly by Synpo,
a.s. These grants were provided under the TIP programme launched by the Ministry of
Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic, under the Alfa programme of Technology Agency
of the Czech Republic and certain European Union framework programmes.
Received indemnities recognised in 2013 primarily include TCZK 32 862 relating to the
compensation received from insurance companies in connection with the floods in the first
half of 2013.
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Compensation for damage recognised in 2012 mostly (TCZK 61 338) comprises estimated
compensation due to unauthorised preliminary termination of a contract by one of the business
partners of the Group.
The write-off of payables recognised in 2012 represents an offset of a receivable and part of a
payable from / to Via Chem Group, a.s.

24. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Personnel expenses
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of statutory and supervisory
bodies

325 415

342 523

5 308

5 323

Social security and health insurance expenses

109 486

110 227

9 921

10 211

450 130

468 284

Other social expenses
Total

Average number of employees, personnel expenses

Total average number of employees
- of which managers
Total personnel expenses (TCZK)
- of which managers (TCZK)

2013

2012

1 106
14

1 102
16

450 130
25 636

468 284
42 477

The item “Managers” comprises the average number of employees in the positions of CEO
and directors of various departments.
The Group does not provide any additional monetary or in-kind benefits except for the
liability insurance of members of management and supervisory bodies. including former
members.
Pension insurance
Since 2000, the Group has contributed monthly to employees’ supplementary pension plans
with a state insurance contribution. Since July 2011 the monthly individual contribution is
TCZK 0.75 (until July 2011 – TCZK 0.5).
The contributions in 2013 totalled TCZK 5 714 (2012: TCZK 6 657).
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Employee compensation
The Group expenses severance payments to employees, whose employment was terminated
for organisational reasons. In 2013, the Group paid and expensed severance payments
amounting to TCZK 1 331 (2012: TCZK 3 423).

25. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS
2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

32

16

20 812

15 279

0

1 767

138 698

123 456

0

41 993

2 871

16 800

162 413

199 311

- bank loans

-88 837

-107 659

- other interest

-46 892

-11 076

-43 180

-67 206

-219 531

-117 522

Other finance costs

-28 947

-36 669

Total finance costs

-427 387

-340 132

Profit/(loss) from financial activities

-264 974

-140 821

Interest income
- bank accounts
- other interest
Discounted long-term receivables
Exchange gains on foreign currency transactions
Gain on sale of financial assets
Other finance income
Total finance income
Interest expense

Additions to adjustments
Exchange losses on foreign currency transactions

Other interest income primarily comprises interest from STZ Development, a.s. of CZK 13
million relating to a long-term receivable (see note 10).
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors
The overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance. In its activities, the Group faces the following financial risks:
a) Market risk
a. Currency risk
b. Commodity risk
b) Interest rate risk
c) Credit risk
d) Liquidity risk
e) Operating risk

(a)

Market risk

Market risk for the Group is derived primarily from changes in market prices, exchange rates.
interest rates, share prices or commodity prices and their impact on the Group’s profits. The total
exposure to market risk depends on the structure of profit and loss and the sensitivity of
individual assets and liabilities to any changes in market prices.
a.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the type of risk generated by the changing value of one currency against another
currency. Because the Group exports and imports most of its production and material it is
exposed to currency risk primarily with respect to the euro.
The Group does not use hedging instruments offered by banks because the long-term hedging is
not effective and also not possible. Therefore, the Group seeks to use natural hedging of
exchange rate risks, for example by the full negotiation of contracts with local suppliers of raw
materials in euro. Supply of electrical energy is also invoiced in euro, which increases the risk of
natural coverage from exchange rate changes.
The Company applies hedge accounting to record hedging against currency risks in relation to
expected future proceeds denominated in EUR. The hedge accounting started to be applied on 1
October 2013. As its hedging instrument, the Company selected foreign currency financing.
namely loans totalling TEUR 38 424 as at the end of 2013; the effective hedging portion
amounted to TEUR 36 975 at the end of 2013. The hedged cash flows are expected in the period
between 2014 and 2017.
In relation to the application of hedge accounting in 2013 and as a result of the hedging cash
flows from the amount reported in Other comprehensive income, a loss of TCZK 3 748 was
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transferred to expenses. The transfer is reported in Finance costs in the Statement of
comprehensive income.
Receivable classification by currency and region
As at 31 December 2013

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

662 777
114 915
0

98 488
467 303
27 747

1 501
0
17 210

0
0
0

762 766
582 218
44 957

Total

777 692

593 538

18 711

0

1 389 941

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

756 545
55 355
228

36 428
335 440
114 559

3 254
2 546
14 985

0
0
0

796 227
393 341
129 772

Total

812 128

486 427

20 785

0

1 319 340

As at 31 December 2013

As mentioned above, the Group seeks natural hedging of currency risk with respect to the actual
dates receivables and payables are settled.

Payable classification by currency and region

As at 31 December
2013

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

2 025 420
52 860
92 778

1 721 135
496 153
19 737

10 919
5 114
2 564

0
1 822
700

3 757 474
555 949
115 779

Total

2 171 058

2 237 025

18 597

2 522

4 429 202

CZK
TCZK

EUR
TCZK

USD
TCZK

Other
TCZK

Total
TCZK

Domestic
EU
Other countries

2 139 654
26 486
3

1 473 677
513 192
137 707

551
2 821
2 791

0
3 148
0

3 613 882
545 647
140 501

Total

2 166 143

2 124 576

6 163

3 148

4 300 030

As at 31 December
2012
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Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments in foreign currency to changes in foreign
exchange rates
Appreciation (depreciation) of the Czech crown of CZK 0.25 against EUR and USD as
described below would result in an increase / a decrease of the profit/loss as follows:
31 December 2013

31 December 2012

TCZK

TCZK

Appreciation of EUR – impact on income statement

-5 738

-12 203

Appreciation of EUR – impact on equity

-9 244

0

1

192

Depreciation of EUR – impact on income statement

5 738

12 203

Depreciation of EUR – impact on equity

9 244

0

-1

-192

In TCZK

Appreciation of USD

Depreciation of USD

b.

Commodity risk

The Group is exposed to commodity risk arising from changes in prices of raw materials and
energy. The Group is trying to manage commodity risk in a way that includes contractual
agreements with customers to adjust the selling price if a change in the purchase price of raw
materials and energy occurs.

(b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from movements in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to
changes in interest rates particularly in the credit area depending on the development of the
announced interest rates. At 31 December 2013, the Group had no loans with fixed interest rates.
As at 31 December 2012, the Group reports the following interest-bearing financial
instruments.
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Financial instruments with fixed interest rate

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

311 087

349 938

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

378 423

430 231

889 801
1 053 784

1 104 208
1 025 224

Non-bank loans

Financial instruments with variable interest rate

Long-term receivables
Loans in CZK
Loans in EUR

Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments with fixed interest rate
The Group does not account for any instruments with fixed interest rates and their changes in
fair value in profit or loss.
Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments with variable interest rate
A change of 100 basis points in the interest rate would increase or decrease profit as follows:
Financial instruments with variable interest rate

31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

-15 652
15 652

-16 992
16 992

Sensitivity to cash flow – increase of interest rate
Sensitivity to cash flow – decrease of interest rate

Effective interest rate
The table shows the effective interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they are revalued.
31 December 2013

Effective interest
rate
%

Liability
amount
TCZK

Future change in
interest rate

Total long-term receivables

3.25

378 423

*

Total bank loans in CZK
Total bank loans in EUR
Total non-bank loans
Total financial liabilities

4.40
4.34
6.52

889 801
1 053 784
311 087
2 254 672

*
*
*
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31 December 2012

Effective interest
rate
%

Liability
amount
TCZK

Future change in
interest rate

Total long-term receivables

4.0

430 231

*

Total bank loans in CZK
Total bank loans in EUR
Total non-bank loans
Total financial liabilities

4.5
4.2
6.9

1 104 208
1 025 224
349 285
2 478 717

*
*
*

Due date

2017
2017
2017

* No change is expected in contractual interest rates. The current interest rate depends only on changes in the rates
announced by central banks according to individual bank loan agreements.

If the indicators pre-set in stabilisation contracts are not met, bank creditors are entitled to
increase their interest rates by 1%.
Carrying and fair values
Carrying
value
2013
TCZK

Fair value
2013
TCZK

Carrying
value
2012
TCZK

Fair value
2012
TCZK

Trade receivables, other receivables and advances paid
Tax receivables
Non-bank loans
Unpaid interest on non-bank loans
Loans in CZK
Loans in EUR
Trade, tax and other payables

1 279 321

1 279 321

1 269 213

1 269 213

110 620
-311 087
-37 638
-889 801
-1 053 784
-2 136 892

110 620
-311 087
-37 638
-889 801
-1 053 784
-2 136 892

82 047
-349 285
-11 598
-1 104 208
-1 025 224
-1 900 994

82 047
-349 285
-11 598
-1 104 208
-1 025 224
-1 900 994

Total

-3 039 261

-3 039 261

-3 040 049

-3 040 049
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(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk arising from the inability or unwillingness of counterparties to honour their
commitments. Counterparty (customer) solvency is the most important criterion that must be
reviewed and evaluated periodically.
The Group has within its internal credit policy a defined strategy (internal rules and regulations)
which ensures that products and services are sold to customers under appropriate terms and
conditions. Before offering customer standard payment and delivery terms, the credit status of
each individual customer is assessed. This evaluation takes into account external credit ratings
and references from specialised firms. Customer credit limits are set corresponding to the score
results. Evaluation and implementation of customer credit limits is carried out by the finance
department (credit manager). The credit policy also includes rules against exceeding the credit
limit or deterioration of payment discipline.
The Group also uses services of a credit insurance firm and insures some of its receivables
against risks arising from remote and potentially high-risk territories. This insurance also
minimises the negative impact of any expected credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date was as follows.
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December
2012
TCZK

Trade receivables
Cash

819 827
75 329

675 280
120 187

Total

895 156

795 467

Carrying value

The Group does not have any customer having a more than 10% share in the total balance of
receivables.
Ageing of trade receivables
31 December 2013
TCZK

31 December 2012
TCZK

Due
0 - 90 overdue
90 - 180 overdue
180 - 360 overdue
360 and over

643 089
153 069
12 325
5 390
5 954

505 510
135 118
9 287
23 673
1 692

Total

819 827

675 280
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Changes in impairment losses relating to trade receivables
2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

Balance at 1 January
Recognised impairment loss

-119 002
-6 221

-118 128
-874

Balance at 31 December

-125 223

-119 002

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity is the ability to meet due financial obligations at any time. Liquidity risk is the risk
that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations at their maturity dates. Prudent
liquidity management requires maintaining sufficient cash on hand and cash equivalents and
the availability of funding through an adequate number of committed credit facilities.
To control the cost of their own products and services, the Group uses a method of cost
allocation by activity, which allows monitoring of cash flow requirements and optimises
return on investment.
To ensure sufficient liquidity to cover operating expenses, the Group has a standardised
system of working capital management, especially management of receivables and inventory
optimisation. Funds tied in inventory are minimised, however inventory level does not affect
the normal course of business. The Group also uses services of factoring companies for
portfolios of receivables with longer maturities to minimise tied funds.
Recently the Group has reported significant overdue liabilities. The Group concludes
instalment calendars with the suppliers to whom it owes payments more than 60 overdue. The
settlement of those liabilities is the Group’s priority. Other payables overdue for more than 60
days for which no instalment calendars have been concluded are paid according to the actual
operating cash flows.
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The payment of the Group’s liabilities according to their maturity including estimated interest
payments is stated below.
As at 31 December 2013
Contractual cash flows
Due or up to
2 months

2 - 6 months

6 – 12
months

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

Over 5
1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years years
TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

Total
TCZK

0

0

39 400

126 348

248 315

0

414 063

129 069

878 216

183 638

333 897

643 286

0

2 168 106

Other liabilities

1 562 120

143 964

2 634

3 591

3 460

0

1 715 769

Total

1 691 189

1 022 180

225 672

463 836

895 061

0

4 297 938

Loans
Bank loans

As at 31 December 2012

Due or up to
2 months

2-6
months

TCZK

TCZK

6 – 12 months 1 - 2 years
TCZK

TCZK

2 - 5 years

Over 5
years

Total

TCZK

TCZK

TCZK

Loans

0

58 659

10 945

91 279

200 000

0

360 883

Bank loans

0

137 600

923 653

282 089

803 387

0

2 146 729

Other liabilities

1 360 489

95 629

98 492

10 278

2 486

0

1 567 374

Total

1 360 489

291 888

1 033 090

383 646

1 005 873

0

4 074 986

(e)

Operational risk

Operational risk is generally defined as the possibility of loss due to operational deficiencies
and errors. In the narrower definition, operating risk is a risk arising from operating business
activities. In broader sense, operating risk includes all the risks that are not attributed to credit
risk, market risk or liquidity risk.
The Group manages its operational and production risks to avoid financial losses and damage.
These risks primarily relate to gradual depreciation (wear and tear) of the Group’s machinery
and equipment, potential shutdowns and insurance.
The effects of everyday use of equipment and machinery continually increase over time. Every
year the Group prepares plans to carry out preventive maintenance and shutdowns to eliminate
the risk of unplanned shutdowns.
The Group has also continued with a significant project of restructuring its production
portfolio and operating activities relating to electrolysis in order to meet the regulatory
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requirements and the Group’s strategy to minimise negative impacts on the environment. This
is especially aimed at reducing energy consumption and terminate the use of mercury in the
manufacturing process.
The Group has insurance coverage for most of its important assets (e.g. insurance for property
and equipment and liability insurance) to cover most of the risks and major claims.

(f)

Equity management

The Group manages the value of equity to secure the confidence of creditors, business
partners and financial markets, as well as to secure future growth. The equity structure is set
out in note 12.
The Group regularly monitors and evaluates return on equity, along with the average cost of
debt in order to ensure the expected return to shareholders while using the Group‘s capital
strength in negotiations with creditors.
27. INCOME TAX
2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

Current tax
Current year
Adjustment of tax relating to prior periods
Deferred tax
Impact of changes in temporary differences

1 837
0

525
2 825

-22 533

-13 228

Total income tax

-20 696

-9 878

2013
TCZK

2012
TCZK

Profit / loss before tax
Income tax rate

-238 034
19%

-197 551
19%

Income tax calculated

-45 226

-37 535

38 143
-6 486
-7 127

38 544
-13 712
2 825

-20 696

-9 878

8.7%

5.0%

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Impact of tax non-deductible expenses
Impact of tax-exempt income
Tax relating to prior periods
Total calculated income tax
Effective income tax rate
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Deferred tax
Assets
2013
Non-current assets
Inventories
Provisions
Hedge accounting
Tax losses carried forward
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Recorded deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Liabilities
2013
2012

2012

Difference

0
2 613
1 273
11 872
87 748

0
2 702
1 642

-150 983
0
0

-146 875
0
0

60 649

0

0

-4 108
-89
-369
11 872
27 099

103 506

64 993

-150 983

-146 875

34 405

678

0

-48 155

-81 882

34 405

In 2004, EPISPOL, a.s. obtained an incentive in the form of corporate income tax relief of up
to TCZK 346 000 related to the construction of a new production line for low-molecular
epoxy resin. This tax relief can be used over a period of 10 years (see Note 34). EPISPOL, a.s.
first accounted for a deferred tax liability in 2008 as it was highly probable that the investment
incentive would not be used within the set deadline.

28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The Group reports the following transactions and balances with related parties:
Receivables at 31
December

Payables at 31 December

2013

2012

2013

2012

CSS, a.s.
STZ Development, a.s.
Ivo Hala & Partneři, advokátní kancelář
Via Chem Group, a.s.
FAUCARIA, s.r.o.

21 335
376 116
18
0
0

2 472
429 532
17
0
0

6 598
87 718
10 587
238 447
2 024

8 698
63 029
860
228 327
1 900

Total

397 469

432 021

345 374

302 814

Purchases

Sales

2013

2012

2013

2012

CSS, a.s.
STZ Development, a.s
Ivo Hala & Partneři, advokátní kancelář
Via Chem Group, a.s.
FAUCARIA, s.r.o.

44 979
15 482
13 580
0
1 624

42 323
13 282
4 884
0
109

22 195
1 903
96
0
0

4 957
11 005
262
0
0

Total

75 665

60 598

24 194

16 224
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Transactions with STZ Development, a.s. a Via Chem Group, a.s. and balances thereof are
described in notes 10, 14 and 15.

Shareholders, members of statutory and supervisory bodies, and members of management
Besides bonuses, the Group also covers the liability insurance of members of statutory and
supervisory bodies and management. In 2013, the Group expensed TCZK 1 994 in liability
insurance (2012: TCZK 411). In 2013 and 2012, except from liability insurance, shareholders,
members of statutory and supervisory bodies and management did not receive any other kind
of monetary or non-monetary benefits.
Dividends
The annual General Meeting of the Company held on 7 July 2008 decided to pay out
dividends from the profit for 2007 in the amount of TCZK 49 831. The unpaid balance of
TCZK 3 564 was added to retained profits in 2012. No dividends were paid out for the years
2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008.
29. CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
Name and share

Based in

Note

SYNPO, akciová společnost (100%)
EPISPOL, a.s. (90%)
Oleochem, a.s. (100%)
Spolpharma, s.r.o. (100%)
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s. (100%)
INFRASPOL, s.r.o. (100%)
CHS Resins, a.s. (100%)
Bakelite Epoxy GmbH (100%)
SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis, a.s. (100%)
SPOLCHEMIE N.V. (100%)
SPOLCHEMIE (M) SdnBhd (100%)
CHS Epi, a.s. (100%)
Usti Infrastructure s.r.o. (50%)

Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Germany
Czech Republic
Netherlands
Malaysia
Czech Republic
Czech Republic

Share acquired in the years 1994 - 2009
Established in 2002
Acquired in 2008
Established in 2006
Established in 1996
Share acquired in 2008
Share acquired in 2008
Established in 2008
Established in 2011
Share acquired in 2011
Subsidiary of SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
Subsidiary of SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
Subsidiary of INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The indicator of comprehensive earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or
loss attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued for
the year.

Net profit (+)/loss (-) in TCZK
Number of ordinary shares issued
Basic earnings/loss per share indicator in CZK

2013

2012

-219 328

-191 049

3 878 816

3 878 816

-56.5

-49.3

Diluted earnings per share are consistent with the basic earnings per share.

31. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
In 2013, the Group spent TCZK 34 480 (2012: TCZK 31 774) on research and development.
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at the reporting date, the Group did not conclude any significant contracts for future
acquisition or repairs of fixed assets or investment property.
Planned future costs
The Group uses amalgam electrolysis in the production process under the integrated licence
valid until 31 December 2015. Therefore, the Group was planning to build a new membrane
electrolysis facility in compliance with the conditions for integrated prevention and using
state-of-the-art BAT technology for production of chlorine and alkaline hydroxides. The
Group´s management estimates the total investment expenses connected with implementation
of this investment to be TCZK 1 209 000. Next to this amount, TCZK 136 284 was already
invested in the previous period before 31 December 2013 and TCZK 122 994 is part of assets
under construction. Further works on the electrolysis will be carried out by Spolchemie
Elektrolysis; prior to 31 December 2013, TCZK 19 460 000 had already been invested.
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33.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Environmental liabilities
The Group has a contract with the National Property Fund (since 2006 the Ministry of Finance
of the Czech Republic, referred to as „MF“), in which MF has undertaken to cover the cost of
removing old environmental burdens identified at the date of privatisation of up to TCZK
2 900 000.
So far, a total of TCZK 2 684 003 was spent for these purposes of which TCZK 1 021 203
was spent to complete the landfill remediation in Chabařovice. Currently, there is a soil
remediation of the manufacturing facility of the Group being carried out. Estimated future
costs for this remediation are planned for the years 2014 – 2018 and amounts to TCZK
226 532.
The estimated expenditure of the Ministry of Finance on the removal of old environmental
burdens does not exceed the adjusted contract between the Group and the Ministry of Finance.
Since during the cleaning process of the area there is no withdrawal or acceptance of funds of
the Group, the estimated costs are not reported as a provision.
Other contingent liabilities
Liability for any future commitments SETUZA, a.s., ID 46708707 and/or commitments of
ČESKÝ OLEJ, a.s., ID 25720546, which could arise in the future from alleged illegal public
support provided by the Government of the Czech Republic, to which the Company obliged
itself currently persists.
As the European Commission or another competent authority has not yet initiated the
proceedings for an assessment of the compatibility of the alleged public support provided to
SETUZA a.s. and/or to ČESKÝ OLEJ, a.s. by the Czech Republic with the common market,
the situation regarding this liability remains unchanged. Taking into consideration all
available information, management believes the probability that the company will be forced to
meet this commitment is zero. The estimated financial effect of a possible decision of the
Government of the Czech Republic to provide illegal public support to the companies above
cannot be objectively assessed.
Pledged assets
The information on the Company’s pledged assets is presented in note 20.
Epispol, a.s. has pledged both tangible and intangible assets in favour of LBBW Bank CZ as a
loan collateral. As at 31 December 2013 the outstanding loan balance totalled TCZK 278 184.
Spolpharma, s.r.o has pledged trade receivables and tangible and intangible assets in favour of
Raiffeisenbank for a loan in the amount of TCZK 28 889. The values of the collaterals are
values presented in the statement of financial position which is a part of the non-consolidated
financial statements.
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The Group´s management is not aware of any other contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2013.

34. INVESTMENT INCENTIVES
In June 2002, the Group (EPISPOL, a.s.) submitted to the Ministry of Industry and Trade of
the Czech Republic investment incentives its plan to obtain investment incentives for
construction of large-scale production line of low molecular epoxy resins.
In May 2003, the Group received a decision of the Ministry of Industry and Trade on its
commitment to provide investment incentives. After having met the following conditions, the
Group can draw investment incentives in form of a tax discount from the corporate income
tax in the amount of 50% of the total value of eligible capital expenditure incurred, up to
TCZK 346 000:
•

Acquisition of tangible and intangible fixed assets in the minimum amount of
TCZK 100 000 to acquire a new production line of low molecular weight epoxy resins.

•

The Group will retain the investment over the period of the actual drawing of the income
tax discount, however at least for 5 years from the date on which the occupancy permit for
the first construction or a part of it has come in force.

The Group put into use new production line of low molecular epoxy resins at the end of 2004.
Due to the tax losses of EPISPOL, a.s. reported for the years 2004 – 2013, the tax discount
has not been applied yet.
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35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Upon the decision of the CEO of the Prague Stock Exchange (with its registered office at
Prague 1, Rybná 14/682. ID No.: 471 15 629) from 17 March 2014, the Company shares were
excluded from the Standard Market trading with the effect from 24 March 2014.
On 26 March 2014, the Group sold a 50% share in Usti Infrastructure s.r.o. The purchase price
was TCZK 13 736.
On 30 April 2014, the Group entered into a loan agreement totalling CZK 810 million with
Poštová banka. a.s. and SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis, a.s. to finance the new electrolysis
project.

No other events except for those mentioned above in the previous notes have occurred since
the reporting date that would have any material impact on the financial statements as at 31
December 2013.

Ústí nad Labem, 30 May 2014

Ing. Jan Šrubař
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Schmidt
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Report on Relations between Related Entities for 2013
(pursuant to the provisions of Section 66a (9) of Act No. 513/1991 Coll., Commercial Code)

Prepared by: Spolek pro chemickou a hutní výrobu, akciová společnost, Registration No.
00011789,Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 40032, recorded in the
Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in Ústí nad Labem, Section B,
File 47
(„the Company“)

1. List of entities controlling the Company:
Legal entity
Via Chem Group, a.s.
Rudolfovská tř. 303/113, České Budějovice 4, post code 370 01

Registration
number

Ownership
interest in
%

From – to

26694590

33.12

1/1/2013 31/12/2013

The company controlling Via Chem Group, a.s. from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 was EURO CAPITAL
ALLIANCE LTD. with its registered office in Tortolla, Road Town, second floor, post code 3321, British Virgin
Islands.
No information on the person(s) controlling EURO CAPITAL ALLIANCE LTD. is known to the Company.

2. List of other entities controlled by the entity controlling the Company:
Via Chem Group, a.s. controlled the following companies:
Registration
number

Ownership
interest in
%

from – to

STZ Development, a.s., Ústí nad Labem, Střekov, Žukovova
100, post code 401 29

27904202

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

CSS, a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 01

28963661

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

HC SLOVAN ÚSTEČTÍ LVI a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Masarykova 232, post code 400 01

25019058

27.9

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Via Chem Slovakia, a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

28361881

100

11/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Legal entity

168

V. REPORT ON RELATIONS BETWEEN RELATED ENTITIES FOR 2013

3. List of other entities controlled by the entity that controls the entity controlling the
Company
EURO CAPITAL ALLIANCE LTD. controlled the following companies:
Registration
number

Ownership
interest in
%

from – to

EURO CAPITAL ALLIANCE a.s.,
Praha 6, Na dlouhém lánu 508/41, post code 160 00

26484919

98.11

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

ENERGO SOURCE ALLIANCE a.s. "v likvidaci",
Praha 5 - Košíře, Plzeňská 155/113, post code 155 00

26256509

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Q-Efekt a.s.
Praha 6, Na dlouhém lánu 508/41, post code 160 00

63078040

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Legal entity

4. List of entities controlled by the entities that are controlled by the entity controlling the
Company
EURO CAPITAL ALLIANCE a.s. controlled the following companies:
Registration
number

Ownership
interest in
%

from – to

61673358

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Registration
number

Ownership
interest in
%

from – to

45276412

100

1/1/2013 – 4/9/2013

Registration
number

Ownership
interest in
%

from – to

46504711

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

25006223

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Spolpharma, s.r.o.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 01

27287149

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

INFRASPOL, s.r.o.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

27918131

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

CHS Resins, a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

28207866

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Oleochem, a.s.
Praha 2, Vinohrady, Anglická 140/20, post code 120 00

28361806

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

Legal entity
M-Best, a.s.
Měchenice, V Háji 112, Prague-West district

Q-Efekt, a.s. controlled the following companies:
Legal entity
CCL TOUR AND TRADE, spol. s r.o.
Praha 6, Na Dlouhém Lánu 508/41, post code 160 00

5. List of entities controlled by the Company:
Legal entity
SYNPO, akciová společnost
Pardubice, Zelené Předměstí, S.K. Neumanna 1316, post code
532 07
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32
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EPISPOL, a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 01

25449842

90

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis a.s.
Ústí nad Labem, Revoluční 1930/86, post code 400 32

29200181

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

SPOLCHEMIE N.V.
Haaksbergweg 71, 1101 BR Amsterdam, Netherlands

342 77 853

100

1/1/2013 –
31/12/2013

6. Contracts entered into with related entities including mutual performances rendered
under the contracts entered into:
No contracts were entered into between the Company and the controlling entity or the related
entities in the financial year 2013 other than those listed below:
•

On 30 August 2013, the Company concluded a contract with CSS, a.s. for lease of nonresidential premises under which the Company rents out office premises to CSS, a.s. for
an annual payment of TCZK 2,674.

•

On 1 March 2013, the Company concluded a contract with CSS, a.s. for provision of
environmental protection services under which the Company provides environmental
protection services to CSS, a.s. for an annual payment of CZK 6,000.

•

On 30 April 2013, the Company concluded an agreement with CSS, a.s. on termination of
the Contract for provision of environmental protection services dated 1 March 2013.

•

On 1 January 2013, the Company concluded appendix No. 6 to the Service Delivery
Agreement concluded earlier with CSS, a.s. as the supplier. This appendix adjusts the
prices for the year 2013.

•

On 30 April 2013, the Company concluded an agreement with CSS, a.s. on termination of
the Contract for provision of occupational health and safety services, and services in
terms of prevention of serious accidents and occupational hygiene and hygiene of the
work environment dated 30 June 2010.

•

On 30 April 2013, the Company concluded an agreement with STZ Development, a.s. on
termination of the Contract for provision of environmental protection services dated 22
May 2012.

•

On 31 December 2013, the Company concluded an agreement with STZ Development,
a.s. on termination of the Contract for services of the power engineer of the plant dated 24
June 2011.

•

On 2 May 2013, the Company concluded a Lease agreement with STZ Development, a.s.
as the lessor under which the Company leases non-residential premises from STZ
Development, a.s. for an annual payment of TCZK 451.
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•

On 1 June 2013, the Company concluded a Purchase agreement with STZ Development,
a.s. as the seller under which the Company purchased movable assets of TCZK 50 from
STZ Development, a.s.

7. Contracts entered into with entities controlled by the Company
In 2013, the Company entered into the following contracts based on the arm´s length
principle with companies under its control:
•

The Company entered into an Agreement on recognition and repayment of a liability of
TCZK 17,136 as the debtor with SYNPO, akciová společnost,

•

The Company entered into a Licensing agreement on providing the manufacturing knowhow for selected products of chlorine chemistry as the provider with SPOLCHEMIE
N.V.,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for loan totalling TCZK 1,300 as the debtor with
SPOLCHEMIE Electrolysis a.s.,

•

The Company entered into four contracts on assignment of a receivable totalling TCZK
1,172 as the assignor with SPOLCHEMIE, a.s.,

•

The Company entered into three purchase agreements for glycerine as the buyer with
SPOLCHEMIE, a.s, in an annual volume of 1 300 tonnes,

•

The Company entered into a Framework contract with SPOLCHEMIE, a.s. to regulate
mutual relations, rights, obligations and provision of services. This Framework contract
regulates mutual relations, rights and obligations arising from contracts for services, and
contracts for lease of immovable assets,

•

The Company as the contractor concluded an agreement with SPOLPHARMA, s.r.o. on
termination of the Contract for services of the power engineer of the plant,

•

The Company entered into a Contract on assignment of a receivable of TCZK 520 as the
assignor with Oleochem, a.s.,

•

The Company as the contractor concluded an agreement with Oleochem, a.s. on
termination of the Contract for services provided in terms of fire security of the facility
and services performed by the Company´s fire brigade,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for provision of fire protection services as the
contractor with Oleochem, a.s.,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for lease of movable assets as the lessor with
Oleochem, a.s. for two mobile units,
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•

The Company as the contractor concluded an agreement with Oleochem, a.s. on
termination of the Contract for services provided in terms of occupational health and
safety and in terms of prevention of serious accidents and occupational hygiene and
hygiene of the work environment,

•

The Company as the contractor concluded an agreement with Oleochem, a.s. on
termination of the Contract for provision of environmental protection services,

•

The Company as the mandatary concluded an agreement with Oleochem, a.s. on
termination of the Mandate contract in terms of zoning, territorial technical activities,
territorial and civil engineering administrative activities, geological and hydrogeological
activities, administration of unused real estate, geodetic activities, photo documentation
activities, archiving and photocopying work,

•

The Company entered into three contracts on assignment of receivables of TCZK 87 as
the assignor with INFRASPOL, s.r.o.,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for provision of administrative services, tangible
assets management services, environmental protection services, quality management and
control services, occupational health and safety services, services in terms of prevention
of serious accidents, sewage disposal plant, car fleet maintenance and lending as the
customer with INFRASPOL, s.r.o.,

•

The Company concluded appendices No. 1 and 2 as the customer with INFRASPOL,
s.r.o. to the Contract for provision of services which regulates the prices of services in
terms of administration, tangible assets management, environmental protection services,
quality management and control, occupational health and safety, prevention of serious
accidents, sewage disposal plant, car fleet maintenance and lending,

•

The Company concluded Appendix No. 1 to the Contract for renting motor vehicles as
the lessee with INFRASPOL, s.r.o.,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for lease of non-residential premises and a part of a
plot as the lessor with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. for an annual payment of TCZK 13 281,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for lease of non-residential premises and movable
assets as the lessor with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. for an annual payment of TCZK 2 951,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for lease of non-residential premises as the lessor
with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. for an annual payment of TCZK 848,

•

The Company entered into a Contract for providing telecommunication services as the
provider with INFRASPOL, s.r.o.,

•

The Company concluded Appendix No. 1 as the provider with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. to the
Contract for providing services in terms of occupational health and safety and in terms of
prevention of serious accidents,
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•

The Company concluded an agreement as the contractor with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. on
termination of the Contract for provision of services in terms of occupational health and
safety, prevention of serious accidents and occupational hygiene and hygiene of the work
environment,

•

The Company concluded an agreement as the contractor with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. on
termination of the Contract for provision of environmental protection services,

•

The Company concluded an agreement as the mandatary with INFRASPOL, s.r.o. on
termination of the Mandate contract in terms of zoning, territorial technical activities,
territorial and civil engineering administrative activities, geological and hydrogeological
activities, administration of unused real estate, geodetic activities, photo documentation
activities, archiving and photocopying work,

•

The Company entered into five contracts for purchase of a car as the seller with
INFRASPOL, s.r.o. for a total sum of TCZK 487.

8. Legal acts effected for the benefit of related entities:
The Company did not effect any legal acts for the benefit of the controlling entity or for the
benefit of any related entities in the financial year 2013.
9. Measures adopted or taken for the benefit of entities related to the Company:
The Company did not adopt or take any measure for the benefit of the controlling entity or
for the benefit of any related entities in the financial year 2013.
10. Measures adopted or taken at the instigation of related entities:
The Company did not adopt or take any measure at the instigation of the controlling entity or
at the instigation of any related entities in the financial year 2013.
In view of the examined legal relations between the Company and the related entities, it is clear
that the Company did not incur any loss resulting from contracts, other legal acts or other
measures effected, taken or adopted by the compiler for the benefit or at the instigation of any
related party in the financial year 2013.

Ústí nad Labem, on 31 March 2014

Ing. Jan Šrubař
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Schmidt
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
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